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CAUTIONARY STATEMENT REGARDING FORWARD-LOOKING
STATEMENTS

This document contains “forward-looking statements” (as defined in
the U.S. Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995), regarding
the intent, belief or current expectations of us and our managements
with respect to our future financial condition and results of operations.
In many cases but not all, these statements contain words such
as “anticipate,” “believe,” “estimate,” “expect,” “intend,” “may,”
“plan,” “probability,” “risk,” “project,” “should,” “seek,” “target,” “will”
and similar expressions. Such forward-looking statements are not
guarantees of future performance and involve risks and uncertainties,
and actual results may differ from those expressed in or implied

by such forward-looking statements contained or deemed to be
contained herein. The risks and uncertainties which may affect future
performance include: deterioration of Japanese and global economic
conditions and financial markets; declines in the value of our securities
portfolio; our ability to successfully implement our business strategy
through our subsidiaries, affiliates and alliance partners; exposure to
new risks as we expand the scope of our business; and incurrence

of significant credit-related costs. Given these and other risks and
uncertainties, you should not place undue reliance on forward-looking
statements, which speak only as of the date of this document. We
undertake no obligation to update or revise any forward-looking
statements.

Please refer to our most recent disclosure documents such as our
annual report or registration statement on Form 20-F and other docu-
ments submitted to the U.S. Securities and Exchange Commission, as
well as our earnings press releases, for a more detailed description of
the risks and uncertainties that may affect our financial conditions and
our operating results, and investors’ decisions.
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Message from Top Management

Dear Fellow Stakeholders,

We sincerely thank you for your continued support and patronage. We would like to present the
initiatives we implemented in fiscal 2014 (fiscal year ended March 2015) and our management

policies going forward.

In fiscal 2014, the Japanese economy continued to
recover moderately after a temporary dip in economic
activity due to a slump in consumer demand after the
rush of purchasing ahead of the consumption tax rate
hike in April 2014. Outside Japan, although emerg-
ing countries lacked growth momentum, economies
continued to recover led by developed countries. The
U.S. economy continued to improve driven by domes-
tic demand, and the European economies moderately
recovered despite sovereign debt issues.

Against this backdrop, we implemented the follow-
ing initiatives to achieve the management goals of our
medium-term management plan for the three years from
fiscal 2014 to fiscal 2016, which we announced in May
2014.

First, we fully revised the domestic business structure
of Sumitomo Mitsui Banking Corporation (SMBC) in April
2014 for the first time since its establishment, with the

aim of enhancing our capability to address our clients’
needs, which are becoming more diverse and sophisti-
cated, and to deliver higher value-added services.

Specifically, for large corporate clients, we enhanced
our business structure with the aim of quickly making
proposals tailored to their needs, responding to their
businesses becoming global and more cross-border.
Measures we implemented at SMBC include increasing
the number of Corporate Banking Departments, intensify-
ing the collaboration with SMBC Nikko Securities, further
promoting a seamless operation between its domestic
and international offices, and leveraging our extensive
knowledge of various industries on a global basis.

For medium and small-sized corporate clients, we
actively extended loans and tailored our services to
meet the financial needs of each individual company. In
addition, with the aim of quickly and comprehensively
addressing the needs of business owners both as a cor-
porate manager and as an individual, we established a
new area marketing structure, Area Main Offices, within
SMBC. Furthermore, we launched a “Japan Growth
Strategy Cross-Functional Team” as an organization-wide
body, in order to contribute to the economic growth of
Japan by supporting clients in sectors, such as agricul-
ture, healthcare, energy and infrastructure, that will under-
pin the Japanese economy five and ten years from now.

Regarding individual clients, we endeavored to
increase the number of accounts and assets under man-
agement through initiatives such as expanding the busi-
ness model, where SMBC and SMBC Nikko Securities

Koichi Miyata
President
Sumitomo Mitsui Financial Group, Inc.
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introduce each other’s clients, to all offices and broaden-
ing our lineup of investment products. Further, we set up
official accounts on social networking services to grow
and strengthen our client base.

In the international business, we have been trans-
forming our business model to be less dependent on
lending volume and utilize our asset more efficiently in
order to achieve sustainable growth. To this end, we
promoted cross-selling of deposits, foreign exchange,
derivatives and bond underwriting, in addition to lend-
ing, to non-Japanese corporate clients by bolstering our
capability to meet their needs. We also accelerated the
seamless operation between the domestic and inter-
national offices and responded quickly to the needs of
Japanese corporate clients; expanded our global office
network into markets where future growth is expected;
and strengthened our relationship with leading finan-
cial institutions in each country, including investing in
ACLEDA Bank in Cambodia and acquiring additional
shares of The Bank of East Asia in Hong Kong.

In addition, for institutional investors, we established
and enhanced a group-wide framework to originate and
distribute financial products through measures such as
SMBC and SMBC Nikko Securities creating a structure
for regional banks to jointly finance overseas project
financing led by SMBC. We also promoted the “SMBC”
brand by SMBC becoming a special sponsor of the
Nippon Series professional baseball championship.

As a result of these initiatives, we made a good
start in the first year of our medium-term management
plan. Regarding the financial results of Sumitomo Mitsui
Financial Group (SMFG), the consolidated ordinary
profit was ¥1,321.2 billion and consolidated net income
was ¥758.6 billion, exceeding the targets announced
in November 2014 by ¥121.2 billion and ¥53.6 billion
respectively. Moreover, we are on track to achieving all
the financial targets of the plan.

Takeshi Kunibe

President and CEO
Sumitomo Mitsui Banking Corporation

Progress of financial targets in the medium-term
management plan (SMFG consolidated basis)

FY3/17
FY3/14 FY3/15 Targets

Growth rate of

Growth | Consolidated — +2.8% A;%iﬂ?
gross profit +io%n
Consolidated Around
ROE 13.8% 11.2% 10%
Consolidated

Profitabilty | net income 1.4% 1.1% AreUlel
RORA 1%
Consolidated In the mid
overhead ratio 54.2% 55.7% 50%
Common

Soundness | Equity Tier 1 10.3% 12.0% Ar]o(;f;d
Capital Ratio*2 °

*1 FY3/17 targeted consolidated gross profit increase in comparison with
FY3/14 figure
*2 Basel lll fully-loaded basis. Based on the definition as of March 31, 2019

Vision for the next decade and three-year
management goals (announced in May 2014)

Vision for the next decade

We will become a global financial group that, by earning the highest frust of
our customers, leads the growth of Japan and the Asian region

We will become
a truly Asia-centric institution

We will develop
the bestin-class eamings base in Japan

We will realize frue globalization and continue to evolve our business model

Three-year management goals

@ Develop and evolve client-centric business models for main domestic and international businesses
@ Build a platform for realizing Asia-centric operations and capture growth opportunities

© Realize sustainable growth of top-ine profit while maintaining soundness and profitabilty

@ Upgrade corporate infrastructure to support next stage of growth

SMFG 2015 | 3



Our basic policy for fiscal 2015, the second year of the
medium-term management plan, is as follows: “acceler-
ate key initiatives in accordance with management goals,
produce results, and move reform forward vigorously”
and “anticipate changes and be proactive, make a dif-
ference with SMFG/SMBC'’s on-the-ground capabilities,
and create business opportunities.” We will continue to
firmly contribute to the Japanese economy as a lead-
ing financial institution in Japan, as various measures
for economic revitalization are progressed by public and
private sectors. At the same time, we will move initiatives
forward for our sustainable growth, including corporate
governance. There is a movement toward strengthen-
ing and improving corporate governance in Japan, as
demonstrated by the implementation of the Corporate
Governance Code for listed companies in June 2015.
We will increase our corporate value over the mid to
long term by further strengthening and improving the
management structure for transparent, fair, timely and
decisive decision-making through initiatives including
increasing the number of SMFG’s outside directors in
line with our policy that one-third or more of the board
comprise of independent outside directors with diverse
knowledge and experience.

© Initiatives to achieve the management goals

(1) Develop and evolve client-centric business models
for main domestic and international businesses

We will enhance our capability to address the increas-
ingly diverse and sophisticated needs of our clients by
creating a stronger franchise both domestically and
internationally. We will achieve this by fine tuning our
domestic business which was developed through the
restructuring last fiscal year and fully implementing the
transformation of our international business model.

For large corporate clients, we will continue to
strengthen the collaboration between SMBC and SMBC
Nikko Securities and accelerate the seamless operation
of domestic and international offices, in an aim to deliver
higher quality services to a wider range of clients.

For medium and small-sized corporate clients, we

A | SMFG 2015

aim to enhance our capability to meet the financial needs
of each individual company by reinforcing our on-the-
ground capabilities through the development of talented
professionals capable of supporting their wide-ranging
needs. As for business owners, we strive to provide
added value by accelerating initiatives to comprehen-
sively address their needs, both as a corporate man-
ager and as an individual, through one-stop-services.
Moreover, we will proactively contribute to the growth of
the Japanese economy by providing financial services
leveraging our extensive knowledge and information on
agriculture, healthcare, energy, infrastructure, and other
growth industries led by the Japan Growth Strategy
Cross-Functional Team. We will also sponsor the Tokyo
Olympic and Paralympic Games in 2020 as a Gold
Partner in the “Banking” category as one of our initiatives
to contribute to the growth of the Japanese economy.

For individual clients, we aim to fully meet their diver-
sifying asset management needs by further promoting
the collaboration between SMBC and SMBC Nikko
Securities. We will also strengthen our capability to meet
the needs of affluent individuals through the retail banking
business of Citibank Japan, scheduled to be acquired by
SMBC Trust Bank in November 2015 subject to regula-
tory approvals. Further, we aim to enhance our presence
and services targeting mass-affluent clients with SMBC
advertising products and services and disseminating
information through social networking services, and
enhancing services utilizing smartphones. In the con-
sumer finance business, we will further strengthen the
collaboration between SMBC and SMBC Consumer
Finance, and develop the business on a group basis.

For globally operating non-Japanese corporate cli-
ents, we will enhance our products providing capability
and promoting collaboration among offices in western
countries and Asia in order to strengthen relationships
and promote cross-selling.

In addition to the above, for institutional investors,
we will continue to build and strengthen the group-wide
framework for originating and distributing financial prod-
ucts. Regarding information and communication technol-
ogy (ICT) and transaction banking business, important



underpinnings for our business base, we aim to offer new
leading-edge services by enhancing our capabilities inter-
nally and utilizing external resources, including forging
alliances with leading ICT players.

(2) Build a platform for realizing Asia-centric operations
and capture growth opportunities
In order to enhance our Asia business, which is the
principal strategy for the whole group, we will steadily
build a business platform in Asia by prioritizing the alloca-
tion of resources, including human capital and system
infrastructure, to the region. Specifically, we plan to
strengthen our capability to provide comprehensive ser-
vices by centralizing and enhancing transaction banking
product sales functions and solution-providing functions
within Asia. Through these initiatives, we will intensify
our group’s presence in Asia. We will also accelerate
our multi-franchise strategy, which is to firmly establish
a full-scale commercial banking franchise in Asia, as
highlighted by our continued collaboration in the retail
business with Bank Tabungan Pensiunan Nasional in
Indonesia, our equity method affiliate.

(3) Realize sustainable growth of top-line profit while

maintaining soundness and profitability
Underpinned by the stable financial base, we aim to
realize the sustainable growth of our consolidated gross
profit by continuing to develop and evolve our business
models and allocate resources into growth fields, while
focusing on maintaining financial soundness and high
profitability, as well as complying with the tightening of
global financial regulations.

(4) Upgrade corporate infrastructure to support the
next stage of growth

We intend to further reinforce our management platform
to support our business as it develops and grows glob-
ally, through initiatives such as strengthening corporate
governance, upgrading our risk management system,
enhancing our responsiveness to comply with domestic
and international laws and regulations, and promoting
diversity.

Specifically, we believe the diversity of human capital
is a source of competitiveness and will promote appoint-
ments of locally hired officers and women in managerial
positions. We will also further strengthen and improve
the structure for transparent, fair, timely and decisive
decision-making, with due attention to the needs and
perspectives of stakeholders, including our shareholders,
clients, staff (including directors and corporate auditors)
and local communities, and increase our corporate value
over the mid to long term, in accordance with the corpo-
rate governance guideline we created in May 2015.

© Capital and shareholder return policies

We aim to achieve a sustainable increase in shareholder
value by realizing higher profitability and growth by
investing for the future. We also intend to enhance share-
holder return by implementing measures such as raising
dividend per share in a stable manner. In line with this
policy, the ordinary dividend per share on common stock
was ¥140 in fiscal 2014, a year-on-year increase of ¥20.

For fiscal 2015, for SMFG, we forecast consolidated
ordinary profit of ¥1,240 billion and consolidated profit
attributable to owners of parent of ¥760 billion, and
an annual dividend per share of ¥150, a year-on-year
increase of ¥10, and the half of which, ¥75, will be paid
as an interim dividend.

We believe that we can meet your expectations
through the initiatives we have described. We hope that
we can continue to count on your understanding and
support in the years ahead.

August 2015

o
//,%’1 wy —

Koichi Miyata
President

Sumitomo Mitsui
Financial Group, Inc.

/ W
Takeshi Kunibe

President and CEO

Sumitomo Mitsui
Banking Corporation
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Business Overview

B Consumer Banking

SMFG group companies work cooperatively to provide better
and highly appreciated services for individual clients. SMBC
strives to advance its business model daily in order to develop
the leading comprehensive financial service business most
trusted by clients by appropriately accommodating individual
clients’ diversifying financial needs reflected with the accelerated
trend of “Saving to Investment,” the times of major inheritance
and changes in clients’ lifestyles.

Asset Management
SMBC has implemented the invest-
ment trusts portfolio of “SMBC Fund
Selection” by classifying into four
categories for enabling clients to select
appropriate investment trusts according
to their needs. Furthermore, we offer
publicly-offered investment trusts in
Japan which appropriately accommodate
clients’ diverse asset management needs by selecting the funds
invested in preferred securities issued by financial institutions of
advanced countries. We have also started to offer an automatic
deposit service for foreign currency in order to appropriately
accommodate the needs for such deposits. We accommodate
clients’ needs by implementing measures to offer preferential
interest rates. Working with SMBC Nikko Securities, SMBC
continues to offer its wide-ranging clients intermediary services
for financial products in areas such as foreign-currency bonds.
Further as for “SMBC Fund Wrap” (the discretionary
management through investment trust taking into account the
clients’ particular needs for their asset management), we are
proactively promoting as a product appropriate for asset man-
agement by implementing measures to offer preferential inter-
est rates for clients purchasing the product. As for the Nippon
Individual Savings Account program (“NISA”), the tax exemption
system for small sum of investments and “Junior NISA,” the
tax exemption system for minors which is planned to be newly
established after fiscal 2015, we provide information on NISA
to clients who would request receiving such information. SMBC
and SMBC Nikko Securities strive to provide products and ser-
vices able to accommodate individual clients’ diverse needs by
taking advantage of both companies’ knowhow for the consult-
ing business accumulated over the years and through integra-
tion of their clients base and office networks. In July 2014, we
began implementing at all branches a new business promotion
model (“bank-securities integration model”) which makes maxi-
mum utilization of the respective characteristics of SMBC and
SMBC Nikko Securities. In February 2015, we began offering
the “bank-securities integrated asset formation package.” We,
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the SMFG Group, will continue to provide high-value services to
clients.

Life Insurance and Estate

SMBC offers life insurance policies over the counter at its
branches throughout Japan. We additionally provide services
enabling our clients to request information materials without
visiting our branches, as long as they make such requests by
using ATMs, the internet or the telephone by consulting with
experienced operators. We offer permanent life insurance which
ensures the security for death and disability for a lifetime and
enables savings for the future, and also individual variable annu-
ity insurance denominated in foreign currency to accommodate
clients’ needs for asset growth while protecting their valuable
assets from inflation due to economic recovery and growth in
the future. Further, as a response to the tax exemption measure
of the capital transfer tax applicable to a lump sum transfer of
educational funds, we began offering ordinary savings accounts
(tax exempt account for educational fund transfer) by enhancing
our product portfolio for further accommodating clients’ needs
for leaving and accumulating assets to their family. In addition,
we meet the inheritance-related needs of clients by offering
testamentary trust services for drafting, storage and execution
of wills, including “inheritance disposition” services by assisting
with complicated procedures required for inheritance or “Relay
of Trust to Family” services enabling clients and family to regu-
larly receive funds. Furthermore, since March 2015, we began
offering the “SMBC
Reverse Mortgage”
service in order to
flexibly support the
“life after retirement”
of elderly clients.

Consumer Loans and
Settlement

SMBC began offering the “Housing Loan
with Joint Life Insurance (Cross Support)”
since April 2015.

As dual-income couples of younger
generations are increasing, this is a prod-
uct to exempt the balance of housing loan
repayments in the event of death of either
spouse of such couples.

In addition, in the event that the borrower of our housing
loan is diagnosed by a medical doctor with the predefined




conditions of eight major illnesses (three potentially fatal and
five serious and chronic illnesses) or that the client’s house was
damaged by a natural disaster; we offer to provide the “Housing
Loan with Eight Major llinesses Security Insurance” which fully
exempts repayments for the loan or the “Housing Loan with
Special Provision for Partial Exemption for Payments” which
partially exempts repayments depending on the degree of
damage, respectively. Further, we offer the “Life Event Support
Package” which is the card loan offering special interest rates
especially made for clients who plan to take housing loans, in
order to accommodate such clients’ diverse financial needs for
such as childbirth, education or renovation after the home pur-
chase. We are working to develop products and enhance our
services in order to accommodate the diverse needs of clients.

We also substantially improved the convenience for clients
requesting housing loans by enabling them to complete their
applications for making either full or partial prepayments, or
changing the interest rate to floating or fixed, by utilizihg SMBC
Direct, the online banking service. In other improvements,
SMBC has assigned “Financing Facilitation Consultant Experts”
at all branches and eight other locations throughout Japan
where a special department is established for loan support ser-
vices to provide consultations for clients. For housing finance for
clients affected by the Great East Japan Earthquake, we offer
housing loans with special rates, and we also offer our existing
clients consultation services on more flexible loan repayments
for those who have already taken out SMBC housing loans.
We continue to provide meticulous support for, and promptly
and appropriately respond to, clients who have difficulties
making housing loan repayments. As for SMBC unsecured
consumer loans (card loans), guaranteed by SMBC Consumer
Finance Co., Ltd., the total loan balance as of March 2015
has exceeded ¥520 billion due to the steady increase of loans.
Further, in April 2015, a new series of television commercials
started to be on air. These television commercials were made
for increasing awareness of SMBC'’s card loans by simply focus-
ing the telephone number, 0120-923-923.

| Topics

@®Enhancement of the SMBC brand

SMBC launched a new promotional campaign for fiscal
2014 for enhancing the “SMBC” brand by targeting clients
primarily in younger generations by putting up the campaign
key words of “For Our Future.” These television commercials
depict images of young people who just graduated and
started their job, aspiring for their bright future with great
expectations but also feeling uneasy. In September 2014,
SMBC opened its official accounts with Facebook and LINE,
as a branding means taking advantage of the social media
which is increasingly utilized by mostly younger generations,
for creating new contacts with clients and fostering a feeling
of friendliness for clients to further develop transactions with
SMBC. Concurrently, SMBC developed

its original image character, called,

“Midosuke”; and as of March 31,

2015, the number of fans for Facebook

has reached 150,000 and the number

of friends for LINE has exceeded

5,680,000, having the most number of

registered followers among Japanese

banks.

@Implementation of the Opening-Account
Application

SMBC implemented the “Opening-Account Application” for
smartphones in February 2015 for improving convenience
when opening an account by enabling clients to apply to
open an ordinary savings account without having to visit a
branch and to receive a cash card at home. We will further
enhance our response to transactions made by smartphones
while providing meticulous services appropriate to clients’
needs.

@®Revision of ATM Services
In April 2015, SMBC made changes to its ATM services to
improve convenience by charging no fees all day even for
deposits made at ATMs located at SMBC branches after
business hours, and increasing the number of ATMs in
operation for 24 hours a day, changing the standard business
hours to from 7 a.m. to 12 midnight.

We continue to improve and enhance our ATM services
according to lifestyles of clients.

@SMBC received “COPC® CSP Standards” in
March 2015 for call center operations.

SMBC was the first Japanese bank to be certified with the
“COPC® CSP Standards” which is the international quality
assurance standard for center operations for improving cli-
ents’ satisfaction and realizing efficiency of call center opera-
tions. The COPC standards measure and certify promptness
and accuracy of services provided to clients and efficiency of
center operations for achieving and maintaining at excellent

level for clients’ satisfaction.

SMFG 2015
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B Services for Corporate Clients

Providing funding to medium-sized
corporations and SMEs
SMBC established its “Area” system in April 2014 in order to
enhance its response to the needs for comprehensive corporate
and consumer banking transactions of medium-sized and SME
clients, including increasing business succession needs. The
“Area” system enables to us to provide specialized services
taking advantage of the respective networks of SMFG/SMBC
group companies, in addition to providing consultation services
to corporate and individual clients. In addition to providing loans
for business, SMFG/SMBC group companies provide meticu-
lous support for clients’ diverse needs, including consultations
on overseas business development or business-matching, busi-
ness succession, corporate system reform; and consultations
for the individual client’s asset management, loans, inheritance,
and asset succession.

SMBC continues to work to accommodate diverse needs of
medium-sized corporations and SMEs clients and their owners
who continue to support the Japanese economy.

Support for the establishment of new industry,
new businesses and growing company

At SMBC, a department specializing in supporting clients of
growing companies has been established at its head office. By
cooperating with group companies including SMBC Venture
Capital Co., Ltd. and SMBC Nikko Securities, we provide solu-
tions appropriate to the specific growth stage, such as providing
loans especially made for growing companies, supporting the
initial public offering of shares, or supporting the alliance with
the major company. We provided loans to companies engaged
in cloud computing and life science businesses through the
“Growth Potential Evaluation Loan” which was launched for the
purpose of strengthening lending to clients of growing compa-
nies. SMBC and the NEC group jointly established a venture
fund in April 2012 for the purpose of supporting technology
venture companies since their establishment; and in July 2013,
we invested in the SMBC Agricultural Fund investing in agricul-
tural companies.

Furthermore, SMBC and the Group continue to support
growing companies while cooperatively working with diverse
external entities by establishing business cooperation with
Japan Finance Corporation in July 2014 for the support of
growing companies.

Support for IPOs (IPO Navigator)

SMBC and SMBC Nikko Securities jointly started providing
free information service exclusively for the registered members
of the “IPO Navigator” since July 2010, for consistently and
comprehensively supporting clients who are considering going
public. The IPO Navigator has become the one-stop platform
for enabling clients to access any necessary information for
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IPO, enhanced by information provided by ten affiliated advisory
companies and one sponsoring company. As of March 2015,
the IPO Navigator is registered by clients of approximately
1,000 companies. IPO Seminars, which have been regularly
held since February 2011 by inviting business managers of IPO
companies to speak at the seminars, have been received posi-
tively by participants who plan to make an initial public offering.
In fiscal 2014, we held seminars in the three cities of Tokyo,
Osaka, and Nagoya; and Mr. Yoshiyuki Sankai, the president
of CYBERDYNE Inc. (SMBC Nikko Securities acted as the
lead manager for its share offering) and Mr. Minoru Nishimura,
the president of ENBIO HOLDINGS, INC. (listed on the Tokyo
Stock Exchange Mothers market in

March 2014) were guest speakers.
The seminars were well received
by participants. SMBC and SMBC
Nikko Securities continue to sup-
port clients who wish to go public.

Development of solutions for clients dealing
with environment, risk management and food
safety issues

SMBC develops solutions for clients dealing with diverse social
issues, such as of environmental problems for resource and
energy conservation, or global warming; countermeasures for
natural disasters; or ensuring food safety.

In 2006, SMBC started to offer the “SMBC-ECO Loan” for
SMEs which obtained the certification for environment manage-
ment system; and Japan Research Institute subsequently devel-
oped the “SMBC Environmental Assessment Loans and Private
Placement Bonds” to assess and rate the measures taken by
clients for environment, and determine terms and conditions for
loans according to the rating.

Subsequently, we derived from the similar arrangement to
enhance the assessment-type loan products such as “SMBC
Sustainable Building Assessment Loans and Private Placement
Bonds,” “SMBC Food and Agriculture Assessment Loans and
Private Placement Bonds,” “SMBC Business Sustainability
Assessment Loans and Private Placement Bonds” and “SMBC
Sustainability Assessment Loans and Private Placement
Bonds,” for financially supporting clients of their initiatives for
social issues.

We will continue to support clients for their further advance-
ment through development of these solutions.



FY2008:

“SMBC Environmental Assessment
Loans and Private Placement Bonds”

which assess the measures taken by
clients for environment

Loans and Private Placement Bonds”

FY2010: |“SMBC Environmental Assessment
Loans and Private Placement Bonds,
eco Value-Up”

FY2011: |“SMBC Food and Agriculture which assesses the measures taken
Assessment Loans and Private by clients for safety and security of
Placement Bonds” food, and agriculture
“SMBC Sustainable Building which assesses environment-
Assessment Loans and Private friendliness and measures taken for
Placement Bonds” risk management for the building

owned or to be constructed by clients
“SMBC Business Sustainability which assesses the measures taken
Assessment Loans and Private by clients for business sustainability
Placement Bonds” in the event of emergencies such as

earthquakes, floods, etc.

FY2013: |“SMBC Sustainability Assessment which assesses and supports the mea-

sures taken for Environment, Society,
and Governance (ESG) and appropriate-
ness of information disclosure

Measures for finance facilitation

Basic policy

SMBC strives to provide sincere and meticulous services to
clients, facilitate funding, and enhance consultation services, in

accordance with SMBC'’s “Basic Policy for Finance Facilitation.”

© Changing terms and
conditions of a loan

© New borrowing

© Management
consultation and
management support

© Complaints and
consultation

Basic policy for finance facilitation

1. Conduct appropriate review of applications submitted to apply

for a new loan or request to ease loan conditions

2. Provide support appropriate to the measures taken by clients

for management consultation, management guidance and
management improvement

3. Strive to improve the ability to appropriately assess the value

of client’s business

4. Provide appropriate and thorough explanations to clients for

the consultation and application for new loans or for easing
loan conditions

5. Respond appropriately and adequately to clients for their

requests or complaints regarding the consultation or applica-
tion for a new loan or for easing loan conditions

6. In case that there are other relevant financial institutions

involved in the consultation for easing loan conditions or any
other requests, we maintain close liaison with such financial
institutions

7. We appropriately respond as to guarantee for business

manager in accordance with the “Guidelines for Guarantee for
Business Manager.”

System improvement
Head office and branches of SMBC continue to provide consul-
tation services in an integrated manner.

/

© Corporate Business
Office

® Area Main Office

® Branch, efc.

g

Affiliation

-

® Each department of
the head office

N

Affiliation

Information sharing and
discussions among officers
in charge of Wholesale/
Retail Unis, Risk
Management Unit and
relevant departments

Planning and management
of measures associated
with finance facilitation

Affiliation

© External organizations
+ Council supporting vitalization of SMEs
* Regional Economy Vitalization Corporation of Japan
« Corporation supporting regeneration of businesses
affected by the Great East Japan Earthquake

© External experts/professionals
+ SMBC Consulting
« Certified tax accountants
« Certified public accountants, efc.
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Support for management improvement, busi-
ness regeneration and business conversion
Even after the expiry of the SME Financing Facilitation Act,
SMBC continues to provide efficient financial intermediary
services and focus on management issues which clients are
faced with, and to propose solutions appropriate to respective
management issues or life phase in the client’s perspective. We
strive to improve our consultation services by spending adequate
time with the clients. Specifically, we provide numerous and
diverse loan products in order to accommodate the needs of
clients for financing and resolving management issues; and we
also provide solutions for business referrals (as explained below),
overseas business development, or support for business suc-
cession (please refer to p.12 for “Support for business and asset
succession.”) Further, we also support clients for management
improvement or business regeneration, while cooperating with
external experts/professionals*! or external organizations*2, by
supporting measures for the plan of management improvement
or giving advices for management improvement issues such as
expense reduction or sale of assets.
*1SMBC Consulting, certified tax accountants, certified public
accountants, etc.
*2 Council supporting revitalization of SMEs, Regional Economy
Vitalization Corporation of Japan, efc.

In particular, we continue to propose the most appropriate
solutions and provide support for execution, while cooperat-
ing with the corporation supporting regeneration of businesses
affected by the Great East Japan Earthquake or industrial res-
toration organizations, in order to provide solutions for clients
affected by the Great East Japan Earthquake.

Measures for business referrals

SMBC strives to refer or introduce new business partners
appropriate to the needs of clients by utilizing SMBC'’s “business
referral service” for individually referring and introducing clients
individually, in addition to referring or introducing a group of
clients to the purchasing department of major corporations, and
holding the “Business Negotiation Session”* of specific subject
matter to refer or introduce a group of clients.

* In December 2014, the "Agribusiness-Matching” was held.

Under the current trend of globalization, the needs are even
more diversified such as expanding distribution channels to
a new overseas market or increasing suppliers mainly in the
emerging countries.

In fiscal 2012, SMBC started to offer the “global business
referral” service which is the business-matching with non-
Japanese companies overseas to provide support and solutions
for clients’ overseas business development through the process
of business referral with non-Japanese companies overseas.

Currently, the business-referral is limited in certain areas of
Asia; however, we are in the process of expanding the service
by making an alliance with the Industrial Technology Research
Institute in Taiwan, in order to appropriately accommodate the
diverse needs of clients, through the global business-referral by
taking advantage of SMFG’s domestic and overseas network.
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Support for career education

As each university is required to enhance its “Career Education/
Guidance Program” in accordance with the policies set forth
by the Ministry of Education, Culture, Sports, Science and
Technology, SMBC puts its efforts into connecting the “needs of
career education of universities” and “industrial affiliated needs
of clients.” Specifically, SMBC cooperates with each university
to support career education, and we also ask our clients to
become instructors for the education programs to support the
program. For instance, there is a problem-solving program that
the client presents the business issue of “marketing of a new
product development” and students and the person in charge
of the company discuss in the program to jointly come up with
a proposal for a resolution; or we offer lectures given by the
client, including a founder of the venture company who speak
on the trends in the industry and business from the perspective
of developing entrepreneurs. Students commented that through
practical learning with participating companies, they can work
on to improve the competencies required in the society such
as “problem solving,” “presentation skills” and “team work.” On
the other hand, clients commented that innovative concepts
and ideas of students may give them clues for new business
opportunities, in addition to enhancing their CSR initiatives. We
continue to contribute to our clients’ business development by
providing assistance and support while cooperating beyond our
business framework.

Support for overseas development

In the midst of clients’ increasing needs for overseas develop-
ment, SMBC’s Global Advisory Department provides detailed
information on business sectors and respective laws and
regulations to clients who are actually considering the overseas
development, in addition to holding seminars providing informa-
tion on such as global economic conditions or economic and
financial developments of respective countries, and trends of
overseas development made by Japanese companies. We pro-
vide clients with the up-to-date information of local conditions,
relevant regulations and industrial trends. As for clients who
have already developed their business overseas, we provide
high-quality support and solutions for their business expan-
sion and business reorganizational needs. Further, the Global
Business Promotion Department also supports clients’ general
foreign exchange transactions by giving advice with respect to
their trading transactions or holding practical seminars.



Measures for the Greater China region (People’s
Republic of China, Hong Kong and Taiwan)

In order to provide attentive services for integrated domestic
and overseas offices by taking advantage of knowhow accu-
mulated in Japan for the Greater China region where many
Japanese companies have expanded, SMBC’s domestic
department has proceeded to plan and promote transac-
tions with Japanese companies for Sumitomo Mitsui Banking
Corporation (China) Limited, and Hong Kong and Taipei
branches since 2010 and 2011, respectively.

The Free Trade Experimental District was established in
Shanghai in September 2013 to proceed with liberalization in
the areas of finance and trading. SMBC (China) established a
representative office in that district in February 2014, and we are
accommodating clients’ new needs for such as cross-border
fund management and support for new investments in deregu-
lated businesses.

In February 2014, a representative office was also opened in
Kunshan in Jiangsu Province. This brought our total number of
offices in China to 16 offices, consisting of 9 branches, 6 repre-
sentative offices and the Dalian Representative Office of SMBC.
Together with the Hong Kong and Taipei branches, we continue
to develop a solid network in the Greater China region. As for
additional internationalized renminbi business, the South China
Department of Transaction Business Division established in
Hong Kong mainly handles such business, the business results
of which are steadily increasing. We will continue to provide
up-to-date information and services in Japan and overseas, and
focus to promote renminbi businesses.

SMBC strives to further improve its integrated services in
Japan and overseas while cooperating with the SMFG Group
companies that have expanded into the Greater China region
such as SMBC Nikko Securities, Sumitomo Mitsui Finance and
Leasing, and Sumitomo Mitsui Card.

Measures taken for vitalization of local
regions in Japan

Measures taken jointly with local government entities
and regional financial institutions

As the economy changes, the responsibilities and roles of local
government entities and regional financial institutions are also
diversifying. Consequently, the expectation for the support
for local industrial development and overseas development of
local companies continues to increase. The extensive network
overseas and accurate and timely information collection will
become necessary for such local government entities and
regional financial institutions. To serve such needs, we are form-
ing partnerships with local governments and regional financial
institutions using SMFG networks within Japan and overseas to
provide a wide range of services.

Furthermore, as of April 2015, SMBC has executed busi-
ness alliance agreements to support overseas businesses with
THE MINATO BANK, LTD., Kansai Urban Banking Corporation,
Mie Bank, Ltd. and seven other banks. As local recreation
is being considered as an important policy issue, respective

local governments developed their “Regional Comprehensive
Strategy” to work on initiatives for local revitalization. SMBC
continues to support initiatives of the respective local govern-
ments, including the Hyogo Prefecture which executed the
industrial development cooperation agreement with SMBC. We
continue to work with clients on initiatives for local recreation
by developing contacts between local governments and private
companies which are proactive for local business development.

Topics

@ Japan Growth Strategy Cross-Functional Team

SMBC established the “Japan Growth Strategy Cross-
Functional Team” (“CFT”) in April 2014, as a cross-departmental
team to support, through financial businesses, the “indus-
tries” which continue to support Japan in 5 and 10 years
through financial businesses and to contribute to the growth
of the Japanese economy. The CFT collects information
and knowledge related to growing sectors as considered by
SMBC and the Group, and it specifically supports clients’
businesses in terms of finance and management by assist-
ing with origination through execution of the projects. In the
foreseeable future, the CFT will support sectors which are
subject to the Japanese Government’s Japan Revitalization
Strategy, focusing on such as agriculture, healthcare, energy,
and infrastructure. SMBC continues to contribute to the
growth of clients and development of Japanese economy
through these CFT’s activities, and it also accelerates creating
the reputation that SMBC/SMFG is strong in growth areas.

@SMBC Nadeshiko Loan and Private Placement
Bonds

SMBC began offering “SMBC Nadeshiko Loan and Private
Placement Bonds” in January 2015 to support clients who
promote initiatives for participation and advancement of
women in business. When the loan is executed, the Japan
Research Institute will measure in its own criteria and disclose
conditions of the initiatives taken by the client for women’s
participation and advancement in business, and it also
provides information on precedents resolving issues of such
initiatives. SMBC continues to financially support clients’
initiatives for promoting participation and advancement of
women in business.

_
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B Services for Business Owners,
High-Net Worth Individuals and
Employees

Private Advisory Division

SMBC'’s Private Advisory Division (“PAD”) provides services for
both individuals and corporate clients by working with other
SMBC Group companies and alliance partners.

To ensure that business owners and high-net worth indi-
viduals can facilitate succession of their important businesses
and assets, PAD provides support for business and asset
transfers for which we present proposals and provide informa-
tion. Additionally, PAD offers asset management and associated
support services which provide comprehensive financial services
tailored to meet the financial asset needs of high-net worth
individuals. Further, as part of our corporate employees busi-
ness which support HR and financial strategies of our corporate
clients, PAD assists with the development and management of
benefit programs and defined-contribution pension systems.

Customers
Business owners  High-net worth individuals Head of Household Shareholder

*{ Sumitomo Mitsui Financial Group }7

Sumitomo Mitsui Banking Corporation

‘ Corporate Business Office Area Main Office/Branch ‘

Private Advisory Division

Business Asset Asset EirereE e Revised
succession succession management defined-contribution
program needs
needs needs needs pension plan needs

SMBC Nikko Securities SMBC Trust SMFG Group
SMBC Barclays Department | Bank Limited | companies:

Barclays PLC
Outside specialists (major tax accounting firms and other professionals)

Support for Business and Asset Succession
PAD presents customized proposals, including testamentary
trust business, for clients who may be concerned or have
problems with succession of their businesses and assets. We
also offer a variety of seminars to provide our clients with up-
to-date information and advice. We are also asked to provide
consultations from many business owners and high-net worth
individuals.

Topics

In fiscal 2014, SMBC supported the event sponsored by
Nikkei Inc. for holding seminars on inheritance and business
succession in the four cities of Tokyo, Osaka, Nagoya and
Fukuoka.

We continue to proactively provide appropriate informa-
tion to clients. |
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Support for Asset Management

Understanding and sharing the client’s attitude towards finan-
cial assets, we offer comprehensive financial advice on asset
allocation and appropriate management. In June 2010, SMBC,
SMBC Nikko Securities Inc. and Barclays PLC of Great Britain
collaborated to establish the “SMBC Barclays Department”
in SMBC Nikko Securities Inc. for better accommodating the
diverse asset management needs of our clients. Specifically,
we offer products and asset-allocation proposals appropriate
for our clients and their portfolio performance by efficiently
utilizing Barclays’ global research capabilities and the Financial
Personality Assessment (“FPA”) based on behavioral economics
(the tool used for understanding investment preferences and
behaviors), and also taking advantage of the diverse products
and services created by the product development team in the
SMBC Barclays Department.

. Pruvldewme range of comprehensive
life-plan Services

 Propose asset management using
SMBC- Iransacten instruments

i Shareholding
 051%stake
(as of May 1, 2015)

SMBC Group

SMBC Barclays

Department o provide array of i BB LATS
o supc pascen | asset management
services leveraging

Barclays’ expertise

Topics

In October 2013, SMBC was successful in making Société
Geénérale Private Banking Japan a wholly-owned subsidiary
of SMBC, renaming it as SMBC Trust Bank which provides
a portfolio of diverse investment products, solutions for asset

succession-related matters by taking advantage of its trust-
banking functions. |

Life Planning Support for Employees

Changes in the social environment, such as the increasing aged
population and greater mobility in employment and diversifica-
tion in life planning, may substantially affect corporate clients’
management strategies. PAD supports clients in creating and
managing employees’ financial benefit programs and defined-
contribution pension plans by using the products and services
offered by the bank and its affiliated companies, and it also sup-
ports employees to realize their life plan.

Topics

As part of reorganization of group companies associated
with defined contribution pension business, Japan Pension
Navigator Co., Ltd. and Nikko Pension Consulting Co.,
Ltd. were merged in November 2014. We plan to provide

higher-value added services to clients by combining human
resources and know-how of both companies. |



B Investment Banking

SMFG offers and provides the forward-looking financial
products and comprehensive solutions for our clients’ diverse
needs, such as fund raising and fund management, project
finance, M&A, and risk hedging, in order to assist their business
development or enhancement of their corporate value. This is
achieved by consolidating resources of the Group companies,
including SMBC and SMBC Nikko Securities Inc. Further,
SMFG strives to consistently create new business opportunities
originated by the needs of clients and investors based on its
business partnerships, networks, and risk-taking capabilities
by taking advantage of its strengths in market and products
knowledge.

Cooperation with SMBC Nikko Securities

As a core securities brokerage within the Group, SMBC Nikko
Securities has been expanding operations in partnership with
the bank. SMBC Nikko Securities ranked 2nd in the “league
table” for fiscal 2014 prepared by SMBC Nikko Securities based
on information provided by Thomson Reuters (Global Equity &
Equity-Related; Bookrunner in Japan) with a market share of
17.0%. As it became the lead manager for major projects such
as global offerings and underwriting several REITs, its ranking
moved up to the 2nd from the previous fiscal year’s 3rd place.
It also ranked 3rd in the “M&A advisory services category for
publicly announced mergers involving Japanese companies,”
(Thomson Reuters). As for analyst ranking, Institutional Investor
magazine selected six analysts of SMBC Nikko Securities as top
analysts in their respective sectors (three analysts were selected
in the previous year), while five analysts were selected as top
analysts in their respective sectors and areas by Nikkei Veritas
magazine (four analysts were selected in the previous year).
As for overseas businesses, SMBC Nikko Securities generated
substantial results in underwriting bonds by increasing the num-
ber of projects to 19 as the “active” bookrunner. The number
of corporate client referrals made by SMBC to SMBC Nikko
Securities continued to increase, and in fiscal 2014, there were
approximately 5,500 referrals (+ approx. 6% compared to the
previous fiscal year) made. Our entire Group continues to inte-
grally work to enhance services provided to corporate clients.

(For reference: League Table)
Global Equity & Equity-Related; Bookrunner in Japan
Underwriting
Share

Rank Bookrunner amount
(¥ billion) %)
1 Nomura Securities 1,454.2 38.1
2 SMBC Nikko Securities 6484 17.0
3 Daiwa Securities 5025 13.2
4 Mizuho Securities 400.0 105
5 Morgan Stanley Securities 299.9 7.9

Source: Compiled by SMBC Nikko Securities based on data from Thomson
Reuters (includes overseas operations)

Rank  Advisory

M&A Financial Advisory Project Basis

Number of Share
project (%)

1 Nomura Securities 112 4.0
2 Mizuho Securities 99 3.5
3 SMBC Nikko Securities 79 2.8
4 Daiwa Securities 62 2.2
5 SMBC 60 2.1

* As a financial group, SMFG ranked second (with 139 projects)
Source: Thomson Reuters data on public offering projects by Japanese

companies (excluding real estate projects)

Topics

@ Corporate Message and
Corporate Statement for SMBC Nikko Securities

SMBC Nikko Securities established its corporate message
of “Share the Future” and the corporate statement, as part
of brand enhancement measure for realizing to become the
“leading Japanese comprehensive securities company.”
With the attitude of “Think from Clients’ Perspectives and
Think for Clients,” we will make further efforts in focusing on
clients first.

@Initiatives for New Businesses

As aging in Japan is rapidly advancing, responding to issues
caused by aging is urgently needed. In order to provide
financial support to promote nursing-care facilities which are
important social infrastructures, SMBC has joined with Ship
Healthcare Holdings, Inc. and NEC Capital Solutions Limited
to establish Healthcare & Medical Investment Corporation,
specializing in nursing-care facilities such as paid nursing
homes and serviced residences for the elderly. This invest-
ment corporation was listed on the Tokyo Stock Exchange
in March 2015. It is expected that this listing may develop
and create new business opportunities such as nursing-
care facilities development business in the future. Through
these business opportunities, we contribute to the growth of
nursing-care and healthcare sectors.

Listing of Healthcare REIT
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Furthermore, as local banks’ need to participate in over-
seas projects increase in terms of diversifying portfolio and
strengthening of earning capability, SMBC and local banks
collaborated to develop a financeable scheme for several
overseas project finance loans by utilizing our bank’s trust
function. In November 2014, we executed a financing agree-
ment with The 77 Bank, Ltd. and The lyo Bank, Ltd. With the
increased number of investors utilizing this arrangement, we
may possibly enhance project financing capability as a result
of attracting domestic funds to finance overseas infrastruc-
ture projects.

SMBC has added the “Robot” sector to its existing
growth sectors, consisting of “New Energy,” “Environment,”
“Water,” “Resources,” “Healthcare,” and “Agriculture” in the
Growth Industry Cluster, and it continues to work on generat-
ing new business models. SMBC will continue to provide
support for clients for increasing new business opportunities
in Japan and overseas by taking advantage of its wide range

of knowledge and the network accumulated from alliances
among industry-government-academia. |

Topics

@®Project Finance

In fiscal 2014, SMBC was awarded with the “Global Bank
of the Year 2014”* in project finance field which is an award
presented to the most globally successful bank in project
financing. This is the third time to receive this award followed
by the years of 2008 and 2012. We became the first bank in
the project finance field to receive such award for the third
time. In order to accommodate the needs of clients, we
continue to provide high quality and leading project finance
services for infrastructure and resource development projects
of respective countries in the world.

* The “Global Bank of the Year” is an award presented by the “Project

Finance International,” the respected specialized magazine in project
finance field, published by Thomson Reuters.
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B International Banking

SMFG strives to provide high value-added services tailored
to the specific local needs of its globally-operating clients,
including business corporations, financial institutions, govern-
mental organizations and public entities, mainly through the
International Banking Unit of SMBC.

SMBC strives to become a global commercial bank capable
of consistently providing up-to-date information and services
by closely cooperating with other SMFG group companies
and overseas subsidiaries throughout the world, concentrating
mainly on the three regional divisions of Asia-Pacific, Americas
and EMEA.

Enhancing Initiatives for Asia
SMBC has been enhancing its initiatives in the Asian region for
realizing the “Asia-Centric” operations.

Specifically, in April 2015, SMBC established the “Transaction
Banking Solutions Dept., Asia Pacific Division” to enhance trans-
action banking operations in the said region, and also established
the “Corporate Solutions Dept., Asia ” to improve its solution-
proposing capability. Further, we established the “Credit Dept.,
Asia Pacific Division” and “Credit Dept., East Asia” within Credit
Management Dept., International Banking Unit, to develop the
community-based and promptly-processed credit/settlement
system, and also established the “Legal and Compliance Dept.,
Asia Pacific Division” to enhance the cross-regional compliance
system. Furthermore, we established the “Treasury Dept., Asia
Pacific Division” to integrally manage and advance ALM in Asia-
Pacific regions.

Through these initiatives, SMBC plans to develop global
businesses by further increasing its presence in Asia and provid-
ing excellent services being provided in Asia even to clients in
the Americas and Europe.




Further Enhancing Products and

Clients Coverage

SMBC develops the system which enables to extensively
accommodate according to clients’ needs by further enhanc-
ing the coverage for products and clients. In particular in the
aircraft leasing business, we are proceeding with initiatives for
solidly establishing our presence in the aircraft leasing industry;
SMBC Aviation Capital Limited individually executed a pur-
chase agreement with SAS Airbus of France in July 2014 to
purchase 115 aircraft and with The Boeing Company of U.S. in
November 2014 to purchase 80 aircraft. Further, in the United
States, we developed a system which enables us to more
extensively accommodate the needs of clients by establishing
the “Institutional Client Dept., Americas Division” and “Finance
Strategy Dept., Americas Division.”

Expansion of Overseas Networks

SMBC is expanding its overseas networks to provide further
services for Japanese corporate clients operating overseas and
to strengthen its capability to develop banking businesses in
emerging and growth markets. SMBC provides support for cli-
ents’ global business development by leveraging our expanding
worldwide network.

Date of
establishment Country

June 2014 Czech Sumitomo Mitsui Banking Corporation
Republic Europe Limited Prague Branch

December Spain Sumitomo Mitsui Banking Corporation

2014 Europe Limited Madrid Branch

March 2015 Mexico SMBC SOFOM

April 2015 Myanmar Yangon Branch

Initiatives for True Globalization

SMBC proceeds with promoting local employees in overseas
operations. In addition to proactively promoting them for
managerial positions for overseas-related departments, we are
implementing the initiative, ahead of other banks, to double the
number of non-Japanese executive officers from 3 to 6 in April
2015. SMBC is striving to further develop its international busi-
nesses by proactively utilizing local knowledge through promot-
ing local employees in overseas.

Topics

@Investing in Local Financial Institutions

SMBC is working to strengthen its relations with local banks
in emerging countries and growth markets. In September
2014, SMBC acquired 12.25% equity stake in ACLEDA Bank
Plc., the largest bank in Cambodia where the economy is
rapidly growing; and in March 2015, it increased its equity
stake in The Bank of East Asia, Limited in Hong Kong to
the equivalent of 17.42% equity stake by making additional
investments and making The Bank of East Asia, Limited
an equity method affiliated company. Further, in April 2015,
SMBC executed a stock purchase agreement to acquire
8.84% equity stake in Financiera de Desarrollo Nacional S.A.,

the national bank of Colombia. |
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B Treasury Markets

Through the Treasury Unit of SMBC, the Group offers higher
value-added services to meet the sophisticated and diverse
needs of its clients for transactions in the money, foreign
exchange, bond and derivative markets.

More Solutions and Services for Clients’
Market Transactions

SMBC'’s Treasury Unit offers solutions through its network in
Japan and overseas to present its corporate clients with pro-
posals for hedging transactions taking into account changes in
the financial markets. Further, to improve the convenience of
market transactions, the Unit continues to develop the functions
of i-Deal, a system which allows our clients to execute their
foreign exchange transactions on the Internet. It will continue to
support clients by meeting their market transactional needs and
offering the highest level of services in the industry.

ALM and Trading Operations

The Treasury Unit strives to ensure sound Asset-Liability
Management (“ALM”) and stable earnings by comprehensively
controlling the balance of assets, such as loans’ and liabilities’
including deposits, through ALM operations.

The Unit is committed to maximizing its earnings in trading
operations by the accurate assessment made on the trends of
the global financial market by experts of diverse products such
as interest-rate, foreign-exchange and commodity derivatives.

’ Customers ‘

[ Corporate Business Offices, Areas, Branches |

Treasury Marketing Dept. |

Planning Dept. [ Enhance customer convenience by improving our services ]
Planning and research Transactions with customers
Customer order flow
Trading Dept. Foreign exchange Treasury Dept. Deposits

International Loans

transactions
Derivative Treasury Dept. Bonds
Efficient operations transactions i Alternative
based on AM Precise ALM ||
o Bond aperations : investments
order-initiated trades || transactions operations and

and ALM hedging liquidity
Co, Cp management
fransactions

Trading ALM (Asset Liability Management)

fffffffffffffffffff —

Interbank Market

l Treasury Unit ‘ l

Fund and bond transactions
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| Topics

@®Responding to Clients’ Diversifying Needs for
Emerging Market Currency Transactions

We are committed to enhancing hedging schemes which
meet clients’ needs for cross-border transactions through
providing forward exchange contracts for currencies of
emerging countries in Asia and presenting proposals
for increasing fund efficiency. We also take the initiative in
providing timely information to clients on market trends and
currency regulations especially of Asia and Central and South
America, and holding seminars on emerging economies and
market trends presented by the analysts residing in Asia.

@Expanded Online Foreign Exchange Transaction
Services

Having provided to over 17,000 clients the “i-Deal system,”
we continue to improve its convenience for clients. In March
2014, we began handling transactions in the prevailing mar-
ket rate of Chinese yuan, thereby accommodating clients’
requests. We will continue to respond attentively to clients’
needs by improving the price-quoting function and enhancing
the leave-order function.

@®Advancing ALM Operations in the Asia-Pacific
Region
In April 2015, SMBC established the “Treasury Department,
Asia-Pacific Division” to oversee treasury operations in the
Asia-Pacific region.
This department will integrate and advance ALM in the
Asia-Pacific region, while accommodating clients’ needs for

Asian businesses mainly in foreign exchange service. |

B Transaction Banking Business

Strengthening Transaction Banking Business
At SMBC, the Transaction Business Division is being established
to provide integrated and flexible products and services by
cooperating among relevant departments in order to accommo-
date domestic and overseas corporate clients’ diverse transac-
tion needs and associated financial needs.

The Transaction Business Division consists of the follow-
ing departments which provide transaction-related services
and execute measures; the Global Transaction Banking
Department, the Transaction Banking Department, the Asset
Finance Department, the Global Advisory Department, the
Global Business Promotion Department, the Global Transaction
Support Department, the Global Transaction Office, the
E-Transaction Business Center, and the Transaction Business
Planning Department. Our experts in respective departments
in Japan and overseas extensively and promptly accommodate
the needs of clients by cooperating to provide high-value added
information, and to improve and enhance system products and
solutions.



Transaction Business

Clients

Identifying needs
Front office operations

Wholesale Retail

International

Providing information, solutions
Division Operation Offices

Global Transaction Banking Dept. | | Overseas transaction solutions, global fund management
Transaction Banking Dept. || D hange, domesiic ransaction
Global Advisory Dept. Overseas business development advisory services
Global Business Promotion Dept. | Planning and promotion of foreign exchange operations Osaka Global Transaction Office| | foreign
exchange
Global Transaction Support Dept. || Plmingof ¥ i fr e oetons —11 [Nagoy Transaction Office | | services
Asset Finance Dept. Planning and promation for transaction finance

Generl margementof
Transaction Business Planning Dept. X ET

Collaboration

Tokyo Global Transaction Office | | oo senices

Desk for

Juawabieuew payelbiaju]

Call Centers for
tion Business Center | | electronic banking
services

[ Transaction-related departments/Transaction-related group companies |

Strengthening Transaction Banking Products
to Respond to Clients’ Needs

SMBC is enhancing transaction banking products to respond to
domestic and overseas clients’ transactions and cash manage-
ment needs.

We continue to improve and enhance electronic bank-
ing services, for the “PC Bank Web21” and a new means of
settlement of “Densai Net” in order to support our clients’ daily
cash management, “Global e-Trade Service” in order to sup-
port foreign exchange and trade transactions in Japan, and
“SMAR&TS” in overseas etc.

We also continue to strengthen our support for our clients in
Japan and overseas by providing high value-added information;
providing the system to support cash and financial management
for the corporate group; improving foreign currency transactions
including renminbi; and allocating specialized professionals.

High Value-Added Services Integrally Provided
by SMFG

SMFG works at providing high value-added services with
respect to the transaction banking business of clients.

SMBC and Financial Link Company, Limited integrally work
with SMFG to provide “SMFG-BPO Services” (BPO: Business
Process Outsourcing) by accommodating needs for improving the
business process associated with fund collection and repayment.

Further, SMBC Finance Service Co., Ltd. mainly provides
“collection agency service (account transfers)” and “conve-
nience store’s payment collection agency service,” and the
number of transactions for these services is the highest in
Japan. Furthermore, as for the yearly expanding EC market,
we provide diverse solutions as one of the core companies in
charge of transaction banking business for SMFG, by provid-
ing “Transaction Station” platform which collectively provides
diverse transaction means such as credit card payment and
bank transfer settlement.

Enhancing each Settlement System and
Settlement Infrastructure
It is imperative that we appropriately enhance the settlement

system and settlement infrastructure which support the provi-

sion of secure settlement services for our clients. We are work-

ing to reduce risks related to settlements, such as the Japanese

Government Bond settlement cycle reform, in addition to

services for SWIFT* and BOJ-Net.

* Society for Worldwide Interbank Financial Telecommunication
A member-owned cooperative that provides the communica-
tions platform connected more than 10,000 financial institu-
fions in 210 countries.

| Topics

@®Enhancing Support System for Transaction-
Related Services by Integrating Banking
Subsidiaries into Banking Organization

In October 2014, SMBC integrated SMBC International

Operations Co., Ltd., which was contracted for handling

foreign exchange administrative operations, into SMBC. We

plan to improve our support for clients by enhancing both
administrative operations and marketing promotion for foreign
exchange businesses.

Further, in December 2014, we integrated the E-Transaction
Business Center which processes various inquiries related
to EB services within SMBC Center Service Co., Ltd., into
SMBC. We will work to provide more-value added informa-
tion to clients through our call center.

@®Consecutively Highly Evaluated for Customer
Satisfaction Survey of ASIAMONEY Magazine

As a result of focusing to improve CMS for years, we

have been consecutively highly evaluated by clients in the

customer satisfaction survey annually conducted by the

ASIAMONEY magazine by ranking 3rd overall (1st among

Japanese banks) for the comprehensive evaluation for Asia
Pacific regions (including foreign banks). |

Group Companies mainly associated with Settlement

SMBC FINANCE SERVICE CO, LTD.

Corporate Name: SMBC Finance Service Co., Ltd.

Business Description:  Collecting agent, factoring business

Establishment Date: December 5, 1972

Location of Head Office: 5-27, Mita 3-chome, Minato-ku,
Tokyo

Representative Director: Kazuhiko Kashikura

Number of Employees: 454

Financial <Eink

Corporate Name: Financial Link Company, Limited

Business Description: Data processing service and consultation
business

Establishment Date: April 1, 2004

Location of Head Office: 1-11, Shinbashi 3-chome, Minato-ku, Tokyo
Representative Director: Akihiro Kitahara

Number of Employees: 24
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Group Companies (as of March 31, 2015)

www.smfg.co.jp/english/

SMF G SUMITOMO MITSUI
FINANCIAL GROUP

The companies of the Sumitomo Mitsui Financial Group (SMFG) primar- Company Name: Sumitomo Mitsui Financial Group, Inc.
ily conduct commercial banking through the following financial services: Business Description:
leasing, securities, consumer finance, system development and data Management of banking subsidiaries (under the stipulations of Japan’s Banking
processing. Act) and of non-bank subsidiaries, as well as the performance of ancillary functions
Establishment: December 2, 2002
4 I Head Office: 1-2, Marunouchi 1-chome, Chiyoda-ku, Tokyo, Japan
BUSineSS MiSSion Chairman of the Board: Masayuki Oku
. President: Koichi Miyata
® We grow and prosper together with our customers, (Concurrent Director at Sumitomo Mitsui Banking Corporation)
by providing services of greater value to them. Capital: ¥2,337.8 billion
@ We aim to maximize our shareholders’ value through Stock Exchange Listings: ,
. i Tokyo Stock Exchange (First Section)
the continuous growth of our business. Nagoya Stock Exchange (First Section)
® \We create a work environment that encourages and Note: American Depositary Receipts (ADRs) are listed on the New York Stock
rewards diligent and highly-motivated employees. Exchange.
- J

SUMITOMO MITSUI BANKING CORPORATION  — "w:smbe.co.jp/globalfindex.tmi

Sumitomo Mitsui  Banking Corporation : Company Name: Sumitomo Mitsui Banking Corporation
(“SMBC”) was established in April 2001 Business Profile: Commercial banking
through the merger of two leading banks of : Establishment: June 6, 1996

The Sakura Bank, Limited and The Sumitomo : Head Office: 1-2, Marunouchi 1-chome, Chiyoda-ku, Credit Ratings (as of June 30, 2015)
Bank, Limited. Sumitomo Mitsui Financial Tokyo, Japan Long-term  Short-term
. President and CEO: Takeshi Kunibe (Concurrent Moody’s Al P-1

Group, Inc. was established in December 2002

N Director at Sumitomo Mitsui Standard & Poor’s A+ A-1
as a bank holding company through the share ! um! sul

Financial Group) Fitch Ratings A- F1

transfer, and SMBC became a wholly owned Number of Employees: 26.416 R&l AA- a-1+
subsidiary of SMFG. In March 2003, SMBC : " ) — JCH o) =il
. . . Number of branches and other business locations:
merged with The Wakashio Bank, Ltd. In Japan: 1,924* Financial Information (Consolidated basis, years ended March 31)
SMBC’s competitive advantages include : Branches: o i 507 Billions of yen

its solid and extensive client base, the expedi- {nclucing 48 specialized deposit account branches) - 201 IS0 (] - 012

i i i i : " o r the Year:

tious implementation of strategies, and also the Banking agencies: , o2 Ordinary income.... ¥ 3,199.4 ¥ 31059 ¥ 28106 ¥ 2,687.9

service providing capability of its predominant gﬂgﬁz the%“ge"rr\‘,%g%gﬁ:g'_"”g business: gfg Ordinary proft ...... 11989 12987 9287 8579

Group companies. SMBC, as a core mem- : Overseas: ’ 39 Netincome.........  736.9 785.6 7345 533.8

ber of SMFG, integrally work with other Group Branches: 15 ALYtea"Ef:d: V100850 ¥ 86107 ¥ 82570 ¥ 12767
; i i iati : Sub-branches: 17 €1 88S8(S...vvverrnnnn, ¥ 10,000, Helh A ek

companies to provide highly sophisticated and  : Representative offices: 7 Total assefs......... 17,5501 1558241 1432031 1382516

Comprehenswe financial services to clients. *The number of domestic branches excludes ATMs located

at the business sites of companies and at retail convenience
stores. Since fiscal 2014, the number of representative offices
includes corporate banking department and other depart-
ments. The number of overseas branches excludes
locally-incorporated companies in overseas.

www.smfl.co.jp/english/

Sumitomo Mitsui Finance and Leasing vices which would contribute to the clients’
(“SMFL”) is a leading Japanese leasing com- : management issues.
pany with an extensive history of going back :

to its origination of the leasing business in Credit Ratings (s of June 30, 2015)
1968. SMFL provides financial solutions and : Long-term  Short-term
services appropriate to diversifying needs of : Ral A+ a-1
clients by taking advantage of its abundant HeR L o=l
experiences and past performance results : Financial Information (Years ended March 31)
accumulated over the years. . Company Name: Sumitomo Mitsui Finance and 2015 ZB()TLO”S szﬁg 2012

_ SMFL proactlvely works on the areas with Leasing Company, Limited T —
high social needs such as environment/ . Business Profile: Leasing Leasing transaction
energy, medical/nursing care, leasing, or sale : Establishment: February 4, 1963 G i WRR— ¥18658 ¥1767.0 ¥13354 Y¥1,080.1
of secondhand machines’ while appropri_ Head Office: Operatingrevgnue.... 1,152.0 1,037.2 992.2 951.9
ately responding to the globalization of capital :  Tokyo Head Office: 3-9-4, Nishi-himbashi, Minato-ku, Tokyo om0 Pt 848 786 576 610
expenditures and sales activities in overseas. |  Osaka Head Office: 3-10-19, Minami-Semba, Chuo-ku, Osaka

SMFL develops along with clients by : President & CEO: Yoshinori Kawamura
promptly providing diverse products and ser- : Number of Employees: 2,358
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SMBC Nikko Securities Inc. (formerly Nikko
Cordial Securities Inc.), which was estab-
lished in July 1918, has developed solid
relationships of trust with its individuals and
corporate clients over the last nine decades.
It became a member of the SMFG Group
in October 2009. In April 2011, its corpo-
rate name was changed to SMBC Nikko
Securities from Nikko Cordial Securities.
Consistently working closely with SMBC,
SMBC Nikko Securities provides comprehen-
sive and highly sophisticated securities and
investment banking services.

As a core member of SMFG, SMBC Nikko
Securities strives to become the leading
securities and investment banking company
in Japan.

www.smbcnikko.co.jp/en

Company Name: SMBC Nikko Securities Inc.

Business Profile: Securities

Establishment: June 15, 2009

Head Office: 3-1, Marunouchi 3-chome,
Chiyoda-ku, Tokyo

President & CEO: Tetsuya Kubo

Number of Employees: 8,085

SMBC FRIEND SECURITIES CO, LTD.

SMBC Friend Securities Co., Ltd. is a securi-
ties company with one of the best financial
foundations and efficient operations in the
industry, and provides a full range of securi-
ties services focusing mainly on retail clients.
SMBC Friend Securities provides highly effi-
cient nationwide network operations offering
services closely tailored to the needs of its
clients and the communities while operating
a new business model of online financial con-
sulting services.

SMBC Friend Securities will continue

to develop consistently toward its goal of

becoming “the securities company especially

appreciated by clients,” offering high-quality

products and services accommodating the
needs of its clients and building trust for its
clients.

I'I SUMITOMO MITSUI CARD COMPANY, LIMITED

As the pioneer in the issuance of the Visa

Card in Japan and a leader in the domestic
credit card industry, Sumitomo Mitsui Card
Company, Limited, enjoys the strong support
of its many customers and plays a major role
as one of the strategic businesses of SMFG.
Leveraging its strong brand image and its

excellent capabilities across a wide range of :

card-related services, the company provides
settlement and financing services focused
around providing credit services that meet
customer needs. Through its credit card busi-

ness operations, the company aims to actively

contribute to the realization of comfortable
and affluent consumer lifestyles and make fur-
ther dramatic advances as a leading brand in
its industry sector.

Company Name: SMBC Friend Securities Co., Ltd.

Business Profile: Securities

Establishment: March 2, 1948

Head Office: 7-12, Kabuto-cho, Nihonbashi,
Chuo-ku, Tokyo

President & CEO: Koichi Danno

Number of Employees: 1,962

Credit Ratings (as of June 30, 2015)
Long-term  Short-term

Moody’s A1 P-1
Standard & Poor’s A+ A1
R&l AA- a-1+
JCR AA -

Financial Information (Years ended March 31)
Billions of yen

2015 2014 2013 2012

For the Year:
Operating revenue...  ¥332.6 ¥333.4 ¥280.5 ¥233.6
Operating income ... 89.1 96.6 72.7 39.9

www.smbc-friend.co.jp

(Japanese only)

Financial Information (Years ended March 31)
Billions of yen

2015 2014 2013 2012

For the Year:
Operating revenue... ~ ¥50.0 ¥57.7 ¥59.6 ¥47.5
Operating profit...... 9.8 15.0 18.0 8.3

www.smbc-card.com

Company Name: Sumitomo Mitsui Card
Company, Limited
Business Profile: Credit card
Establishment: December 26, 1967
Head Office:
Tokyo Head Office: 1-2-20, Kaigan,
Minato-ku, Tokyo
Osaka Head Office: 4-5-15, Imabashi,
Chuo-ku, Osaka
President & CEO: Ken Kubo
(Appointed on June 24, 2015)
Number of Employees: 2,392

(Japanese only)

Credit Ratings (as of June 30, 2015)

Long-term  Short-term
Ra&l AA- a1+
JCR AA- J-1+

Financial Information (Years ended March 31)
Billions of yen

2015 2014 2013 2012
For the Year:

Revenue from credit
card operations........ ¥10,091.0 ¥9,131.5 ¥8,194.6 ¥7,560.6

Operating revenue...... 198.4 1914 185.6 182.2
Operating profit.......... 419 43.6 447 431

At Year-End:
Number of cardholders
(in thousands)........... 23490 22,994 22,400 21,647
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www.cedyna.co.jp/english/

Cedyna Financial Corporation was formed in
April 2009 as a result of the merger of OMC
Card, Inc., Central Finance Co., Ltd. and
QUOQ Inc., consolidating their client bases,
marketing capabilities and expert knowledge.
As a member of SMFG, it strives to become
“the number one credit card business entity
in Japan” by closely working with Sumitomo
Mitsui Card.

Cedyna strives to become SMFG’s com-
prehensive payment finance company in the
consumer finance business by integrating the
credit card, consumer credit and financing
solution core businesses, and providing indi-
vidual clients with secure and convenient pay-
ment methods means for making payments.

Company Name: Cedyna Financial Corporation
Business Profile: Credit card and installment
Establishment: September 11, 1950
Head Office:

Head Office: 3-23-20 Marunouchi, Naka-ku,

Nagoya
Tokyo Head Office: 2-16-4 Konan, Minato-ku,
Tokyo

President & CEO: Satoru Nakanishi
Number of Employees: 3,136

Credit Ratings (as of June 30, 2015)
Long-term  Short-term
JCR A+ J-1
Financial Information (Years ended March 31)
Billions of yen

2015 2014 2013 2012
For the Year:
Operating revenue...... ¥149.8 ¥160.0 ¥164.0 ¥176.2
Operating profit (loss)... 1.0 10.7 134 (27.6)
At Year-End:
Number of cardholders
(in thousands) .........c...... 17,633 18,412 19,480 21,091

I'I SMBC CONSUMER FINANCE www.smbc-cf.com/english/

Since its establishment in 1962, with the original
goal of striving to be the best in offering innova-
tive financial services for consumers, Promise
Co., Ltd., currently known as SMBC Consumer
Finance Co., Ltd., has developed convenient
loan products for individuals to accommodate
to the changing times and has created an
appropriate system for offering loan consulta-
tion services and executing loan agreements.

SMBC Consumer Finance strives to
become the kind of global consumer finance
company which “would be able to earn the
utmost trust of clients” by consistently and
sincerely working with clients as an expert in
the consumer finance business.

©)

The Japan Research Institute, Limited (JRI),
an intelligence engineering company, pro-
vides high value-added information system,
consultation and think-tank services. In addi-
tion to providing financial consultation ser-
vices on management reform, IT, the planning
and development of strategic information
systems and outsourcing, it also conducts
diverse activities including domestic and
international economic research and analy-
sis, policy recommendations and business
incubation.

20 |SMFG 2015

Company Name: SMBC Consumer Finance Co., Ltd.
Business Profile: Consumer lending
Establishment: March 20, 1962

Head Office: 4-12-15, Ginza, Chuo-ku, Tokyo
President & CEO: Ryoji Yukino

Number of Employees: 2,145

Cooperation:
SHOCHIKU Co., Ltd.,
Kabuki-za Co., Ltd.
Credit Ratings (as of June 30, 2015)
Long-term  Short-term
R&l A —
JCR A- —

Financial Information (Years ended March 31)
Billions of yen

2015 2014 2013 2012
For the Year:
Operating revenue.... ¥168.6 ¥164.7 ¥164.6 ¥172.2
Operating profit (l0ss)... 3.7 15.9 423 (166.6)

www.jri.co.jp/english/

Company Name: The Japan Research Institute,
Limited
Business Profile: System development, data
processing, management
consulting and economic
research
Establishment: November 1, 2002
Head Office:
Tokyo Head Office: 2-18-1 Higashi-Gotanda,
Shinagawa-ku, Tokyo
Osaka Head Office: 2-2-4, Tosabori,
Nishi-ku, Osaka
President & CEO: Masahiro Fuchizaki
(Appointed on May 1, 2015)
Number of Employees: 2,198

Financial Information (Years ended March 31)
Billions of yen

2015 2014 2013 2012

For the Year:
Operating revenue.... ¥111.1 ¥106.0 ¥96.2 ¥87.5
Operating profit........ 1.7 1.7 18 0.8



Financial Highlights

Sumitomo Mitsui Financial Group (Consolidated)

Millions of yen

Year ended March 31 2015 2014 2013 2012 2011

For the Year:
Ordinary iINCOME. ......couereerrireeeeneee et ¥ 4,851,202 ¥ 4,641,880 ¥ 4,326,424 ¥ 3,945,282 ¥ 3,845,861
Ordinary Profit........ccceeeeererenienereese e 1,321,156 1,432,332 1,073,745 935,571 825,428
Net income 753,610 835,357 794,059 518,536 475,895
Comprehensive iINCOME .......cocuviueieieiieeeee e 2,063,510 1,303,295 1,458,107 665,232 413,375

At Year-End:
Total Net assets.......covveiiiireereeee e ¥ 10,696,271 ¥ 9,005,019 ¥ 8,443,218 ¥ 7,254,976 ¥ 7,132,073
TOtal @SSELS..c.viiueieiiiieieie e 183,442,585 161,534,387 148,696,800 143,040,672 137,803,098
Capital ratio / / / 16.93% 16.63%
Total capital ratio (International Standard) . 16.58% 15.51% 14.71% / /
Tier 1 capital ratio (International Standard).................. 12.89% 12.19% 10.93% / /
Common equity Tier 1 capital ratio

(International Standard)..........ccccceeeiieriecieenieeieeneenn 11.30% 10.63% 9.38% / /

Number of emPplOYEes.........ooveiiiiiiiiiiieee e 68,739 66,475 64,635 64,225 61,555

Note: “Number of employees” has been reported on the basis of full-time workers. “Number of employees” includes locally hired overseas staff members but

excludes contract employees and temporary staff.
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Sumitomo Mitsui Banking Corporation

4 Consolidated

Millions of yen

Year ended March 31 2015 2014 2013 2012 2011
For the Year:
Ordinary INCOME.......ccociriiiiiicii e ¥ 3,199,409 ¥ 3,105,992 ¥ 2,810,681 ¥ 2,687,911 ¥ 2,771,380
Ordinary profit... 1,198,955 1,298,738 928,713 857,919 751,208
Net income 736,904 785,687 734,514 533,816 450,832
Comprehensive iNCOME .......ccceeiierreerieeee e 1,937,374 1,174,292 1,373,623 632,889 363,689
At Year-End:
Total net assets ¥ 10,036,003 ¥ 8,640,763 ¥ 8,257,091 ¥ 7,276,706 ¥ 6,983,132
Total assets 177,559,197 155,824,141 143,208,127 138,251,602 132,715,674
Capital ratio (International standard) / / / 19.63% 19.16%
Total capital ratio (International standard) .... 17.93% 17.08% 16.84% / /
Tier 1 capital ratio (International standard) .................. 13.91% 13.43% 12.69% / /
Common equity Tier 1 capital ratio
(International standard) ............cccceviiiiiiniiiciiniee 12.61% 12.27% 11.26% / /
Number of emPplOYEes........cooieiiiiriiiiiieeereeeeeeeee 50,249 48,824 47,852 50,768 48,219
Note: “Number of employees” has been reported on the basis of full-time workers. “Number of employees” includes locally hired overseas staff members but
excludes contract employees and temporary staff.
4 Nonconsolidated
Millions of yen
Year ended March 31 2015 2014 2013 2012 2011
For the Year:
Ordinary iINCOME.....cocuuiiiiiriiriee sttt ¥ 2,370,998 ¥ 2,342,582 ¥ 2,121,369 ¥ 2,018,585 ¥ 2,108,724
Trust fees 1,872 1,972 1,823 1,736 2,299
Gross banking profit (A) .. 1,634,284 1,558,184 1,540,095 1,632,511 1,631,759
Expenses (excluding nonrecurring losses) (B) . 791,211 745,745 727,736 719,495 699,197
Overhead ratio (B) / (A). 48.4% 47.9% 47.3% 46.9% 45.6%
Banking profit 843,073 812,438 812,358 856,796 844,897
Banking profit (before provision for general
reserve for possible loan losses)... 843,073 812,438 812,358 813,015 832,562
Ordinary profit 955,992 952,516 670,852 695,342 595,704
NEt INCOME..ciiieiciie e 643,015 605,255 617,791 477,973 421,180
At Year-End:
Total net assets ¥ 7,998,715 ¥ 7,077,360 ¥ 6,554,446 ¥ 5,709,663 ¥ 5,559,293
Total assets 154,724,079 135,966,434 125,910,020 119,037,469 115,484,907
Deposits 91,337,714 84,137,339 80,006,438 75,804,088 74,036,469
Loans and bills discounted ... 68,274,308 63,370,678 59,770,763 56,411,492 55,237,613
Securities 29,985,267 27,317,549 41,347,000 42,441,134 39,853,432
Trust assets and liabilities.. 3,642,957 3,108,012 2,693,092 1,891,853 1,576,094
Loans and bills discounted 373,230 143,469 131,913 235,829 237,383
Securities.... 1,451,206 1,420,372 1,076,225 424,478 444,664
Capital stock 1,770,996 1,770,996 1,770,996 1,770,996 1,770,996
Number of shares issued (in thousands)
CommON STOCK...c.ueiieeeiie e 106,248 106,248 106,248 106,248 106,248
Preferred stock... 70 70 70 70 70
Dividend payout ratio.. 77.18% 75.92% 29.04% 33.00% 35.53%
Capital ratio (International standard).........c.ccecevvrennn / / / 21.91% 21.45%
Total capital ratio (International standard) ................... 18.89% 18.30% 18.62% / /
Tier 1 capital ratio (International standard) .................. 14.26% 14.02% 13.92% / /
Common equity Tier 1 capital ratio
(International standard) ............cceceviiiiieniniciniciiis 12.80% 12.47% 11.75% / /
Number of employees........covevriiiiiiiiienieeee e 26,416 22,915 22,569 22,686 22,524

Note: “Number of employees” has been reported on the basis of full-time workers. “Number of employees” includes locally hired overseas staff members but
excludes contract employees, temporary staff, and executive officers who are not also Board members.
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Financial Review

Sumitomo Mitsui Financial Group (Consolidated)

Sumitomo Mitsui Financial Group, Inc. and Subsidiaries

The following is a summary of SMFG’s consolidated financial results for the fiscal year ended March 31, 2015.

1. Operating Results

Operating results for fiscal 2014 include the results of 317
consolidated subsidiaries and 50 subsidiaries and affiliates
accounted for by the equity method.

In fiscal 2014, consolidated net business profit declined
by ¥28.1 billion year-on-year to ¥1,310.5 billion. Although
consolidated gross profit increased largely due to increased
profits from the Treasury Unit at SMBC resulting from ALM
operations that quickly responded to market conditions
and steady results of major subsidiaries such as Sumitomo
Mitsui Finance and Leasing, SMBC Nikko Securities,
Sumitomo Mitsui Card and SMBC Consumer Finance;

general and administrative expenses were up as SMBC
aimed at strengthening its overseas business, and SMBC
Nikko Securities, Sumitomo Mitsui Card and other subsidiar-
ies aimed at enhancing the business structure to generate
stronger top-line growth.

Ordinary profit after adjustment for total credit cost,
net gains on stocks, and other items, declined by ¥111.2
billion year-on-year to ¥1,321.2 billion. Net income after
adjustment for extraordinary gains (losses) and income taxes
declined by ¥81.7 billion to ¥753.6 billion.

Number of Consolidated Subsidiaries, and Subsidiaries and Affiliates Accounted for by the Equity Method

Increase (decrease)

March 31 2015 (A) 2014 (B) A) - (B)
Consolidated SUDSIAIAIES .....cccveieeiiieeeie e e e e e e e e e e e eeeennnnes 317 324 7)
Subsidiaries and affiliates accounted for by the equity method............ccccoiiininnn. 50 46 4

Income Summary

Millions of yen

Increase (decrease)

Year ended March 31 2015 (A) 2014 (B) (A) - (B)
Consolidated gross Profit .......c.eeeceerieiiie e ¥ 2,980,403 ¥ 2,898,233 ¥ 82,170
Net interest income 1,505,178 1,484,169 21,009
LT (TP 2,890 2,472 418
Net fees and COMMISSIONS ......eiiiiiiiiiiiiie e e e e e e e 996,676 984,589 12,087
Net trading INCOME ....eiiiiiieee e e e e 195,119 211,881 (16,762)
Net other operating INCOME .......coo i 280,538 215,120 65,418
General and administrative EXPENSES .......ccueiiiiiiiieiiiee et (1,659,341) (1,569,945) (89,396)
Equity in gains of affiliates.........ccocuueiiiii (10,600) 10,241 (20,841)
Consolidated net busiNeSS Profit.........cccceeeccieeicieee e 1,310,461 1,338,530 (28,069)
Net total credit cost (7,847) 49,073 (56,920)
L@ e 1Y =3O (84,985) (96,797) 11,812
Gains on reversal of reserve for possible 10aNn I0SSES ........ccccceeeeeceeeieiiee e 61,158 136,212 (75,054)
Recoveries of written-off ClaIMS .......cccociiiiiiee e 15,979 9,657 6,322
GaiNS (IOSSES) ON STOCKS. ... .ceiutiiiiiiiie ettt en e 66,693 89,243 (22,550)
NEt OthEI EXPENSES .....eeeeeiiee ettt e e e e e et e e e e e e e ne e e e naeeeeeneeeeenneeeannes (48,151) (44,514) (3,637)
(@] (o[ aT= TV o 7o) {1 TSR RRRUS 1,321,156 1,432,332 (111,176)
Extraordinary gains (IOSSES).....cccuutiuiiriiaitieiieeriee ettt (11,778) (9,637) (2,141)
Losses on disposal of fixed assets (6,315) (8,595) 2,280
Losses on impairment of fixed @ssets..........cccooiiiiiiiiiiiiicec (5,109) (3,348) (1,761)
Income before income taxes and mMinority INtEreStS ........ccceerveriieiiiiie e 1,309,377 1,422,694 (113,317)
INCOME tAXES — CUITENT ....eeieieiee ettt e e et e e e e e e e e e e nnae e e enneeeenneeas (325,341) (290,186) (35,155)
INCOME taXES—AETEITEA ......eeeeeeee e e (116,020) (168,618) 52,598
Income before MiNority INTErESES......oc.iiiiiiiiie e 868,015 963,889 (95,874)
Minority interests in NEtINCOME ......ooiiiiiiii e (114,405) (128,532) 14,127
INEE INCOME ...ttt s te et e e bt e st e e bt e saeeeeseeenseesseesnneenne ¥ 753,610 ¥ 835,357 ¥ (81,747)

Notes: 1. Consolidated gross profit = (Interest income — Interest expenses) + Trust fees + (Fees and commissions — Fees and commissions payments)
+ (Trading income — Trading losses) + (Other operating income — Other operating expenses)
2. In fiscal 2014 the definition of consolidated net business profit changed. The change has been retroactively applied to the figures for fiscal 2013.
3. Credit costs = Write-off of loans + Provision for reserve for possible loan losses + Others (Losses on sales of delinquent loans)
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Loans and bills discounted as of March 31, 2015 totaled Japan and overseas, and negotiable certificates of deposit

¥73,068.2 billion, a year-on-year increase of ¥4,840.6 bil- increased by ¥112.4 billion year-on-year to ¥13,825.9 billion.

lion, as lending increased primarily in Asia and the Americas, Net assets totaled ¥10,696.3 billion. Of this amount,

and securities totaled ¥29,633.7 billion, an increase of stockholders’ equity was ¥7,018.4 billion, mainly due to

¥2,480.9 billion. the recording of net income, and the payment of cash
Deposits as of March 31, 2015 increased by ¥6,716.0 dividends. Total accumulated other comprehensive income

billion year-on-year to ¥101,047.9 billion due to increases in amounted to ¥2,003.9 billion.

Assets, Liabilities and Net Assets

Millions of yen

Increase (decrease)

March 31 2015 (A) 2014 (B) A) - (B)
ST S ¥183,442,585 ¥161,534,387 ¥21,908,198
Loans and bills diSCOUNTEA............uuuiiiiieicieiee e e 73,068,240 68,227,688 4,840,552
SO CUNTIES 1. euvteeeiettieeecttee e ettt e e et e e e ete e e s ebeeeeeaseeesaeeeeasseeesasseeesasseeeesseeeeasseeesasseesanseannns 29,633,667 27,152,781 2,480,886
[ o)1 =TS 172,746,314 152,529,368 20,216,946
[T 0 o] £SO PRRR 101,047,918 94,331,925 6,715,993
Negotiable certificates Of AEPOSIt......ccueeiiuiiiiiiiii e 13,825,898 13,713,539 112,359
LIS =TT SO 10,696,271 9,005,019 1,691,252
StOCKNOIAEI'S EQUILY ....eeeeieeiieetie ettt st a e eeeennes 7,018,389 6,401,215 617,174
Total accumulated other comprehensive iNCOME.........coovveieiiiiiiiiiiee e 2,003,859 877,971 1,125,888

2. Unrealized Gains (Losses) on Securities

Net unrealized gains on securities as of March 31, 2015
increased by ¥1,186.8 billion year-on-year to ¥2,625.6
billion, mainly as a result of an increase in unrealized gains
on stocks reflecting rising stock prices.

Unrealized Gains (Losses) on Securities

Millions of yen

2015 2014
Consolidated Consolidated
balance Net unrealized Unrealized Unrealized balance Net unrealized
March 31 sheet amount gains (losses) (A) (A)-(B) gains losses sheet amount gains (losses) (B)
Held-to-maturity securities................. ¥ 3,397,151 ¥ 20,580 ¥ (13,217) ¥ 20,580 ¥ - ¥ 4,536,849 ¥ 33,797
Other securities ......cccceeeveeeeecieeeeecenenn, 26,263,425 2,604,985 1,199,993 2,653,967 48,981 22,866,288 1,404,992
StOCKS. ..eeieieieee e 4,065,999 2,054,308 923,165 2,073,367 19,059 3,185,495 1,131,143
BONAS ..oviiiiiieieeeee s 13,699,561 50,028 (15,564) 60,837 10,808 12,897,704 65,592
JGBS ... 11,007,006 12,968 (9,486) 18,649 5,680 9,911,224 22,454
Others...ccoueeeee e 8,497,864 500,649 292,394 519,762 19,113 6,783,089 208,255
Foreign bonds 5,633,955 29,230 56,341 45,707 16,477 4,304,903 27,111)
Other money held in trust................... 7,087 - — - - 23,120 —
Total ..o 29,667,664 2,625,566 1,186,777 2,674,548 48,981 27,426,258 1,438,789
4,065,999 2,054,308 923,165 2,073,367 19,059 3,185,495 1,131,143
17,096,713 70,609 (28,779) 81,417 10,808 17,425,753 99,388
8,504,952 500,649 292,392 519,762 19,113 6,815,009 208,257

Notes: 1. The figures above include unrealized gains (losses) on negotiable certificates of deposit in “Cash and due from banks” and “Deposits with banks” and
beneficiary claims on loan trusts in “Monetary claims bought,” etc.
2. Unrealized gains (losses) on stocks (including foreign stocks) are mainly calculated using the average market price during the final month of the respective
reporting period. The rest of the securities are valuated at the market price as of the balance sheet date.
3. “Other securities” and “Other money held in trust” are valuated and recorded on the consolidated balance sheet at market prices. The figures in the table
above indicate the differences between the acquisition costs (or amortized costs) and the consolidated balance sheet amounts.

Net unrealized gains (losses) on other securities, as of March 31, 2015 and 2014, included gains of ¥29,870 million and ¥17,031 million, respectively,
which were recognized in the statements of income by applying fair value hedge accounting. As a result, the amounts recorded in net assets, as of March
31, 2015 and 2014, were reduced by ¥29,870 million and ¥17,031 million, respectively.

4. Floating-rate Japanese government bonds which SMFG held as “Other securities” are carried on the consolidated balance sheet at their reasonably
estimated amounts in accordance with the “Practical Solution on Measurement of Fair Value for Financial Assets” (Accounting Standards Board of Japan
(“ASBJ”) Practical Issues Task Force No. 25).
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3. Consolidated Capital Ratio

As of March 31, 2015, Common equity Tier 1 capital ratio
rose by 0.67% year-on-year to 11.30%, Tier 1 capital
ratio increased by 0.70% to 12.89% and total capital ratio
increased by 1.07% to 16.58%, reflecting the recording of
net income and other factors.

Consolidated Capital Ratio (International Standard)

Millions of yen

Increase (decrease)

March 31 2015 (A) 2014 (B) A - (B)
Common equity Tier 1 Capital .........cooueirieiiieeieeee e ¥ 7,476,520 ¥ 6,550,796 ¥ 925,724
Common equity Tier 1 capital ratio .. 11.30% 10.63% 0.67%
Additional Tier 1 capital............c....... 1,052,105 963,538 88,567

Tier 1 capital.......ccccovrueenee. 8,528,626 7,514,335 1,014,291

Tier 1 capital ratio... 12.89% 12.19% 0.70%

Tier 2 capital....... 2,437,289 2,047,083 390,206

Total capital .. 10,965,916 9,561,418 1,404,498

Total capital ratio........ . 16.58% 15.51% 1.07%

Risk WeIghted @SSEtS......couiiiiiiiiiiiie e 66,136,801 61,623,294 4,513,507
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Sumitomo Mitsui Banking Corporation (Nonconsolidated)

Sumitomo Mitsui Banking Corporation

The following is @ summary of SMBC’s nonconsolidated financial results for the fiscal year ended March 31, 2015.

1. Operating Results

In fiscal 2014, gross banking profit increased by ¥76.1 billion
year-on-year to ¥1,634.3 billion, and expenses (excluding
nonrecurring losses) increased by ¥45.5 billion to ¥791.2 bil-
lion. As a result, banking profit (before provision for general
reserve for possible loan losses) increased by ¥30.6 billion
year-on-year to ¥843.1 billion.

Ordinary profit, after the adjustment of banking profit
(before provision for general reserve for possible loan losses)
for non-recurring items such as credit costs and net gains
on stocks, increased by ¥3.5 billion year-on-year to ¥956.0
billion.

Net income, after the adjustment of ordinary profit for
extraordinary gains and losses, and income taxes and other
taxes, increased by ¥37.8 billion year-on-year to ¥643.0 billion.

Banking Profit

Year ended March 31

2. Income Analysis

Gross Banking Profit

Gross banking profit increased by ¥76.1 billion year-on-year
to ¥1,634.3 billion. This mainly reflected an increase in gross
international profit primarily due to an increase in interest on
loans and bills discounted in line with asset growth mainly in
Asia and the Americas, and an increase in gains on bonds.
On the other hand, gross domestic profit declined mainly due
to shrinking loan spreads resulting from intense competition.

Expenses

Expenses (excluding non-recurring losses) increased by ¥45.5
billion year-on-year to ¥791.2 billion. This was mainly due to an
increase in expenditures aimed at enhancing top-line growth
such as to strengthen the overseas business, and also by the
impact of an increase in the consumption tax rate.

Banking Profit

Banking profit (before provision for general reserve for pos-
sible loan losses) increased by ¥30.6 billion year-on-year to
¥843.1 billion.

Millions of yen

Increase (decrease)
2015 (A) 2014 (B) (A) - (B)

Gross banking Profit........co oot e e ene e ¥1,5658,184 ¥ 76,100
[Gross domestic banking profit] .......... ,097, [1,112,008] [(14,284)]
e LT T ———— [536,560] [446,175] . [90385]
Net INTEreSt INCOME ... e e e e e e are e e s 1,121,428 1,064,906 56,522
TRUSE FEES 1.ttt ne e 1,872 1,972 (100)
Net fees and commissions 349,979 357,351 (7,372)
Net trading INCOME ...t e e e e s enne e e enneas 12,799 36,779 (23,980)
Net OtNer OPErating iNCOME.......cc.vvvsvsvsrinsvsnsvscsinsnsvsnscsssesnsnsnsces 148,208 7472 51,082
[Gains (10SSes) On DONDS] ... B 2 734 . [47.168]

Expenses (excluding nonrecurring losses). (791,211) (745,745) (45,466)
Personnel eXpenses ........ceecveeeeieeennnens (312,580) (283,236) (29,344)
NONPEISONNE] EXPENSES ......uveieieeieeeeieeeeieee e ettt e e sre e e e seeeeasaeeeeeaeeeensaeeeasseeesaseeeeasees (435,771) (425,140) (10,631)
L=V TSRS (42,859) (37,368) (5,491)

Banking profit (before provision for general reserve for possible loan losses) .... 843,073 812,438 30,635
[GaiNs (I0SSES) ON DONAS] .....vveeieiieeceiieeccete et e e e e e e e e e e e e raae e e e naeeeenneeeenneas [47,899] [734] [47,165]

Provision for general reserve for possible loan losses - - -

BaNKING PIOTit ...evvieieeeiiecie ettt ettt et e et eeese e e eseeeneeaseeenneeereeenean 843,073 812,438 30,635

<Reference>
Banking Profit by Business Unit

Billions of yen

Wholesale Retail International ~ Treasury  Head Office
Year ended March 31, 2015 Banking Unit Banking Unit Banking Unit Unit Account Total
Banking profit (before provision for
general reserve for possible l0an 10SSES) .......cevveereeeieeiieeiieeeee. ¥348.6 ¥36.7 ¥238.7 ¥328.1 ¥(109.0) ¥843.1
Year-on-year increase (deCrease).........cocuueeeiveereerireenneeireesine e (11.7) (33.5) 9.3 27.4 39.2 30.7

Notes: 1. Year-on-year comparisons are those used for internal reporting and exclude changes due to interest rate and foreign exchange rate fluctuations.
2. “Head Office Account” consists of (1) financing costs on preferred securities and subordinated debt, (2) profit earned on investing the Bank’s own capital,
and (3) adjustment of inter-unit transactions, etc.
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Nonrecurring Gains (Losses) (Credit Costs, etc.)
Nonrecurring gains were ¥112.9 billion, a deterioration of
¥27.2 billion compared with the previous fiscal year. This
was primarily due to declines in gains on reversal of reserve
for possible loan losses and gains on stocks, although other
non-recurring gains increased mainly due to decline in provi-
sion of reserve for possible losses on investments.

Total credit cost—the total of provision for general reserve
for possible loan losses, credit costs, gains on reversal of
reserve for possible loan losses and recoveries of written-
off claims—was a net reversal of ¥80.1 billion, ¥43.8 billion
lower in terms of gains compared with the previous year.

Ordinary Profit

As a result, ordinary profit increased by ¥3.5 billion year-on-
year to ¥956.0 billion.

Ordinary Profit and Net Income

Extraordinary Gains (Losses)
Extraordinary losses increased by ¥2.3 billion year-on-year
to ¥8.3 hillion.

Net Income

Net income, after the adjustment of ordinary profit for
extraordinary gains and losses and income taxes, increased
by ¥37.8 billion year-on-year to ¥643.0 billion.

Millions of yen

Increase (decrease)

Year ended March 31 2015 (A) 2014 (B) (A) - (B)
Banking profit (before provision for general reserve for possible loan losses).............. ¥ 843,073 ¥812,438 ¥ 30,635
Provision for general reserve for possible [0an 10SSES (A)......ccceeieerirrieeiieeenie e - — —
Banking Profit .........ccceeeueerieiieeiiesie e 843,073 812,438 30,635
Nonrecurring gains (losses) 112,919 140,078 (27,159)
Credit COStS (B)..vuiaiiiririiiinieeriee e (5,193) (8,945) 3,752
Gains on reversal of reserve for possible loan losses (C).......cccccvevivirieeennenne 79,009 132,784 (63,775)
Recoveries of written-off claims (D)......ceeeceeeeeiiieiiie e 6,326 82 6,244
Net gains (losses) on stocks 52,582 106,410 (53,828)
OFNEIS ettt eee et ee et es e s st eseen e eeseer e eeeeen (19,805) (90,252) 70,447
OFdINAIY PrOfit ..ot 955,992 952,516 3,476
Extraordinary gains (losses).................. (8,344) (6,033) (2,311)
Losses on disposal of fixed assets ..... (4,911) (3,604) (1,307)
Losses on impairment of fixed assets. (3,432) (2,428) (1,004)
INCOME tAXES —CUIMENT ......tiiiiieiie ettt et (224,845) (182,869) (41,976)
INCOME taXES —AETEITE ... .eiiiiiee e (79,787) (158,358) 78,571
NEE INCOME ..t ¥ 643,015 ¥605,255 ¥ 37,760
Total credit cost (A) + (B) + (C) + (D) «uvereureerieiieiieesiieieee e ¥ 80,142 ¥123,920 ¥(43,778)
Provision for general reserve for possible loan 10SSes .........ccoccveeiierierieeennen. 91,528 66,627 24,901
Write-0ff Of 108NS ... (417) (4,520) 4,103
Provision for specific reserve for possible loan losses.. (12,547) 66,899 (79,446)
Losses on sales of delinquent [0aNs ..........cocccveeeiiieeeciee e (4,776) (4,425) (851)
Provision for loan loss reserve for specific overseas countries..............cc..... 28 (742) 770
Recoveries of written-off Claims........c.cooiiiiiiiiii e 6,326 82 6,244
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3. Assets, Liabilities and Net Assets

Assets

Total assets as of March 31, 2015 increased by ¥18,757.6
billion year-on-year to ¥154,724.1 billion.

Cash and due from banks increased by ¥6,875.4 billion to
¥37,008.7 billion.

Loans and bills discounted totaled ¥68,274.3 billion, a
year-on-year increase of ¥4,903.6 billion, as steady results
in Japan and increases primarily in Asia and the Americas.

Securities increased by ¥2,667.7 billion year-on-year to
¥29,985.3 billion, mainly as a result of an increase in unreal-
ized gains on stocks.

Assets, Liabilities and Net Assets

Liabilities

Liabilities as of March 31, 2015 increased by ¥17,836.3 bil-
lion year-on-year to ¥146,725.4 billion. Deposits increased
by ¥7,200.4 billion to ¥91,337.7 billion due to increases
both in Japan and overseas. Negotiable certificates of
deposit increased by ¥1.6 billion to ¥14,022.1 billion.

Net Assets

Net assets as of March 31, 2015 totaled ¥7,998.7 billion.
Of this amount, stockholders’ equity was ¥6,369.5 billion.
Valuation and translation adjustments were ¥1,629.3 billion.

Millions of yen

Increase (decrease)

March 31 2015 (A) 2014 (B) A) - (B)
S ¥154,724,079 ¥135,966,434 ¥18,757,645
Cash and due from banks 37,008,665 30,138,257 6,875,408
Loans and bills discounted 68,274,308 63,370,678 4,903,630
S CUNEIES 1t etteeeeeetee e ettt e e et e e e st e e et e e ettt e e s ee e e e st e e e e aeeeeasaeeeeanseaeensaeeeanseeesannneeeannenennns 29,985,267 27,317,549 2,667,718
Liabilities......... 146,725,363 128,889,073 17,836,290
Deposits 91,337,714 84,137,339 7,200,375
Negotiable certificates Of AEPOSIt........ceeiiiiiiiiiie e 14,022,064 14,020,505 1,559
[N =y =TT €SS 7,998,715 7,077,360 921,355
Stockholders’ equity.....ccocceeeiiieriiiiiennns 6,369,453 6,179,502 189,951
Valuation and translation adjustments 1,629,261 897,858 731,403
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4. Unrealized Gains (Losses) on Securities

Net unrealized gains on securities as of March 31, 2015
increased by ¥1,109.2 billion year-on-year to ¥2,354.7 bil-
lion, mainly as a result of an increase in unrealized gains on
stocks reflecting rising stock prices.

Unrealized Gains (Losses) on Securities

Millions of yen

2015 2014
Non-consolidated Non-consolidated
balance sheet Net unrealized Unrealized Unrealized balance sheet Net unrealized
March 31 amount gains (losses) (A) (A)-(B) gains losses amount gains (losses) (B)
Held-to-maturity securities................. ¥ 3,352,592 ¥ 20454 ¥ (12,661) ¥ 20,454 ¥ ¥ 4,436,939 ¥ 33,115

Stocks of subsidiaries and affiliates... 3,414,839 (58,526) 13,895 22,352 80,878 3,148,478 (72,421)

Other securities .. ... 23,774,009 2,392,781 1,108,002 2,436,529 43,747 20,288,361 1,284,779
Stocks.......... ... 3,970,914 1,989,713 880,623 2,007,929 18,216 3,118,385 1,109,090
BONdS ..o 13,036,709 45,868 (14,125) 56,548 10,680 11,831,122 59,993

GBS ..ot 10,687,062 11,131 (9,753) 16,812 5,680 9,491,777 20,884
Others....cooieeeireeeeeee e 6,766,385 357,200 241,505 372,050 14,850 5,338,853 115,695
Foreign bonds.......ccccoeveriiinnenne 4,238,647 30,320 52,667 42,891 12,571 3,178,906 (22,347)

Other money held in trust.. - - = - - 2,060 —

Total e ... 30,541,441 2,354,709 1,109,235 2,479,335 124,626 27,875,841 1,245,474
Stocks... . 5,180,246 1,986,857 882,490 2,016,376 29,519 4,287,847 1,104,367
BONAS ..ot 16,389,301 66,322 (26,787) 77,002 10,680 16,268,062 93,109
Others....cooieeeiseeeeee e 8,971,892 301,529 253,532 385,955 84,426 7,319,931 47,997

Notes: 1. The figures above include unrealized gains (losses) on negotiable certificates of deposit in “Cash and due from banks” and “Deposits with banks” and
beneficiary claims on loan trusts in “Monetary claims bought,” etc.
2. Unrealized gains (losses) on stocks (excluding stocks of subsidiaries and affiliates) (including foreign stocks) are mainly calculated using the average market
price during the final month of the respective reporting period. The rest of the securities are valuated at the market price as of the balance sheet date.
3. “Other securities” and “Other money held in trust” are valuated and recorded on the balance sheet at market prices. The figures in the table above indicate
the differences between the acquisition costs (or amortized costs) and the balance sheet amounts.

Net unrealized gains (losses) on other securities, as of March 31, 2015 and 2014, included gains of ¥29,870 million and ¥17,031 million, respectively,
which were recognized in the statements of income by applying fair value hedge accounting. As a result, the amounts recorded in net assets, as of March
31, 2015 and 2014, were reduced by ¥29,870 million and ¥17,031 million, respectively.

4. Floating-rate Japanese government bonds which SMBC held as “Other securities” are carried on the balance sheet at their reasonably estimated amounts
in accordance with the “Practical Solution on Measurement of Fair Value for Financial Assets” (ASBJ Practical Issues Task Force No. 25).

SMFG 2015 | 20



Exposure of Securitized Products (Sumitomo Mitsui Financial Group (Consolidated))

The figures contained in this section have been compiled on a managerial accounting basis.

1. Securitized Products

(Billions of yen)

March 31, 2015 March 31, 2014

Balances Net unrealized Balances Net unrealized
(after provisions | Change from | Oyerseas | Change from | gains/losses | Change from | (after provisions | Qverseas | gains/losses

and write-offs) |Mar. 31,2014 Mar. 31, 2014|(after write-offs)| Mar. 31, 2014| and write-offs) (after write-offs)
Cards ¥166.1 ¥18.8 | ¥161.6 ¥22.5 ¥0.2 ¥(0.8) | ¥147.2 | ¥139.1 ¥1.0
CLO 25.3 24.7 25.3 24.7 1.2 (0.8) 0.6 0.6 2.0
CMBS 10.8 1.5 10.8 15 0.5 (0.0) 9.3 9.3 0.5
RMBS, etc. 29.6 5.4 29.6 5.4 0.2 0.1 24.2 24.2 0.2
Total ¥231.7 ¥50.5 | ¥227.2 ¥54.1 ¥2.1 ¥(1.6) | ¥181.3 | ¥173.1 ¥3.7

Notes: 1. There is no amount of ABCP.
2. Excludes RMBS issued by GSE and Japan Housing Finance Agency, and SMBC'’s exposure to subordinated beneficiaries owned through the securitization

of SMBC'’s loan receivables.

2. Leveraged Loans

(Billions of yen)

March 31, 2015 March 31, 2014
Loans |Changefrom| Undrawn “|changefrom| | gans Undrawn
Mar, 31, 2014|commitments|\jar. 31, 2014 commitments

Europe ¥119.6 ¥(25.9) | ¥ 40.0 ¥17.7 | ¥1455 | ¥ 223
Japan 286.0 9.9 52.5 27.2 276.2 25.3
United States 138.6 14.8 77.5 (30.5) 123.9 108.0
Asia (excluding Japan) 71.6 14.2 4.5 (0.3) 57.4 4.8
Total ¥615.9 ¥129 | ¥172.5 ¥ 14.1 ¥603.0 | ¥160.4
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Risk Management

Basic Approach

As risks in the financial services increase in diversity and complexity,
risk management—identifying, measuring, and controlling risk—has
never been more important in the management of a financial holding
company.

SMFG has established the basic principles of Groupwide risk
management in the “Policies on Comprehensive Risk Management.”
In the policies, we identify the location and the type of risk to be
managed in accordance with strategic goals and business struc-
tures. We have set forth the fundamental principles for compre-
hensive risk management and manage each risk appropriately
according to its characteristics.

(1) Types of Risk to Be Managed

At SMFG, we classify risk into the following categories: (1) credit
risk, (2) market risk, (3) liquidity risk and (4) operational risk (includ-
ing processing risk and system risk). In addition, we provide
individually tailored guidance to help Group companies identify
categories of risk that need to be addressed. Risk categories
are constantly reviewed, and new categories may be added in
response to changes in the operating environment. The Corporate
Risk Management Department works with the Corporate Planning
Department to comprehensively and systematically manage all
these categories of risk across the entire Group.

(2) Basic Policies for Risk Management
SMFG has established the “Principal Policy for Group Risk
Management” for the comprehensive risk and risks to be managed,
and we set forth the specific operational policies for appropriately
conducting the risk management of the Group companies. Further,
the Principal Policy is being reviewed regularly and as necessary.
Under SMFG’s Groupwide basic policies for risk management,
all Group companies periodically carry out reviews of the basic

management policies for each risk category, or whenever deemed
necessary, thus ensuring that the policies followed at any time
are the most appropriate. The management of SMFG constantly
monitors the conduct of risk management at Group companies,
providing guidance when necessary.

Risk Management System

Top management plays an active role in determining SMFG'’s
Groupwide basic policies for risk management. The system works
as follows: The basic policies for risk management are determined
by the Management Committee before being authorized by the
Board. The Management Committee, the designated board mem-
bers, and the relevant risk management departments perform risk
management according to the basic policies.

Risk management systems are in place at the individual Group
companies in accordance with SMFG’s Groupwide basic policies
for risk management. For example, at SMBC, specific departments
have been appointed to oversee the handling of the four risk cat-
egories listed above, in addition to risks associated with settlement.
Each risk category is managed taking into account the particular
characteristics of that category. In addition, the Risk Management
Unit has been established —independent of the business units—and
the risk management framework has been strengthened by con-
solidating the functions for managing major risks —credit, market,
liquidity and operational—into the Risk Management Unit and
enhancing our across-the-board risk monitoring ability. A board
member is assigned to oversee the Risk Management Unit com-
prising the Corporate Risk Management Department and Credit &
Investment Planning Department. The Corporate Risk Management
Department—the unit’s planning department—comprehensively
and systematically manages all categories of risk in cooperation

BMFundamental Principles on Comprehensive Risk Management (Excerpt major principles)

Basic Principles

Description

dated basis

Risk management on a consoli- | Various risks taken at the SMFG and the Group companies to be managed on a consolidated basis accord-
ing to the business and importance in conformity with the relevant laws and regulations.

Risk management based on
quantification

The risks subject to control to be quantitatively managed according to the relevant risk characteristics after
specifying the scope of quantification.

Ensuring consistency with the
business strategy

Risk management to be consistent with the business strategy.

System for check and balance
ness operations.

The risk management framework to be developed to ensure effective check and balance function for busi-

Measures for emergencies and
critical situations

Necessary measures to be developed by assuming situations, scenarios etc. as to materialization of risk
which would have a significant impact on the business and financial management of the Bank.

Verification of the actual situation | The actual risk management process to be verified by the Internal Audit Unit.
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with the Corporate Planning Department. Moreover, the Internal
Audit Unit—independent of all business units—conducts periodic
audits to ensure that the management system is functioning prop-
erly. Moreover, the Internal Audit Unit—independent of all business
units—conducts periodic audits to ensure that the management
system is functioning properly.

Furthermore, under our system top management plays an
active role in the approval of basic policies for risk management.
The decision-making process for addressing credit, market, and
liquidity risk at the operating level is strengthened by the Credit
Risk Management Committee and the Market Risk Management
Committee, which are subcommittees of the Management
Committee. The Management Committee is also attended by the
relevant department heads.

Integrated Risk Management

(1) Risk Capital-Based Management

In order to maintain a balance between risk and return as well as
ensure the soundness of the Group from an overall perspective, we
employ the risk capital-based management method. We measure
“risk capital” based on value at risk (VaR), etc. as a uniform basic
measure of credit, market, and operational risk, taking account of

B SMFG’s Risk Management System

SMFG

the special characteristics of each type of risk and the business
activities of each Group company. We then allocate capital appro-
priately and effectively to each unit to keep total exposure to various
risks within the scope of our resources, i.e., capital.

In the case of credit and market risk, we set maximum risk
capital limits, which indicate the maximum risk that may be taken
during the period, taking account the level of stress stipulated in
business plans. In addition, for operational risk, we also allocate
risk capital, and, for the Group as a whole, we set total risk capital
allocations within SMFG’s capital. Risk capital limits are subdivided
into upper limits for each business and unit including VaR and loss
limits. Therefore, by strictly observing these frameworks, SMFG
maintains the soundness of the Group as a whole.

In this framework, risk capital includes credit concentration
risk and interest rate risk in the banking book which are taken into
account under the Pillar 2 of Basel Capital Accord. In addition, we
conduct risk capital-based management activities on a consolidated
basis, including each Group company.

Liquidity risk is managed based on a framework consisting of
setting upper limit for funding gaps, etc. Other risk categories are
managed with procedures closely attuned to the nature of the risk.
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(2) Stress Testing

In the current volatile business environment, stress testing to
analyze and estimate the adverse effects of events such as an eco-
nomic recession and market volatility on the business and financial
conditions of financial institutions is increasingly essential.

When establishing the medium-term management plan or
annual business plan, we create some scenarios such as a global
economic slowdown or a JGB rate rising sharply, and conduct
stress testing to appraise the likely financial impact on the Group, so

that we can prepare action to deal with emerging stress events as
they occur in advance.

Furthermore, SMBC has in place a system enabling flexible
control of operations at a time of sudden changes in our business
environment. Joint platforms have been created for regularly bring-
ing together the Risk Management Unit, business units and other
affected units, where discussions are held, based on a shared
appraisal of the macro-environment, on responding to a hypotheti-
cal stress event assumed to have impact on conduct of operations.

M Risk Management Framework

Framework Risk Category
Credit Risk Credit risk is the possibility of a loss arising from a credit event, such as deterioration in the financial condition of a
Ithi borrower, that causes an asset (including off-balance sheet transactions) to lose value or become worthless.
Banking Risk/Trading Risk
Market i i A Market risk is the possibility that fluctuations in interest rates, foreign exchange rates, stock prices, or
Risk Risk Strateglc EqUIty Investment Risk other market prices will change the market value of financial products, leading to a loss.
IS
Capital-Based Other Market-Related Risks
Management
i ; Operational risk is the possibility of losses arising from inadequate or failed internal processes, people,
Operatlonal Risk and systems or from external events.
i f Processing risk is the possibility of losses arising from negligent processing by employees, accidents, or
Processmg Risk unauthorized activities.
. System risk is the possibility of a loss arising from the failure, malfunction, or unauthorized use of
System Risk computer systems.
Liquidity risk is defined as the uncertainty around the ability of the firm to meet debt obligations without
ALM/ Liquidity Risk incurring unacceptably large losses. Examples of such risk include the possible inability to meet current
Funding Gap q y and future cash flow/collateral needs, both expected and unexpected. In such cases, the firm may be
required to raise funds at less than favorable rates or be unable to raise sufficient funds for settlement.
Management Other Risks _
by Risk Type (Settlement Risk and Others)

B Process of Stress Testing

Flow Summary

:/ Developing the scenario (including macroeconomic indicators, such as GDP, stock price, interest rate and foreign exchange rate) H

1 via discussions of the future trends in the global situation with related departments. !

(1) Scenario design Scenario (example): !
Stress scenario !

(1in 10 years) !

Downside scenario

i Trend scenario
' (could possibly happen)

(economic forecasting)

(2) Scenario setting

(3) Estimating of the impact on financial items

(4) Report to Management Committee and :, Reporting the scenario which set in (2) and the impact on the common equity Tier | ratios etc. which estimated in (3) to the Management
Board of Directors ' Committee and Board of Directors. H
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Risk Appetite Framework

SMFG aims as a financial Group centered on a commercial bank
to fulfill its corporate mission to “maximize our shareholders’ value
through the continuous growth of our business.” To this end, we
consider it important to categorize and quantitatively determine
the types and levels of risk we are willing to take on or tolerate
to drive earnings growth (risk appetite), and secure an appropri-
ate return. We have developed and implemented a risk appetite
framework that comprehensively incorporates the above mentioned
integrated risk management framework. We have also formulated
a Risk Appetite Statement that sets out our approach and specific
risk appetites, which we distribute internally to foster a sound risk
culture.

(1) Risk Appetite Structure

We have clearly categorized our stances on risk taking and risk
management into financial soundness, profitability, liquidity and
others. As a general rule, we strive to achieve a quantitative grasp
of the risks using risk appetite indicators.

(2) Setting Risk Appetite Indicators

The target levels and limits of risk appetite indicators are decided
by the Management Committee and the Board of Directors at the
beginning of each fiscal year to be consistent with management
targets, financial objectives and business plans, based on the
risk-taking policy and portfolio plan. We also set various risk capital
limits and upper limits for credit, market and liquidity risks as to be
consistent with business plans, and the target levels and limits of
risk appetite indicators.

(3) Monitoring Risk Appetite Indicators

We monitor the risk appetite indicators during the period. If they
deviate from target levels or breach limits and so forth, the frame-
work allows us to discuss reviewing the business plans or other
measures as necessary. Moreover, for certain risk appetite indica-
tors we also conduct testing to ensure that they will retain a certain
level even under stress conditions.

M Overview of Risk Appetite Framework at SMFG

Risk appetite
Risk appetite indicators

Financial Common Equity Tier | ratio

. soundness  Risk capital, etc.
Business

and Business

financial plans Profitability  Risk-return indicators, etc. Rislf-taking
targets policy a_nd
Liquidity  LCR, NSFR, etc. il
planning

Others

Limits Monitoring
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Implementation of Basel Capital Accord

Basel lll is an international agreement on minimum capital require-
ments for internationally active banks. The standard has been
applied in Japan since March 31, 2013.

The framework of Basel lll is a continuation of Basel Il, with
multiple approaches to calculating capital requirements. With regard
to credit risk, SMFG has been using the Advanced Internal Ratings
Based (AIRB) approach since March 31, 2009, and for operational risk
the Advanced Measurement Approach (AMA), since March 31, 2008.

Risk assets subject to the Basel Capital Accord totaled
¥66,136.8 billion as of March 31, 2015, up ¥4,513.5 billion from
March 31, 2014. The main factor behind the increase in risk-
weighted assets was credit risk and the main increases included an
increase in overseas assets, the effect of the yen’s depreciation, and
an increase in the balance due to a rise in stock prices.

B Risk-Weighted Assets as of March 31, 2015

(Trillions of yen)

March 31, | March 31, | Increase
2014 2015 (decrease)
Credit risk 57.0 61.3 +4.3
Market risk 1.7 2.0 +0.2
Operational risk 2.8 2.8 (0.0
Total 61.6 66.1 +4.5

B Risk Assets at Individual Departments

(Trillions of yen)

Wholesale 15.6

- Credit risk 15.3

Sumitomo Mitsui Retail 7.3

Financial Group | Credit risk 7.1

Credit rigk 61.3 International 17.7
Market risk 2.0 — o

Operational risk 2.8 | Credit risk 168

Other 25.6

| Credit risk 221

Note: Other includes Treasury Unit, Investment Banking Unit and Group companies.

Credit Risk

1. Basic Approach to Credit Risk Management

(1) Definition of Credit Risk

Credit risk is the possibility of a loss arising from a credit event, such
as deterioration in the financial condition of a borrower, that causes
an asset (including off-balance sheet transactions) to lose value or
become worthless.




Overseas credits also include an element of country risk, which
is closely related to credit risk. This is the risk of loss caused by
changes in foreign exchange, or political or economic situations.

(2) Fundamental Principles for Credit Risk Management
All Group companies follow the fundamental principles established
by SMFG to assess and manage credit risk on a Groupwide basis
and further raise the level of accuracy and comprehensiveness of
Groupwide credit risk management. Each Group company must
comprehensively manage credit risk according to the nature of its
business, and assess and manage credit risk of individual loans and
credit portfolios quantitatively and using consistent standards.

Credit risk is the most significant risk to which SMFG is
exposed. Without effective credit risk management, the impact of
the corresponding losses on operations can be overwhelming.

The purpose of credit risk management is to keep credit risk
exposure to a permissible level relative to capital, to maintain the
soundness of Groupwide assets, and to ensure returns commen-
surate with risk. This leads to a loan portfolio that achieves high
returns on capital and assets.

B SMBC’s Credit Risk Management System

(3) Credit Policy

SMFG’s Group credit policy comprises clearly stated universal and
basic operating concepts, policies, and standards for credit opera-
tions, in accordance with our business mission and rules of conduct.
SMFG is promoting the understanding of and strict adherence to
its Group credit policy among all its managers and employees. By
fostering a culture of appropriate levels of risk-taking, and by provid-
ing still high-value-added financial services, SMFG aims to enhance
shareholder value and play a key contributory role in the community.

2. Credit Risk Management System

At SMBC, the Credit & Investment Planning Department within
the Risk Management Unit is responsible for the comprehensive
management of credit risk. This department drafts and administers
credit policies, the internal rating system, credit authority guidelines,
and credit application guidelines, and manages non-performing
loans (NPLs) and other aspects of credit portfolio management. The
department also cooperates with the Corporate Risk Management
Department in quantifying credit risk (risk capital and risk-weighted
assets) and controls the bank’s entire credit risk. Further, the Credit

Shareholders’ Meeting

Corporate Auditors/ Board of Corporate Auditors

Board of Directors

Office of Corporate Auditors

Management Committee

Risk Management Unit
Designated Board Members

eSupervises risk management
e Aggregates risk for comprehensive management
*Plans and proposes risk quantification methods

Corporate Risk
Management Dept.

eAggregates credit risk for unified management
Credit & Investment ePlans and proposes basic credit policies
Planning Dept. ePlans and proposes credit policies for
particular risk assets
Credit Portfolio

Management Dept. eUndertakes active portfolio management

Internal Audit Unit
Designated Board Members

eAudits credit risk management
eAudits credit risk evaluation management
eAudits asset audit management system

Internal Audit Dept.
Credit Review Dept.

Retail Banking Unit

Officer in charge

Deputy head
Credit Dept. Credit Dept.
1&11
Individuals and SMEs Small and

Medium-Sized Enterprises

Corporate
Research Dept.

Wholesale Banking Unit

Officer in charge
Deputy head

Corporate Credit Dept.
Large Domestic Structured Finance
Corporations Credit Dept.
Structured Finance
(Investment Banking Unit,
Japan)

Deputy head in charge

eindustry trend research

Business Units

International Banking Unit

Officer in charge
Deputy head

Division head Division head Division head
Credit Administration.  Credit Management Credit Dept., Credit Dept., Credit Dept.,
Dept. Dept. Asia Pacific Div. Americas Div. Europe Div.
Management of Overseas Banks Non-Japanese Overseas Corporations Overseas Corporations
problem loans International Dept. companies (Americas) (Europe)

(prepare and implement
plans to dispose or
restructure, sell off)

o(Credit assessment of major industry players, clients under
observation and clients whose credit rating is to be revised, etc.

Credit Management

Credit Dept., East Asia

(Asia and Asia Pacific
excluding clients of the
International Banking Unit)

Global Aircraft

International Banking Unit Credit Dept.
Non-Japanese companies Aircraft related
(Japan and East Asia) (Overseas)
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Portfolio Management Department within the Credit & Investment
Planning Department has been strengthening its active portfolio
management function for stable credit portfolios mainly through
credit derivatives and the sales of loans.

The Credit Departments within each business unit conduct
credit risk management along with branches, for loans handled by
their units and manage their units’ portfolios. The credit approval
authority is determined based on the credit amount and internal
grades, while credit departments focus on the analysis and manage-
ment of customers and transactions with relatively high credit risk.

The Credit Administration Department is responsible for han-
dling NPLs of borrowers classified as potentially bankrupt or lower,
and draws up plans for their workouts, including write-offs. It works
to efficiently reduce the amount of NPLs through Group company
SMBC Servicer Co., Ltd., which engages in related services, and by
such means as the sell-off of claims.

Through industrial and sector-specific surveys, and studies of
individual companies, the Corporate Research Department works to
form an accurate idea of the circumstances of borrower companies
and quickly identify those with potentially troubled credit positions
as well as promising growth companies.

The Internal Audit Unit, operating independently of the business
units, audits asset quality, accuracy of gradings and selfassess-
ment, and state of credit risk management, and reports
the results directly to the Board of Directors and the
Management Committee.

SMBC has established the Credit Risk Committee,
as a consultative body, to round out its oversight
system for undertaking flexible and efficient control of

credit risk, and ensuring the overall soundness of the J1 Gl

bank’s loan operations.

J2 G2
3. Credit Risk Management Methods
(1) Credit Risk Assessment and Quantification J3 G3
At SMBC, to effectively manage the risk involved in indi-
vidual loans as well as the credit portfolio as a whole, J4a G4
we first acknowledge that every loan entails credit risks,
assess the credit risk posed by each borrower and loan J5 G5
using an internal rating system, and quantify that risk for
control purposes. 6 G6
(@) Internal Rating System
There is an internal rating system for each asset control 5o | e
category set according to portfolio characteristics. For

J7R

example, credits to commercial and industrial (C&l) com-

panies, individuals for business purposes (domestic only), Jg8 G8

sovereigns, public-sector entities, and financial institu-

tions are assigned an “obligor grade,” which indicates the J9  G9

borrower’s creditworthiness, and/or “facility grade,” which
indicates the collectibility of assets taking into account
transaction conditions such as guarantee/collateral, and
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Obligor Grade

Domestic  Overseas
(C&l), etc. (C&I), etc.

Debt repayment is likely but this could change in cases of
significant changes in economic trends or business
environment

Close monitoring is required due to problems in meeting loan
terms and conditions, sluggish/unstable business, or financial
problems

(Of which Substandard Borrowers)

J10 G10

tenor. An obligor grade is determined by first assigning a financial
grade using a financial strength grading model and data obtained
from the obligor’s financial statements. The financial grade is then
adjusted taking into account the actual state of the obligor’s balance
sheet and qualitative factors to derive the obligor grade. In the event
that the borrower is domiciled overseas, internal ratings for credit are
made after taking into consideration country rank, which represents
an assessment of the credit quality of each country, based on its polit-
ical and economic situation, as well as its current account balance
and external debt. Self-assessment is the obligor grading process
for assigning lower grades, and the borrower categories used in self-
assessment are consistent with the obligor grade categories.

Obligor grades and facility grades are reviewed once a year, and,
whenever necessary, such as when there are changes in the credit
situation.

There are also grading systems for loans to individuals, and proj-
ect finance and other structured finance tailored according to the risk
characteristics of these types of assets.

The Credit & Investment Planning Department centrally manages
the internal rating systems, and properly designs, operates, supervises,
and validates the grading models. It validates the grading models
(including statistical validation) of main assets following the procedures
manual once a year, to ensure their effectiveness and suitability.

B SMBC’s Obligor Grading System

Financial Reconstruction

o Borrower Act Based Disclosure
Definition Category Category
(Domestic)
Very high certainty of debt repayment
High certainty of debt repayment
Satisfactory certainty of debt repayment
Normal
Borrowers

Normal Assets

No problem with debt repayment over the short term, but not
satisfactory over the mid to long term and the situation could
change in cases of significant changes in economic trends or
business environment

Currently no problem with debt repayment, but there are
unstable business and financial factors that could lead to debt
repayment problems

Borrowers
Requiring Caution

Substandard Borrowers Substandard Loans

Currently not bankrupt, but experiencing business difficulties, Potentially

making insufficient progress in restructuring, and highly Bankrupt Doubtful Assets

likely to go bankrupt Borrowers

Though not yet legally or formally bankrupt, has serious Effectively

business difficulties and rehabilitation is unlikely; thus, Bankrupt

effectively bankrupt Borrowers Bankrupt and
Quasi-Bankrupt
Assets

Legally or formally bankrupt Bankrupt

Borrowers



(b) Quantification of Credit Risk

Credit risk quantification refers to the process of estimating the degree
of credit risk of a portfolio or individual loan taking into account not
just the obligor’s Probability of Default (PD), but also the concentration
of risk in a specific customer or industry and the loss impact of fluc-
tuations in the value of collateral, such as real estate and securities.

Specifically, first, the PD by grade, Loss Given Default (LGD),
credit quality correlation among obligors, and other parameter values
are estimated using historical data of obligors and facilities stored in
a database to calculate the credit risk. Then, based on these param-
eters, we run a simulation of simultaneous default using the Monte
Carlo method to calculate our maximum loss exposure to the esti-
mated amount of the maximum losses that may be incurred. Based
on these quantitative results, we allocate risk capital.

Risk quantification is also executed for purposes such as to
determine the portfolio’s risk concentration, or to simulate economic
movements (stress tests), and the results are used for making
optimal decisions across the whole range of business operations,
including formulating business plans and providing a standard
against which individual credit applications are assessed.

(2) Framework for Managing Individual Loans

(a) Credit Assessment

At SMBC, credit assessment of corporate loans involves a variety
of financial analyses, including cash flow, to predict an enterprise’s
capability of loan repayment and its growth prospects. These
quantitative measures, when combined with qualitative analyses of
industrial trends, the enterprise’s R&D capabilities, the competitive-
ness of its products or services, and its management caliber, result in
a comprehensive credit assessment. The loan application is analyzed
in terms of the intended utilization of the funds and the repayment

B SMBC’s Credit Monitoring System

Obligor Information

schedule. Thus, SMBC is able to arrive at an accurate and fair credit
decision based on an objective examination of all relevant factors.

Increasing the understandability to customers of loan conditions
and approval standards for specific borrowing purposes and loan
categories is a part of SMBC’s ongoing review of lending practices,
which includes the revision of loan contract forms with the chief aim
of clarifying lending conditions utilizing financial covenants.

SMBC is also making steady progress in streamlining its credit
assessment process. To respond proactively and promptly to cus-
tomers’ funding needs—particularly those of SMEs—we employ a
standardized credit risk assessment process for SMEs that uses a
credit-scoring model. With this process, we are building a regime for
efficiently marketing our Business Select Loan and other SME loans.

In the field of housing loans for individuals, we employ a credit
assessment model based on credit data amassed and analyzed
by SMBC over many years. This model enables our loan officers to
efficiently make rational decisions on housing loan applications, and
to reply to the customers without delay. It also facilitates the effective
management of credit risk, as well as the flexible setting of interest
rates.

We also provide loans to individuals who rent out properties
such as apartments. The loan applications are subjected to a precise
credit risk assessment process utilizing a risk assessment model
that factors in the projected revenue from the rental business. The
process is also used to provide advice to such customers on how to
revise their business plans.

(b) Credit Monitoring System

At SMBC, in addition to analyzing loans at the application stage,
the Credit Monitoring System is utilized to reassess obligor grades
and review self-assessment and credit policies so that problems

Flow of Obligor Grading/Grading Outlook/Credit Policies/Action Plans/Facility Grading Assignment

Processing
. Grading Outlook Assessment Determination of
Nonconsoli- Credit Policies
dated Normal Qualitative
Financial Borrowers Performance v
Grade Trends T+ _Fisk
Not Flagged Factors Credit Policy Segment
Registration ot
. . aggint i+
of Financial 4ang Self-Assessment Borrowers ' *Positive Policy for Handling
. According to > Requiring Final oFlat Fach Individual
Statements/ Consolidated Logic - R
it d Financial Self- Caution Obligor eNegative Company
’;eaF"?” anf Grade | Assessment Quantitative S Grade
L otentially
evision o Criteria Assessment Bankrupt Action Plan Formulation
Corporate Financial Borrowers
Card Assessment - Restructuring Basic Specific
Flagged : ectively Feasibili Approach Action Plan
Effective Credit Status Bankrupt g P
Financial Borrowers
Grade Qualitative e Facility Grading Assi t
Assessment ankrup acility Grading Assignmen
Borrowers

SMFG 2015 | 37



can be detected at an early stage, and quick and effective action
can be taken. The system includes periodic monitoring carried out
each time an obligor enterprise discloses financial results, as well
as continuous monitoring performed each time credit conditions
change, as indicated in the diagram on page 37.

(3) Framework for Credit Portfolio Management

In addition to managing individual loans, SMBC applies the follow-

ing basic policies to the management of the entire credit portfolio to

maintain and improve its soundness and profitability over the mid to

long term.

(a) Risk-Taking within the Scope of Capital

To keep credit risk exposure to a permissible level relative to capital,

SMBC sets a credit risk capital limit for internal control purposes.

Under this limit, sub-limits are set for each business unit. Regular

monitoring is conducted to make sure that these limits are being fol-

lowed, thus ensuring appropriate overall management of credit risk.

(b) Controlling Concentration Risk

As the equity capital of the bank may be materially impaired in the

event that the credit concentration risk becomes apparent, SMBC

implements measures to manage credit towards an industrial sector

with excessive risk concentration, introduces large exposure limit lines

and conducts intensive loan review for obligors with large exposure.
To manage country risk, SMBC also has credit limit guidelines

based on each country’s creditworthiness.

(c) Researching Borrowers More Rigorously and Balancing Risk
and Returns

Against a backdrop of drastic change in the business environ-

ment, SMBC rigorously researches borrower companies’ actual

conditions. It runs credit operations on the basic principle of earning

returns that are commensurate with the credit risk involved, and

makes every effort to reduce credit and capital costs as well as

general and administrative expenses.

(d) Prevention and Reduction of Non-Performing Loans

On NPLs and potential NPLs, SMBC carries out regular loan

reviews to clarify handling policies and action plans, enabling it to

swiftly implement measures to prevent deterioration of borrowers’

business situations, support business recoveries, collect on loans,

and enhance loan security.

(e) Toward Active Portfolio Management

SMBC makes active use of credit derivatives, loan asset sales, and

other instruments to proactively and flexibly manage its portfolio to

stabilize credit risk.

(4) Self-Assessment, Asset Write-Offs and Provisions,
and Disclosure of Problem Assets

(a) Self-Assessment

SMBC conducts rigorous self-assessment of asset quality using
criteria based on the Financial Inspection Manual of the Financial
Services Agency and the Practical Guideline published by the
Japanese Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Self-assessment
is the latter stage of the obligor grading process for determining the
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borrower’s ability to fulfill debt obligations, and the obligor grade
criteria are consistent with the categories used in self-assessment.

At the same time, self-assessment is a preparatory task for
ensuring SMBC’s asset quality and calculating the appropriate level
of write-offs and provisions. Each asset is assessed individually for
its security and collectibility. Depending on the borrower’s current
situation, the borrower is assigned to one of five categories: Normal
Borrowers, Borrowers Requiring Caution, Potentially Bankrupt
Borrowers, Effectively Bankrupt Borrowers, and Bankrupt
Borrowers. Based on the borrower’s category, claims on the bor-
rower are classified into Classification |, II, lll, and IV assets according
to their default and impairment risk levels, taking into account such
factors as collateral and guarantees. As part of our efforts to bolster
risk management throughout the Group, our consolidated subsidiar-
ies carry out self-assessment in substantially the same manner.

Borrower Categories, Defined

Normal Borrowers Borrowers with good earnings performances and no

significant financial problems

Borrowers Requiring Caution Borrowers identified for close monitoring

Potentially Bankrupt Borrowers Borrowers perceived to have a high risk of falling into

bankruptcy

Effectively Bankrupt Borrowers Borrowers that may not have legally or formally declared

bankruptey but are essentially bankrupt

Bankrupt Borrowers Borrowers that have been legally or formally declared bankrupt

Asset Classifications, Defined

Classification | Assets not classified under Classifications Il, Ill, or IV

Classification Il Assets perceived to have an above-average risk of
uncollectibility

Classification Ill Assets for which final collection or asset value is very doubt-

ful and which pose a high risk of incurring a loss

Classification IV Assets assessed as uncollectible or worthless

(b) Asset Write-Offs and Provisions

In cases where claims have been determined to be uncollectible,
or deemed to be uncollectible, write-offs signify the recognition of
losses on the account books with respect to such claims. Write-
offs can be made either in the form of loss recognition by offsetting
uncollectible amounts against corresponding balance sheet items,
referred to as a direct write-off, or else by recognition of a loan
loss provision on a contra-asset account in the amount deemed
uncollectible, referred to as an indirect write-off. Recognition of
indirect write-offs is generally known as provision for the reserve for
possible loan losses.

SMBC's write-off and provision criteria for each self-assessment
borrower category are shown in the next page. As part of our over-
all measures to strengthen risk management throughout the Group,
all consolidated subsidiaries use substantially the same standards
as SMBC for write-offs and provisions.



Self-Assessment
Borrower Categories

Standards for Write-Offs and
Provisions

Normal Borrowers The expected loss amount for the next 12 months is
calculated for each grade based on the grade’s historical
bankruptcy rate, and the total amount is recorded as “provi-

sion for the general reserve for possible loan losses.”

Borrowers Requiring Caution These assets are divided into groups according to the level
of default risk. Amounts are recorded as provisions for the
general reserve in proportion to the expected losses based
on the historical bankruptcy rate of each group. The groups
are “claims on Substandard Borrowers” and “claims on other
Borrowers Requiring Caution.” The latter group is further
subdivided according to the borrower’s financial position,
credit situation, and other factors. Further, when cash flows
can be estimated reasonably accurately, the discounted
cash flow (DCF) method is applied mainly to large claims for
calculating the provision amount.

Potentially Bankrupt Borrowers A provision for the specific reserve for possible loan losses
is made for the portion of Classification ll assets (calculated
for each borrower) not secured by collateral, guarantee, or
other means. Further, when cash flows can be estimated
reasonably accurately, the DCF method is applied mainly to

large claims for calculating the provision amount.

Effectively Bankrupt/ Bankrupt Classification lll asset and Classification IV asset amounts
Borrowers for each borrower are calculated, and the full amount of
Classification IV assets (deemed to be uncollectible or of no
value) is written off in principle and provision for the specific
reserve is made for the full amount of Classification Ill assets.

i General reserve
:
:

Provisions made in accordance with general inherent default !
risk of loans, unrelated to specific individual loans or other !
claims

Notes

Provisions made for claims that have been found uncollectible
in part or in total (individually evaluated claims)

Specific reserve

Discounted Cash Flow Method

SMBC uses the discounted cash flow (DCF) method to calculate
the provision amounts for large claims on Substandard Borrowers
and Potentially Bankrupt Borrowers when the cash flow from
repayment of principal and interest received can be estimated
reasonably accurately. SMBC then makes provisions equivalent
to the excess of the book value of the claims over the said cash
inflow discounted by the initial contractual interest rate or the
effective interest rate at the time of origination. One of the major
advantages of the DCF method over conventional methods of
calculating the provision amount is that it enables effective evalua-
tion of each individual borrower. However, as the provision amount
depends on the future cash flow estimated on the basis of the
borrower’s business reconstruction plan and the DCF formula
input values, such as the discount rate and the probability of the
borrower going into bankruptcy, SMBC makes every effort to uti-
lize up-to-date and correct data to realize the most accurate esti-
mates possible.

(c) Disclosure of Problem Assets

Problem assets are loans and other claims of which recovery of either
principal or interest appears doubtful, and are disclosed in accor-
dance with the Banking Act (in which they are referred to as “risk-
monitored loans”) and the Financial Reconstruction Act (where they
are referred to as “problem assets”). Problem assets are classified
based on the borrower categories assigned during self-assessment.
For detailed information on results of self-assessments, asset

write-offs and provisions, and disclosure of problem assets at March
31, 2015, please refer to page 177.

4. Risk Management of Marketable Credit Transactions
Financial products, such as investments in funds, securitized
products, and credit derivatives, that bear indirect risk arising from
underlying assets such as bonds and loan obligations, are consid-
ered to be exposed to both credit risk from the underlying assets as
well as “market risk” and “liquidity risk” that arise from their trading
as financial products. This is referred to as marketable credit risk.

For these types of products, we manage credit risk analyzing
and assessing the characteristics of the underlying assets, but, for
the sake of complete risk management, we also apply the methods
for management of market and liquidity risks.

In addition, we have established guidelines based on the char-
acteristics of these types of risk and appropriately manage the risk
of losses.

Market and Liquidity Risks

1. Basic Approach to Market and Liquidity Risk
Management

(1) Definitions of Market and Liquidity Risks
Market risk is the possibility that fluctuations in interest rates, foreign

exchange rates, stock prices, or other market prices will change the
market value of financial products, leading to a loss.

Liquidity risk is defined as the uncertainty around the ability of
the firm to meet debt obligations without incurring unacceptably
large losses. Examples of such risk include the possible inability to
meet current and future cash flow/collateral needs, both expected
and unexpected. In such cases, the firm may be required to raise
funds at less than favorable rates or be unable to raise sufficient
funds for settlement.

(2) Fundamental Principles for Market and Liquidity
Risk Management

SMFG is working to further enhance the effectiveness of its quan-
titative management of market and liquidity risks across the entire
Group by setting allowable risk limits; ensuring the transparency
of the risk management process; clearly separating front-office,
middle-office and back-office operations; and establishing a highly
efficient system of mutual checks and balances.

2. Market and Liquidity Risk Management System
On the basis of SMFG’s Groupwide basic policies for risk
management, SMBC’s Board of Directors authorizes important
matters relating to the management of market and liquidity risks,
such as basic policies and risk limits, which are decided by the
Management Committee. Additionally, at SMBC, the Corporate Risk
Management Department, which is the planning department of the
Risk Management Unit, an independent of the business units that
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directly handle market transactions, manages market and liquidity
risks in an integrated manner. The Corporate Risk Management
Department not only monitors the current risk situations, but also
reports regularly to the Management Committee and the Board
of Directors. Furthermore, SMBC’s ALM Committee meets on a

B SMBC’s Market Risk and Liquidity Risk Management
System

Board of Directors

Market Ma"‘ahj*ir?‘;”;hf°mm'ttt§e oo | | Licuicity
Risk arket Risk Management Committee Risk
Manage- Manage-
ment ment
‘ ALM Committee ‘
uditors
Board Member in Charge of External
Risk Management Unit ( ﬁgdﬁ )
(uditing firm|
Policy Reporting
Back Office Middle Office
(Back offices of Japan

and overseas branches) (Corporate Risk Management Dept.)

Inspection and verification Final approval and Management of Model,
of transactions new products and risk limits

Managing Depts.
| e e ————— e —— 1| —— |
| Other market-  Market '} Market Market !
| related operations .1 operations operations X
I operations (Treasury Unit) 11 (International (Group companies) 1
: '\ Banking Uni) !
1 1! 1
| Front Office ' Front/Middle/Back Offices |

B VaR for Trading Activities

monthly basis to examine reports on the state of observance of
SMBC'’s limits on market and liquidity risks, and to review and dis-
cuss the SMBC’s ALM operation.

To prevent unforeseen processing errors as well as fraudulent
transactions, it is important to establish a system of checks on the
business units (front office). At SMBC, both the processing depart-
ments (back office) and the administrative departments (middle
office) conduct the checks. In addition, the Internal Audit Unit of
SMBC periodically performs comprehensive internal audits to verify
that the risk management framework is functioning properly.

3. Market and Liquidity Risk Management Methods

(1) Market Risk Management

SMBC manages market risk by setting maximum limits for VaR and
maximum loss. These limits are set within the “risk capital limit”
which is determined taking into account the bank’s shareholders’
equity and other principal indicators of the bank’s financial position
and management resources.

Market risk can be divided into various factors: foreign
exchange rates, interest rates, equity prices and option risks. SMBC
manages each of these risk categories by employing the VaR
method as well as supplemental indicators suitable for managing
the risk of each risk factor, such as the BPV.

Please note that, in the case of interest rate fluctuation risk, the
methods for recognizing the dates for maturity of demand depos-
its (current accounts and ordinary deposit accounts that can be
withdrawn at any time) and the method for estimating the time of
cancellation prior to maturity of time deposits and consumer loans
differ substantially. At SMBC, the maturity of demand deposits
that are expected to be left with the bank for a prolonged period is
regarded to be five years (2.5 years on average). The cancellation
prior to maturity of time deposits and consumer loans is estimated
based on historical data.

(Billions of yen)

fiscal 2014
March 31, 2015 | September 30, 2014 Maximum Minimum Average March 31, 2014

SMFG (consolidated) 14.5 16.3 20.2 9.9 14.8 9.5
Interest rates 7.2 7.9 12.5 5.4 7.4 5.2
Foreign exchange 1.3 1.6 3.6 0.7 1.7 0.6
Equities, commaodities, etc. 6.9 8.5 11.0 3.8 7.0 41

[ SMBC (consolidated) \ 13.8 \ 15.4 \ 19.0 \ 8.9 \ 13.9 \ 8.5 |

[ SMBC (non-consolidated) \ 1.7 \ 34 \ 5.9 \ 1.2 \ 3.2 \ 1.1 |

Note: VaR for a one-day holding period with a one-sided confidence interval of 99.0% [computed daily using the historical simulation method (based on four years of historical observations)].
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(a) Market Risks

a. Trading activities

Trading activities are market operations which gain profits by taking
advantage of fluctuations of market prices in the short-term or price
differences among markets. At SMFG, we assess and manage the
market risk of trading activities on a daily basis, by utilizing VaR and
other tools.

The table on the previous page shows the VaR results of the
Group’s trading activities during fiscal 2014. Because of the nature
of trading, the VaR fluctuated sharply during fiscal 2014, in line with
changes in our investment positions.

b. Banking activities

Banking activities are market operations which gain profits by con-
trolling interest rates and term period for assets (loans, bonds, etc.)
and liabilities (deposits, etc.). At SMFG, in the same way as in the
case of trading activities, we assess and manage the market risk of
banking activities on a daily basis, utilizing VaR and other tools.

The following table shows the VaR results of the Group’s bank-
ing activities during fiscal 2014. The VaR of the Group decreased
on March 31, 2015 compared with on March 31, 2014 primarily
reflecting an decreased position in equities.

B VaR for Banking Activities

(b) Market Risk Volume Calculation Model

a. Presuppositions and limits of model

In SMBC's internal VaR model, various market fluctuation scenarios
are drawn up on the basis of past data, and the historical simulation
method is used to run profit-and-loss movement simulations that
enable us to forecast probable maximum losses. The appropriate-
ness of the model is later verified through back-testing.

However, as back-testing cannot take into account major
market fluctuations that have not actually occurred historically, we
supplement this method with the use of stress testing.

This internal model employed by SMBC undergoes regular
auditing by an independent auditing firm to ensure that it operates
appropriately.

b. Validity verification process
i Outline of validity verification
SMBC uses back-testing as a method for verification of the valid-
ity of the internal model. VaR figures calculated by the internal
model are compared with actual portfolio profit-and-loss figures
on a given day, to compute an appropriate VaR level and confirm
the adequacy of risk capital management.
i Back-testing results
The results of back-testing on SMBC'’s trading book conducted in
fiscal 2014 are shown below. The data point under the diagonal
line indicates a loss exceeding VaR for that day. Only one data
point under the diagonal line has been observed, which dem-
onstrates that the SMBC VaR model with a one-side confidence
interval of 99.0% is sufficiently reliable.

(Billions of yen)

fiscal 2014
March 31, 2015 | September 30, 2014 Maximum Minimum Average March 31, 2014
SMFG (consolidated) 39.0 45.0 46.1 36.6 4.7 415
Interest rates 18.0 18.7 24.6 14.4 19.2 18.6
Equities, etc. 31.1 37.3 40.4 28.5 33.8 32.8
[ SMBC (consolidated) \ 37.8 \ 44.0 \ 451 \ 35.6 \ 40.7 \ 403 |
[ SMBC (non-consolidated) \ 349 \ 41.0 \ 425 \ 329 \ 375 \ 359 |

Notes: 1. VaR for a one-day holding period with a one-sided confidence interval of 99.0% [computed daily using the historical simulation method (based on four years of historical observations)].
2. The above category of “Equities” does not include stocks held for long-term strategic purposes.

M Back-Testing Results (Trading Book)
SMFG (consolidated)

Actual Profit or Loss (¥ billion)

SMBC (consolidated)

Actual Profit or Loss (¥ billion)

SMBC (nonconsolidated)

Actual Profit or Loss (¥ billion)
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i Reasons for losses exceeding the VaR
In all cases, these were the result of significant fluctuations on the
foreign exchange and interest rate markets.
c. Indicators substitute for the back-testing method
SMFG employs, as a method substitute for the back-testing
method, the VaR wherein presumption for the model such as obser-
vation period changes.
d. Changes in model from previous fiscal year
The model in use remains unchanged from that employed in the
previous fiscal year.
(c) Stress Testing
The market occasionally undergoes extreme fluctuations that
exceed projections. To manage market risk, therefore, it is important
to run simulations of unforeseen situations that may occur in finan-
cial markets (stress testing). SMBC conducts stress tests regularly,
assuming various scenarios, and has measures in place for irregular
events.
(d) Outlier Framework
In the event the economic value of a bank declines by more than
20% of total capital as a result of interest rate shocks, that bank
would fall into the category of “outlier bank,” as stipulated under the
Pillar 2 of Basel Framework.

This ratio, known as the outlier ratio, was around 1% at SMBC
on a consolidated basis at March 31, 2015, substantially below the
20% criterion.

(e) Management of Stocks Held for Strategic Purposes

SMBC establishes risk allowance limits on stocks held for strategic
purposes and monitors the observance of these limits in order to
control stock price fluctuation risk adequately. More specifically, VaR
(1 year holding period) computed from profit and loss simulations
based on historical market fluctuation data and aggregated fluctua-
tion in market price from the beginning of the fiscal year are subject
to the risk capital limit management and monitored on a daily basis.

Furthermore, SMBC has been reducing its strategic equity
investments and the outstanding amount is now around 20% of Tier

M Decline in Economic Value Based on Outlier Framework

(Billions of yen)
SMBC (consolidated) SMBC (nonconsolidated)
March 31,2014 | March 31,2015 | March 31,2014 | March 31, 2015
Total 83.0 132.6 66.7 117.9
Impact of Yen
interest rates 31.1 21.2 23.8 17.3
Impact of U.S. dollar
interest rates 25.7 57.4 21.5 52.6
Impact of Euro
interest rates 18.6 25.5 18.2 24.5
Percentage of total capital 0.9% 1.3% 0.8% 1.2%

Note: “Decline in economic value” is the decline of present value after interest rate
shocks (1st and 99th percentile of observed interest rate changes using a
1-year holding period and 5 years of observations).
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1 capital, significantly below this maximum level permitted under the
Act on Financial Institutions (etc.)’, Limits for Share, etc. Holdings.
(2) Liquidity Risk Management

At SMBC, liquidity risk is regarded as one of the major risks.
SMBC's liquidity risk management is based on a framework consist-
ing of “setting upper limits for funding gaps,” “maintaining highly lig-
uid supplementary funding sources,” and “establishing contingency
plans.”

A funding gap is defined as the maturity mismatch between
source of funds and use of funds. SMBC actively manages this
funding gap by setting limits on the size of the gap over a given
time horizon and limiting reliance on short-term funding. These limits
are set in place on both a bank-wide basis and individual branch
basis, and take into account cash management planning, systemic
factors, and funding status, among other factors. Additionally, fund-
ing gap limits are set for individual currencies if necessary. SMBC
actively monitors the funding gap on a daily basis.

Further, stress tests are regularly carried out by simulating the
impact triggered, for example, by the outflow of deposits or having
difficulties in funding from money markets, in order to thoroughly
comprehend the amount required to fund when the liquidity risk
is realized. Additionally, funding liquidity is maintained by holding
assets, such as U.S. government bonds, which can be immediately
converted to cash, or establishing borrowing facilities to be used
as supplementary funding sources in an emergency, in order to
smoothly raise the required fund even during market disruption.

Furthermore, contingency plans are developed to respond to
the liquidity risk when being realized, by creating detailed action
plans such as lowering the upper limit for the funding gap, depend-
ing on the existing situation (i.e. normal, concerned, or critical) and
the respective circumstances.

B Composition, by Industry, of Listed Equity Portfolio

(%) (March 31, 2015)
25

1 SMBC Portfolio
o — TOPKX
—— Nikkei Average

WIS H 11l
0 o Eamn=a S [1 | =
m OTNF VOV IIDODRZ m—dvOo o = 3 DDWDS O VW
25843323 RESS TS IST SS9 PEZ2FY
gzag:ugaggwmagno:n% sE_ 53522z
S.a = D T/=3FgaolL D = = @ o S SO @ = mo
g°S3¥EBEE52 5332553325228 53248
< = & =1 s 9 = =] a3° & o Loz
T 22 292333 58<5z==2 8822 ° S 8&
5 "2 5928 =§5§ 3585858~ e= S 2
El @ 5350 26 5933228 oOf s =
> [ =1 ==y 83 o= =]
< @ 233 =1 =S =3
ey == =3 =
3 2 g3 S
3 = s
2 E] g
< &
=
=
=}
S
3



Operational Risk
1. Basic Approach to Operational Risk Management

(1) Definition of Operational Risk

Operational risk is the risk of loss resulting from inadequate or failed
internal processes, people and systems or from external events.
Specifically, Basel Capital Accord—which, in addition to process-
ing risk and system risk, also covers legal risk, personnel risk, and
physical asset risk—defines the following seven types of events
that may lead to the risk of loss: (1) internal fraud, (2) external fraud,
(8) employment practices and workplace safety, (4) clients, products
and business practices, (5) damage to physical assets, (6) busi-
ness disruption and system failures, and (7) execution, delivery, and
process management.

(2) Fundamental Principles for Operational Risk Management

SMFG and SMBC have set forth the Regulations on Operational
Risk Management to define the basic rules to be observed in the
conduct of operational risk management across the entire Group.
Under these regulations, SMFG and SMBC have been working to
enhance the operational risk management framework across the
whole Group by establishing an effective system for identification,
assessment, controlling, and monitoring of material operational risks
and a system for executing contingency and business continuity
plans. Based on the framework of Basel Capital Accord, SMFG has
been continuously pursuing sophisticated quantification of opera-
tional risks and advanced Groupwide management.

B SMBC’s Operational Risk Management System
Corporate Auditors

External Audit
(Auditing Firm)

2. Operational Risk Management System
SMFG has designed and implemented an operational risk manage-
ment framework for Groupwide basic policies for risk management.

At SMBC, the Management Committee makes decisions on
important matters such as basic policies for operational risk man-
agement, and these decisions are authorized by the SMBC'’s Board
of Directors. In addition, SMBC has established the system to com-
prehensively manage operational risks by setting up the Corporate
Risk Management Department to oversee overall management of
operational risks together with other departments responsible for
processing risks and system risks.

As the brief overview, this system operates by collecting and
analyzing internal loss data occurred at each department or branch
as well as comprehensively specifying scenarios involving opera-
tional risks based on the operational procedures of each branch on
regular-basis and estimating the loss amount and frequency of the
occurrence of such losses based on each scenario. Risk severities
are quantified for each scenario and for those scenarios having high
severities the risk mitigation plan will be developed by the relevant
department and the status on the progress of such risk mitiga-
tion plan will be followed up by the Corporate Risk Management
Department. Furthermore, operational risks are quantified, and
quantitatively managed by utilizing the collected internal loss data
and scenarios.

Board of Directors

Management Committee

Direction Reporting‘ Operational Risk Committee
1
Internal Audit Dept.
vatvep Audit Board Member in Charge of Risk Management Unit ‘ .................................................................
Direction Reporting ¢ Feedback of measurement results related to operational risk

Corporate Risk Management Dept.

: Supervisor of overall operational risk management :
: Measurement of operational risk :

Monitoring of progress in risk mitigation plans

Reporting
Generation of scenarios and development of risk
mitigation actions

Retail Banking Wholesale Banking

Reflection of internal loss data, external
loss data and BEICFs in scenarios

International Banking

Reporting

Internal loss data

Head Office departments

Treasury Investment Banking
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These occurrences of internal loss data, severity of scenarios
and status on risk mitigation are regularly reported to the director in
charge of the Corporate Risk Management Department. In addition,
there is the Operational Risk Committee, comprising all relevant
units of the bank, where operational risk information is reported and
risk mitigation plans are discussed. In this way, we realize a highly
effective operational risk management framework. The operational
risk situation is also reported to the Management Committee and
the Board of Directors on a regular basis, for review of the basic
policies on operational risk management. Moreover, the bank’s
independent Internal Audit Department conducts periodic audits to
ensure that the operational risk management system is functioning
properly.

3. Operational Risk Management Methodology
As previously defined, operational risks cover a wide-range of
cases, including the risks of losses due to errors in operation,
system failures, and natural disasters. Also, operational risk events
can occur virtually anywhere and everywhere. Thus, it is essential
to check whether material operational risks have been overlooked,
monitor the overall status of risks, and manage/control them. To this
end, it is necessary to be able to quantify risks using a measure-
ment methodology that can be applied to all types of operational
risks, and to comprehensively and comparatively capture the status
of and changes in potential operational risks of business processes.
Also, from the viewpoint of internal control, the measurement meth-
odology used to create a risk mitigation plan must be such that the
implementation of the plan quantitatively reduces operational risks.

At the end of March 2008, SMFG and SMBC adopted the
Advanced Measurement Approach (AMA) set forth by Basel Capital
Accord for calculation of operational risk equivalent amount. The
approach has been utilized for the management of operational risks
since then.

The basic framework for quantifying operational risks consists
of internal loss data, external loss data, Business Environment and
Internal Control Factors (BEICFs) and scenario analysis. Out of the
above-mentioned four factors, internal loss data and the results
of scenario analysis (hereinafter, the “assumption data”) are input
into the internal measurement system (hereinafter, the “quantifica-
tion model”) developed by SMBC; and operational risk equivalent
amount and risk asset (operational risk equivalent amount is divided
by 8%) is calculated. In addition, external loss data and BEICFs
along with internal loss data are used for verifying the assessment
of scenarios to increase objectivity, accuracy and completeness.
SMFG, including the Group companies to which the AMA is
applied, collect the four elements.

This is outlined as follows.

(1) Internal Loss Data
Internal loss data are defined as “the information for events which
SMFG incur losses due to operational risks.”
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(2) External Loss Data

External loss data are defined as “the information for events which

other banks, etc. incur losses due to operational risks.”

(3) Business Environment and Internal Control Factors
(BEICFs)

BEICFs are defined as “factors affecting operational risks which are

associated with conditions of business environment and internal

control of SMFG.”

(4) Scenario Analysis

Scenario analysis is defined as a “methodology which identi-
fies assumed cases involving any material operational risks and
describe them in terms of risk scenario, and estimate the frequency
and severity of risk scenarios.” SMFG'’s principal business opera-
tions are applicable for this methodology.

The purposes of scenario analysis are to identify any potential
risks underlying in our business operations; to measure risks based
on the possibility of occurrence of the said potential risks; and to
review and execute any required measures. Furthermore, another
purpose of the scenario analysis is to estimate the frequency of low
frequency and high-severity events for each scenario (which may be
difficult to estimate using internal loss data alone).

(5) Measurement Using the Quantification Model
The quantification model produces the distribution of loss frequency
and loss severity based on the internal loss data and scenario
data; and it also produces the loss distribution based on the said
distribution of loss frequency (distribution of losses in a year) and
the distribution of loss severity (distribution of loss amount per case)
by making scenarios of the various combination of frequencies
and amount of losses according to the Monte Carlo simulations;
and it calculates the maximum amount of loss expected, due to
operational risks, based on the assumption of one-sided confidence
interval of 99.9% and the holding period of one year. Regarding
the Consumer finance of a certain subsidiary, expected losses are
excluded in calculating the operational risk equivalent amount of the
repayment of excess interest.

The measurement units are SMFG consolidated basis, SMBC
consolidated basis and SMBC nonconsolidated basis; and it is

M Basic Framework of Operational Risk Measurement

Internal Loss Data
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input Calculation of
Operational Risk
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measured according to each of seven event types set forth by Basel
Capital Accord. The operational risk equivalent amount is calculated
based on AMA by simply consolidating the amounts of all event
types. For the measurement of SMFG consolidated basis, how-
ever, the operational risk equivalent amount is calculated by simply
consolidating the amounts of all eight event types consisting of the
seven event types and losses relating to the repayment of excess
interest. The measurement accuracy is ensured by implementing
the regularly conducted verifications of the said quantification model
at pre- and post-occurrences.

Meanwhile, as for the operational risk equivalent amount of
other Group companies not applicable for AMA and in preparation
to become applicable for AMA, it is calculated according to the
Basic Indicator Approach (BIA), and the operational risk equivalent
amount for SMFG consolidated basis and SMBC consolidated
basis are calculated by consolidating such amount calculated
based on BIA with the operational risk equivalent amount calculated
based on AMA.

(6) Risk Mitigation Initiatives

To mitigate risks using the quantitative results of the AMA, SMFG
and SMBC implement risk mitigation measures for high severity
scenarios. Furthermore, the risk assets calculated by quantification
are allocated to each business unit of SMBC and other Group com-
panies for increasing awareness of operational risks internally in the
Group companies, improving the effectiveness of their operational
risk management and mitigating operational risks of the entire Group.

Bl Measurement Using the Quantification Model

4. Processing Risk Management
Processing risk is the possibility of losses arising from negligent
processing by employees, accidents, or unauthorized activities.

SMFG recognizes that all operations entail processing risk.
We are, therefore, working to raise the level of sophistication of
our management of processing risk across the whole Group by
ensuring that each branch conducts its own regular investigations
of processing risk; minimizing losses in the event of processing
errors or negligence by drafting exhaustive contingency plans; and
carrying out thorough quantification of the risk under management.

In the administrative regulations of SMBC, in line with SMFG’s
Groupwide basic policies for risk management, the basic admin-
istrative regulations are defined as “comprehending the risks and
costs of administration and transaction processing, and managing
them accordingly,” and “seeking to raise the quality of adminis-
tration to deliver high-quality service to customers.” Adding new
policies or making major revisions to existing ones for processing
risk management requires the approval of both the Management
Committee and the Board of Directors.

In the administrative regulations, SMBC has also defined spe-
cific rules for processing risk management. The rules allocate pro-
cessing risk management tasks among six types of departments:
operations planning departments, compliance departments, opera-
tions departments, transaction execution departments (primarily
front-office departments, branches, and branch service offices),
internal audit departments, and the customer support departments.
In addition, there is a specialized group within the Operations
Planning Department to strengthen administrative procedures
throughout the Group.
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5. System Risk Management
System risk is the possibility of a loss arising from the failure, mal-
function, or unauthorized use of computer systems.

SMFG recognizes that reliable computer systems are essential
for the effective implementation of management strategy in view of
the IT revolution. We strive to minimize system risk by drafting regu-
lations and specific management standards, including a security
policy. We also have contingency plans with the goal of minimizing
losses in the event of a system failure. The development of such a
system risk management system ensures that the Group as a whole
is undertaking adequate risk management.

At SMBC, safety measures are strengthened according to risk
assessment based on the Financial Services Agency’s Financial
Inspection Manual, and the Security Guidelines published by the
Center for Financial Industry Information Systems (FISC). Computer-
related trouble at financial institutions now has great potential to
impact society, with system risk diversifying owing to advances
in IT and expansion of business fields. To prevent any computer
system breakdowns, we have taken numerous measures, including
constant maintenance of our computer system to ensure steady
and uninterrupted operation, duplication of various systems and
infrastructures, and the establishment of a disaster-prevention sys-
tem consisting of computer centers in eastern and western Japan.
And to maintain the confidentiality of customer information and pre-
vent information leaks, sensitive information is encrypted, unauthor-
ized external access is blocked, and all known countermeasures to
secure data are implemented. There are also contingency plans and
training sessions held as necessary to ensure full preparedness in
the event of an emergency. To maintain security, countermeasures
are revised as new technologies and usage patterns emerge.
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Settlement Risk

Settlement risk is the possibility of a loss arising from a transaction

that cannot be settled as planned. As this risk crosses over numer-
ous risks, including credit, liquidity, processing and system risks, it
is required to appropriately manage according to characteristics of
such risks.

At SMBC, the Corporate Risk Management Department is in
overall charge of settlement risk, while settlement risk included
within the various other risk categories is managed by the respec-
tive department in charge: the Credit & Investment Planning
Department for credit risk, the Corporate Risk Management
Department for liquidity risk, the Operations Planning Department
for processing risk, and the IT Planning Department for system risk.



Glossary

ALM

Abbreviation for Asset Liability Management

Method for comprehensive management of assets and liabilities, with
appropriate controls on market risk (interest rates, exchange rates, etc.).

Advanced Measurement Approach (AMA)

Based on the operational risk measurement methods used in the inter-
nal management of financial institutions, this is a method for obtaining
the operational risk equivalent amount by calculating the maximum
amount of operational risk loss expected over a period of one year, with
a one-sided confidence interval of 99.9%.

Back-testing

Method of verifying the validity of models by comparing the model value
and actual value. For instance, in the case of VaR, comparing and verify-
ing the value of VaR and the profit or loss amount.

Basel I

The Basel Capital Accord, an international agreement, was amended in
December 2010 for ensuring the soundness of banks (minimum capital
requirements) for the purpose of enhancing the capabilities of appropri-
ately responding to any financial and economic crisis and reducing risks
which may have originated from financial sector to adversely affect the
actual economy. It has been implemented incrementally since 2013.

Basic Indicator Approach (BIA)

A calculation approach in which an average value for the most recent
three years derived by multiplying gross profit for the financial institution
as a whole by certain level (15%) is deemed to be the operational risk
equivalent amount.

BPV

Abbreviation for Basis Point Value

Potential change in present value of financial product corresponding to
0.01-percentage-point increase in interest rates.

Credit cost
Average losses expected to occur during the coming year.

Historical simulation method
Method of simulating future fluctuations without the use of random num-
bers, by using historical data for risk factors.

LGD

Abbreviation for Loss Given Default

Percentage of loss assumed in the event of default by obligor; ratio of
uncollectible amount of the exposure owned in the event of default.

Monte Carlo simulation method
General term used for a simulation method which uses random
numbers.

Outlier framework
Monitoring standard for interest rate risk in the banking book, as set
forth in the Pillar 2 of the Basel Capital Accord.

Operational risk equivalent amount
Operational risk capital requirements under the Basel Capital Accord
capital adequacy regulations.

PD
Abbreviation for Probability of Default
Probability of becoming default by obligor during one year.

Present value
A future amount of money that has been discounted to reflect its current
value taking into account the interest rate and the extent of credit risk.

Risk appetite
Types and levels of risk that SMFG is willing to take on or tolerate to
drive earnings growth.

Risk appetite framework
A framework in which SMFG'’s risk appetite is clarified and appropriately
applied to its business operation.

Risk capital

The amount of required capital, which is statistically calculated from
the historical market fluctuations, default rates, etc., to cover an unex-
pected loss arising from risks of business operations. It differs from the
minimum regulatory capital requirements, and it is being used in the risk
management framework voluntarily developed by financial institutions for
the purpose of internal management.

Risk factor

Anything which may become a factor for risk. In the case of market risk,
it would be the share price or interest rate; in the case of credit risk, it
would be the default rate or economic environment.

Risk-weighted assets

e Credit risk
Total assets (lending exposures, including credit equivalent amount of
off-balance sheet transactions, etc.) which is reevaluated according to
the level of credit risk.

e Operational risk
Amount derived by dividing the operational risk equivalent amount by
8%.

Sound risk culture

Business culture in which SMFG seeks to achieve the appropriate bal-
ance between risk and return after determining the degree of risk that is
acceptable.

Underlying assets
General term used for assets which serve as the source of payments for
principal and interest for securitization exposures, etc.

VaR

Abbreviation for Value at Risk

Forecasted maximum loss incurred by the relevant portfolio under cer-
tain probability.
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Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR)

Contributing to

the Sustainable Development of Society

Today, modern society is faced with diverse issues such as global
warming, rapid population growth, and a declining birthrate and
aging of the population in advanced countries. The SMFG Group
believes that it is our Group’s social responsibilities, our CSR, to
remind us of and practice the roles as the global financial group for
resolving issues for the sustainable development of the society.

Basic CSR Policies

SMFG has set forth the definition and common principles for “busi-
ness ethics” for CSR in order to clearly describe and effectively
promote CSR activities in the Group.

SMFG’s Definition of CSR

In the conduct of its business activities, SMFG fulfills its social responsibilities
by contributing to the sustainable development of society as a whole through
offering higher added value to (i) customers, (i) shareholders and the market,
(iii) the environment and society, and (iv) employees.

SMFG’s Group-Wide CSR Philosophy: “Business Ethics”

|. Satisfactory Customer Services
We intend to be a financial services group that has the complete trust and
support of our customers. For this purpose, we will always provide services
that meet the true needs of our customers to assure their satisfaction and
earn confidence in the Group.

Il. Sound Management
We intend to be a financial services group that maintains fair, transparent,
and sound management based on the principle of self-responsibility. For
this purpose, along with earning the firm confidence of our shareholders,
our customers, and the general public, we take a long-term view of our
business and operate it efficiently, and actively disclose accurate business
information about the Group. Through these activities, we work to maintain
continued growth based on a sound financial position.

.

Contributing to Social Development
We intend to be a financial services group that contributes to the healthy
development of society. For this purpose, we recognize the importance of
our mission to serve as a crucial part of the public infrastructure and also
our social responsibilities. With such recognition, we undertake business
operations that contribute to the steady development of Japan and the rest
of the world, and endeavor, as a good corporate citizen, to make a positive
contribution to society.
IV. Free and Active Business Environment
We intend to be a financial services group for which all officers and
employees work with pride and commitment. For this purpose, we respect
people and develop employees with extensive professional knowledge and
capabilities, thereby creating a free and active business environment.
V. Compliance
We intend to be a financial services group that always keeps in mind the
importance of compliance. For this purpose, we reflect our awareness
of Business Ethics in our business activities at all times. In addition, we
respond promptly to directives from auditors and inspectors. Through
these actions, we observe all laws and regulations, and uphold moral
standards in our business practices.
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Integral Development of CSR and
Business Strategies
The SMFG Group believes that CSR is the foundation for SMFG
Group’s business strategies which should be integrally incorporated
with business strategies for achieving the management policies and
goals. In another words, it is the concept that we consistently verify
and confirm according to the basic policy of CSR whether the direction
of our business strategies promoted by our Group corresponds with
our vision in 10 years of “becoming the highly trusted global financial
group which leads Japan and Asia, and grow along with clients”; and
then, we reflect the needs of clients and society in our CSR activities.
We believe that fulfiling CSR is truly “management itself,” and seri-
ously committing to the implementation of CSR would be the shortest
and quickest way to achieve our management policies and goals.

Support for Initiatives in Japan and Overseas

As a corporate citizen of the global society, SMFG is fully aware of
the social impact of the financial institution, and it shall support the
following initiatives in Japan and overseas (the action guidelines for
the corporate activities and principles).

Initiatives supported by SMFG in Japan and overseas

¢ United Nations Global Compact
Ten principles proposed by the United Nations concerning human rights,
labor, environment and corruption prevention

¢ United Nations Environment Programme Finance Initiative (UNEP FI)
Organization which pursues, develops and promotes the ideal financial
institutions which pay attention to the environment and sustainability

e CDP (Carbon Disclosure Project)
Initiatives which measures, manages and reduces effects of climate changes
by prompting institutional investors and business managers to have
dialogues regarding such climate changes

¢ Equator Principles
Environmental and social standards which are set forth based on the
International Finance Corporation (IFC) guidelines for project finance projects

e Principles for Financial Action toward a Sustainable Society (Principles
for Financial Action for the 21st Century)
Principles of action for financial institutions in Japan for the purpose of
expanding and improving the quality of environmental finance

M CSR Values for SMFG

I Contributing to the Sustainable Development of Society I

Shareholders and = The Environment

Customers the Market and Society Employees
-- -1 CSR Group Initiatives -- -
) Social and
Hilghivavallied Sound environmental Corporate .
products and it bttt ) culture respecting
services programs the individuals

Solid Management Structure
(corporate governance, internal controls, compliance, risk
management, information disclosure, etc.)



For Building Relations with Respective
Stakeholders

Clients
(Principle communication means)
Toll-free telephone service (domestic calls only),
CS surveys and questionnaires conducted
at branches

Shareholders and the Market
(Principle communication means)
General Shareholders” Meeting, small
meetings, annual report

Employees
(Principle communication means)
Employee awareness surveys
Exchanging opinions with management

Society and Environment
(Principle communication means)
Cooperation with NGOs and NPOs

Environmental Business Forum

e Clients: We shall provide high value-added products and services to clients
and develop along with clients.

* Shareholders and the Market: With appropriate information disclosure, we
shall maintain sound management and increase shareholder value through
improvement of the internal control system.

* Society and Environment: We shall strive to consistently and proactively
engage in social and environmental activities; contribute to the society; and
preserve the earth’s environment.

* Employees: We shall develop the kind of corporate culture which respects
employees and allow them to exercise one’s full potential without any
hindrance.

Guidelines Used for Reference
The Group refers to the following guidelines in its promotion devel-
opment, and information disclosure for CSR.

* 1SO26000
This is the “guidance document” with respect to social responsibilities,
consisting of basic principles and seven core subjects (governance, human
rights, labor practices, the environment, fair operating practices, consumer
issues, and community involvement and development).

¢ GRI Guidelines
“Sustainability Reporting Guidelines (G3.1 and G4.0)" of GRI (Global
Reporting Initiative) is referred to for editing of CSR website and preparation

of CSR.

*GRI (Global Reporting Initiative): International organization established in 1997
for the purpose of creating and promoting global guidelines for the “Sustainability
Report.”

¢ United Nations Global Compact, COP (Communication on Progress),
Advanced Level Criteria
21 evaluation criteria provided for reporting performance status of 10
principles of the signed United Nations Global Compact.

SRI Indices

The Group’s CSR activities have been highly evaluated by the
market and included in internationally-known, major SRl (“Socially
Responsible Investment”) Indices. The SRI Index is a standard
for investment decisions that are based not only on financial
perspectives, but also on important views including environmental
considerations and social contributions. We believe that this is an
endorsement by the market of the Group’s future corporate social
responsibility activities.

Review of Priority Issues (Materiality) which
SMFG Should Address
In fiscal 2013, the Group has reviewed the previously-raised priority
issues according to changes in social trends, and newly identi-
fied three subject matters of “Environment,” “Next Generations”
and “Community” as the medium- to long-term priority issues

(Materiality).

<Review of Priority Issues which SMFG Should Address>

sustainable sharing
of the earth

As a financial group,
be a bridge to the future

Toward a vibrant
society that balances
maturity and growth

Community

Toward a healthy and
distinctive community
in which everyone
can participate

M Reduce environmental
impact and address
environmental risk

M Promote environmental
businesses and address
new environmental
issues

B Social contribution
activities dealing with
environmental issues,

M Support for next
generation asset
inheritance and
business i

M Great East Japan
Earthquake
reconstruction support

M Contribute to improving
financial literacy and
developing financial
markets in emerging
countries

M Develop young adults

M Contribute to
and developing safe and
secure communities

B Community-based
activities led by
employees and officers,
etc.

etc. and global human
resources, etc.

( Key Issues to be Addressed on a Solid Management Base

Interaction with
stakeholders

Pleasant workplace and

Customer satisfaction work environment

| Corporate governance |

| Risk management || Rigorous information management |

|Fair business practices and competitionl | Countermeasures for anti-social forces |
\ y,

As for identifying these priority issues, we broadly selected
issues according to the above-mentioned guidelines and prioritized
them based on the degree of importance from perspectives of each
SMFG Group company and stakeholders. Concurrently, the final
priority issues were determined taking into account the opinions of
experts through discussions. In fiscal 2014, we promoted measures
for resolving priority issues by reviewing through discussions with
internal and external stakeholders and respective Group companies.

We will continue to engage in specific activities for Group com-
panies upon further identifying the items which should be worked
on according to priority issues.
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Initiatives for Enhancing Customer Satisfaction (CS) and Quality

SMFG’s Initiatives

SMFG shall implement measures to improve CS and Quality while
cooperating among group companies by setting forth as one of
our management principles: “To found our own prosperity on pro-
viding valuable services which help our customers to build their
prosperity.”

SMFG regularly holds meetings for the “Group CS Committee”
which is chaired by the senior management executive of the general
affairs section of the Group for promoting cooperation among group
companies. The committee discusses and exchanges opinions and
ideas regarding opinions and suggestions received from our clients
or CS promotion policies, and it strives to further improve CS and
Quality of the entire Group.

Measures Taken by SMBC

The head office of SMBC analyzes opinions and suggestions
received from our clients and incorporates such opinions and sug-
gestions received from our clients into our management and training
seminars for employees for improvement of products and services
based on such analysis.

Responding to customers’ opinions and requests

The customers’ opinions and requests, which are received at
branches or made through our toll-free telephone service, are
collected and registered into the database for “Voice of the
Customers” (VOC), along with data received from CS surveys and
questionnaires conducted by our bank. The registered data are
widely shared among all departments of the Bank.

Based on such registered data for VOC, there may be cases
in which the head office departments may advise branches, review
individual products and services, or consider measures to be taken
for the entire bank.

The bank has set up the Quality Management Department
which is responsible for developing plans and preparing systems
for improvement of CS and Quality. Additionally, this department
holds meetings for the “CS and Quality Improvement Committee,”
which is chaired by the President, to discuss appropriate cross-
departmental measures for the entire bank in order to achieve
greater satisfaction by customers.

Clients always come first

SMBC sets forth detailed action principles under the “Clients
always come first” of the “Compliance Manual,” along with the
above-mentioned “Management Principles,” in order to enforce
the attitude of “Clients always come first.” Furthermore, the
bank raises awareness for the attitude of “Clients always come
first” for all employees through group training seminars and
study sessions conducted at branches. During such training
seminars and study sessions, the bank specifically incorporates
clients’ opinions and requests for the implementation of “Clients
always come first” attitude into daily business activities.

SMEFG strives to improve CS and Quality of the entire Group
and to become the “highly-trusted” financial services group, through
implementation of such measures.

B Measures to improve Customer Satisfaction (CS) and Quality of the Bank

. R S
Toll-free telephone service (domestic calls only), CS surveys and questionnaires
R .
Head office _>
departments . Reports
4 Voice of the ((;JS alnd
Opinions Customers (VOC) Analysis uality
Customers Branch Database Improvement
B Committee
and other
' offices < Guidance at the branch
Response Improvement of products and services Mag:gatlelxent Directives
< Management Principles / Compliance Manual Dept.
Training seminars and study sessions
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Corporate Governance

Our Position on Corporate Governance

SMFG and its Group companies follow the SMFG management
philosophy set forth as the universal guide for the Group man-
agement and consider this philosophy as the foundation for any
corporate activities. We are working to improve the effectiveness of
corporate governance as we consider strengthening and enhance-
ment of corporate governance as one of the top prioritized issues
in order to achieve the management philosophy. Further, SMFG
establishes its “SMFG Corporate Governance Guideline” as its
principles and guidelines to be referred to for corporate gover-
nance, in order to improve sustainable growth and medium- and
long-term corporate values by preventing the occurrence of mis-
conduct and unsound corporate situations and through achieving
effective corporate governance with these measures.

The SMFG Corporate Governance System

As a company with a board of corporate auditors, SMFG
implements the system which enhances appropriateness and
efficiency of audit for the board of directors to appropriately
exercise its oversight function, and for corporate auditors to
independently exercise the auditing function, and the board
of corporate auditors to establish auditing policies by resolu-
tion. In terms of incorporating external views and opinions into
management, on June 26, 2015, we have increased the number
of outside directors and outside corporate auditors in total from
six to eight; and five out of thirteen directors and three out of six
corporate auditors are outside directors and corporate auditors.

As for corporate auditors, they attend important SMFG
meetings including the Board of Directors meetings, in accor-
dance with the audit policy and allocation of audit procedures
as set forth by the Board of Corporate Auditors, and receive
reports from directors and others on the execution status of
duties; and they audit such execution status of SMFG directors
through reviewing material approval documents, communicating
with internal audit department and subsidiaries, and hearing
reports made by accounting auditors.

As for the Board, the chairman of SMFG serves as the
chairman of the Board of Directors for SMFG. The role of
the chairman is clearly separated from responsibilities of the
president who oversees the overall business operations.
Furthermore, the establishment of internal governance com-
mittees under the Board and appointment of outside directors
enhance the effectiveness of the Board.

The Board set up four internal committees: the Auditing
Committee, the Risk Management Committee, the Compensation
Committee, and the Nominating Committee. All three outside
directors have been appointed for these committees in order to
objectively oversee corporate governance. As the objectivity is
explicitly required for both Auditing Committee and Compensation
Committee, the outside directors are appointed as the chairmen
for these committees to further enhance such required objectivity.

The Group Management Committee is set up under the
Board to serve as the top decision-making body. The Group
Management Committee is chaired by the president of SMFG
and the directors are appointed by the president. The commit-
tee members consider important management issues based

on policies set by the Board of Directors, and the president has
the authority to make the final decision after considering the
committee’s recommendations.

The Group Strategy Committee is set up for matters related
to business plans of each Group company and to exchange
opinions, discuss and report on the management of SMFG and
each of the Group companies.

Furthermore, seven directors out of thirteen directors (out of
which five directors are outside directors) of SMFG also serve
as the directors for SMBC to oversee its business execution. As
for three companies of Sumitomo Mitsui Finance and Leasing
Company, Limited, SMBC Consumer Finance Co., Ltd., and
The Japan Research Institute, Limited of SMFG’s directly-
owned subsidiaries, the SMFG directors also serve as the direc-
tors for each of these subsidiaries to oversee their business.

Furthermore, in order to maintain sound management,
SMFG sets forth a system which firmly maintains the appropri-
ateness of SMFG’s business operations, as the internal control
regulations for SMFG and its Group companies pursuant to the
Japanese Company Law. SMFG considers that the develop-
ment of a solid management system is an important manage-
ment issue by further improving the internal control system.

The SMBC Corporate Governance System

SMBC implements the corporate auditor system by appointing
six corporate auditors, out of which three corporate auditors are
outside auditors. SMBC implements the executive officer system
by dividing functions of “business execution” and “overseeing
function” in order to increase the transparency and soundness
of management. The executive officers execute business opera-
tions and the Board serves mainly as the overseeing function.

The chairman of the bank also serves as the chairman of the
Board; segregates his functions and duties from the president of
the bank who controls the overall business operations; does not
concurrently hold the position of executive officer; and mainly over-
sees the business execution. Furthermore, SMBC further strength-
ens the overseeing function by appointing three outside directors
out of seventeen directors for the bank. The executive officers, who
manage business operations, are appointed by the Board.

There are a total of eighty-one executive officers, including
the president, as of June 30, 2015 (out of eighty-one executive
officers, eleven executive officers concurrently serve as directors).

The Management Committee is set up under the Board
to serve as the highest decision-making body for the bank.
The Management Committee is chaired by the president of the
bank, and the executive officers are appointed by the president.
The committee members consider important management
issues based on policies set by the Board of Directors, and
the president has the authority to make the final decision after
considering the committee’s recommendations.

Furthermore, pursuant to the decisions made by the Board,
the president designates certain members of the Management
Committee to be Authorized Management Committee members in
charge of particular Head Office departments or units. All of these
designated individuals are in charge of implementing the directives
of the Management Committee within the businesses they oversee.
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Internal Audit System

An Outline of the Group’s Internal Audit System

In addition to the SMFG Auditing Committee, which functions as
a governance committee reporting to the Board of Directors, the
Internal Auditing Committee is set up as part of the Management
Committee, taking into consideration its critical role and
responsibility for the internal audit for the management, in order
to effectively facilitate the internal audits. The Internal Auditing
Committee meets every quarter, and its members discuss
important internal auditing matters based on reports prepared
by the departments responsible for conducting internal audits.
Under such structure, the Audit Department is set up as the
independently operated internal auditing unit of the Group.

The Audit Department conducts internal audits on the oper-
ations of all of the Group’s units and departments for proper
operations of the Group and the soundness of their assets.
These audits also have the functions of verifying whether the
Group’s internal control systems, including compliance and
risk management, are appropriately and effectively operated.
Additionally the Audit Department is responsible for the overall
supervision of the internal audit functions of the Group compa-
nies, for appropriateness and effectiveness by monitoring the
progress and performance of each company’s internal auditing
activities and conducting audits on the common subject among
groups as deemed necessary. Based on these activities, the
Audit Department provides recommendations and guidance
to the business units and departments as well as to the Group
companies.

At SMBC, we have established the Internal Audit Unit which
is independently operated from other business activities. Under
the Internal Audit Unit, the Internal Audit Department and the
Credit Review Department are set up. Similarly for SMFG,
SMBC also sets up an Internal Auditing Committee, which is
responsible for discussing and reporting important matters
proposed by the Internal Audit Unit, as the committee partially
constituting its Management Committee.

The Internal Audit Unit is responsible for auditing compli-
ance and risk management at SMBC (head office departments,
domestic and overseas branches) and SMBC Group compa-
nies. The audit of operations of the head office departments is
conducted by assessing for appropriateness of overall internal
control systems of each department, including the functional

Shareholders’ Meeting

Board of Directors

Nominating | (Compensation | | Risk Management Auditing
Committee Committee Committee Committee

Group Strategy
Committee

|Management Committee | Internal Auditing Committee |

Business units subject to auditing

Corporate Auditors/
Board of Corporate Auditors

Office of Corporate Auditors

status of procedures for the “Plan, Do, Check and Act”
(PDCA) method. In addition to these individual audits for each
department, we also focus on specific businesses or specified
critical issues associated with risk management to conduct
the “Theme audit” for verifying the bank’s overall or cross-
departmental conditions of the internal control systems.
Moreover, audits of branches and offices are not limited to
simply inspecting for any inadequacies but also specifying and
pointing out issues for the overall internal control systems,
including any problem items associated with compliance and
risk management; and making proposals for improvement mea-
sures or corrective actions.

For other Group companies, internal audit departments
have been set up according to the respective business charac-
teristics of such Group companies.

Initiatives to Enhance the Sophistication and
Efficiency of Internal Audit
The Audit Department has adopted methods in accordance
with the standards of the Institute of Internal Auditors (lIA)*, an
international organization. The Audit Department conducts risk
based audits and the Group companies also conduct the same.

The Audit Department, as the controlling department for
the Group’s overall internal audit systems, strives to enhance
the expertise of internal auditors such as collection of internal
and external up-to-date information related to internal audit and
forwarding such information to the Group companies; imple-
mentation of seminars conducted by outside professionals for
the Group companies; and promoting the acquisition of interna-
tional qualification for internal audit. Also, the Audit Department
organizes training programs taught by outside experts for the
staff of the Group companies, encouraging them to learn inter-
national standards to enhance their professional knowledge and
skills for internal audit.

To further improve the effectiveness of audit, we also proactively
take measures on a group-wide basis to assess the quality of our
internal audit while taking into account the IIA standards.

* The Institute of Internal Auditors, Inc. (IlA) was founded in 1941 in the United States as
an organization dedicated to helping raise the level of specialization and professionalism
of internal auditing staff. In addition to conducting theoretical and practical research on
internal auditing, the IIA administers examinations for Certified Internal Auditor (CIA),
which is the internationally recognized qualification in this field.

Shareholders’ Meeting
Corporate Auditors/
Board of Corporate Auditors

Office of Corporate Auditors

Board of Directors

[ Management Committee | Interal Auditing Committee |]

Business units subject
to auditing
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Compliance

Compliance Systems at SMFG

Basic Compliance Policies

SMFG strives to further strengthen its compliance systems to
be able to fulfill its public mission and corporate social responsi-
bilities as a financial services group offering diversified products
and services for becoming a truly outstanding global corporate
group.

For compliance policies, SMFG sets forth its “Business
Ethics” (on page 48) as the common CSR principles for the
Group and considers the strengthening of such Business Ethics
as one of the critical issues for management.

Group Management in Compliance Perspective
As a financial holding company, SMFG strives to maintain a
compliance system which provides the appropriate direc-
tions, guidance and monitoring for compliance for its Group
companies.

Specifically, SMFG manages and monitors the self-sustaining
compliance functions of individual Group companies through
regular meetings attended by all Group companies and meet-
ings with individual companies.

Reporting System for Inappropriate Accounting
and Auditing Activities

SMFG has established the “SMFG Group Alarm Line,” the
whistle-blowing system which can be used by all employees,
including employees of group companies, for a self-control
effect by promptly detecting and rectifying any actions which
may violate laws and regulations.

SMFG has implemented the “SMFG Accounting and
Auditing Hotline” to provide the means for individuals in and out
of the Group to report inappropriate accounting and auditing
activities. This hotline quickly identifies and takes appropriate
actions against any purported fraudulent activities or any mis-
conduct associated with accounting and auditing at SMFG and
its consolidated subsidiaries.

SMFG Accounting and Auditing Hotline: Reports may be submitted by
regular mail or e-mail to the following addresses.

Mailing address:

SMFG Accounting and Auditing Hotline

lwata Godo Attorneys and Counselors at Law
10th floor, Marunouchi Building

2-4-1 Marunouchi, Chiyoda-ku, Tokyo 100-6310

E-mail address:
smfghotline@iwatagodo.com

* The hotline accepts any alerts of inappropriate activities concerning
accounting and auditing at SMFG or its consolidated subsidiaries.

* Anonymous reports are also accepted; however, if possible, providing
personal information such as your name and contact information would
be appreciated and helpful.

* Please provide as much detail as possible for such inappropriate activi-
ties. An investigation may not be feasible if adequate information is not
provided.

* Personal information will not be disclosed to any third parties without
your consent, unless such disclosure is required by law.

Sumitomo Mitsui Financial Group, Inc.

Corporate Auditors -
Audit

Board of Directors

Report

Audit Dept. Directions

Report

Management Committee

| Compliance Committee

Audit

General Affairs Dept. |

Audit/Monitoring
Group Company

§ . Compliance System
Audit/Monitoring Oversight and

Guidelines

Report

Departments and Offices

General Manager responsible for compliance
Compliance Officers to assist and monitor General Managers

Management

Report

Group Companies
SMBC, Sumitomo Mitsui Finance and Leasing, SMBC Nikko Securities, SMBC Friend Securities,
Sumitomo Mitsui Card, Cedyna, SMBC Consumer Finance, and JRI
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Compliance Systems at SMBC

Strengthening the Compliance System

It is generally required for all corporations to be in compliance
with laws, regulations and other social standards. It is essential
for banks to be fully in compliance to fulfill their public missions
and corporate social responsibilities as financial institutions.

In accordance with the basic policies of SMFG, SMBC
requires its management and staff to give utmost consideration to
people’s trust in the Bank, abide by laws and regulations, main-
tain high ethical standards, and act fairly and sincerely. Therefore,
SMBC considers that being fully compliant with laws and regula-
tions is one of the most critical issues for management to deal
with such as issues related to the Banking Law, the Financial
Instruments and Exchange Act, compliance with any other
related ordinances, and elimination of anti-social organizations.

Compliance System and its Management

The basic structure of SMBC’s compliance system is a dual
structure whereby firstly, each department and office will be
individually responsible for making preliminary decisions
to ensure that its conducts are in compliance with laws and
regulations, and secondly, an independent Internal Audit Unit
will conduct impartial audits of observance of the compliance
system by individual departments and offices.

In order for the basic dual structure to be maintained and
to effectively function, the Compliance Unit, consisting of the
General Affairs Department and the Legal Department will, at
the direction of management, plan and promote systems to
ensure observance of the compliance system. The Compliance
Unit will issue instructions to and monitor the conduct of each
department and office in SMBC, and assist such department
and offices to make appropriate judgments regarding their
observance of the compliance system.

SMBC commits to the following operations for the said
compliance structure to work effectively.

Preparation of a Compliance Manual

SMBC has prepared its Compliance Manual by stating its
objectives, guiding rules and 60 rules of action in order to assist
the management and staff in selecting optimal actions. This
manual has been approved by the Board of Directors.

Development of Compliance Program

The Board of Directors develops the detailed annual plan
for compliance-related activities for each fiscal year, including
amendments to the rules and regulations, training, etc. for the
effective operation of the compliance system for SMBC and its
consolidated subsidiaries. Especially during fiscal 2015, SMBC
is currently in the process of enhancing its overseas compliance
system; strengthening its management system for anti-money
laundering and combatting the financing of terrorism (“AML/
CFT”); improving its Group compliance system; and enhancing
its compliance system for financial products.
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Appointment of Compliance Officers

In addition to appointing compliance officers to each branch
and department of the bank, the “Area Compliance Officers,”
operating independently from areas of business promotion, are
appointed for the Wholesale Banking Unit and Retail Banking
Unit of branches and offices to directly supervise and manage
compliance activities.

Set up of the Compliance Committee

The Compliance Committee, which consists of cross-departmental
compliance members, chaired by the director in charge of com-
pliance, has been created in order to comprehensively review
and discuss compliance related issues. To enhance fair and
objective deliberations by the Compliance Committee, outside
members are also invited to participate in such Compliance
Committee meetings.

For the handling of any complaints received from and conflicts

with our clients, SMBC has executed agreements, respectively,
with the Japanese Bankers Association, a designated dispute
resolution agency under the Banking Act, and the Trust Companies
Association of Japan, a Designated Dispute Resolution
Organization under the Trust Business Act and Act on Provision,
etc. of Trust Business by Financial Institutions and the specified
non-profit organization of “Financial Instruments Mediation
Assistance Center,” one of “Designated Dispute Resolution
Agencies” under the Financial Instruments and Exchange Act.

Japanese Bankers Association:
Contact information: Consultation office,
Japanese Bankers Association
Telephone numbers: (Japan) 0570-017109 or 03-5252-3772

Business hours: Mondays through Fridays

(except public and bank holidays)
9:00 am to 5:00 pm

Trust Companies Association of Japan:
Contact information: Consultation office, Trust Companies
Association of Japan
Telephone numbers: (Japan) 0120-817335 or 03-6206-3988

Business hours: Mondays through Fridays

(except public and bank holidays)
9:00 am to 5:15 pm

Financial Instruments Mediation Assistance Center

Contact information: Financial Instruments Mediation
Assistance Center

Telephone numbers: (Japan) 0120-64-5005
Fax: (Japan) 03-3669-9833

Business hours: Mondays through Fridays

(except public and bank holidays)
9:00 am to 5:00 pm



Environmental Preservation Initiatives

Basic Views for Environmental Preservation

The Group recognizes environmental preservation as one of its most important management issues. Based on our Group Environmental
Policy, we are implementing initiatives to harmonize environmental preservation and corporate activities.

The Group Environmental Policy

Basic concepts

Recognizing the importance of realizing a sustainable society, SMFG is continuously making efforts to harmonize environmental pres-
ervation and pollution control with corporate activities, in order to support the economy and contribute to the betterment of society as
a whole.

Specific environmental policies

e We provide environment-friendly financial products, information and solutions which support our clients in their efforts to preserve
the eco-system.

¢ \We devise means to reduce environmental risks posed by our own activities and the society.

¢ We are determined to fulfill our social responsibilities through the conservation of resources and energy, and the reduction of waste.

® We strictly comply with environment-related laws and regulations.

e We practice the highest level of information disclosure related to the Group’s environmental activities and consistently improve our
efforts to contribute to environmental preservation by communicating with our staff as well as the third parties.

¢ We place high priority on thoroughly educating our staff about our environmental principles to ensure that they conform to these prin-
ciples in the performance of their work.

¢ We actively and effectively implement “environmental management,” and make continuous efforts to improve our system to deal with
environmental issues by setting goals and targets for every fiscal year and reviewing them as deemed necessary.

e These policies are disclosed on the Group’s website, and the printed version is available upon request.

Three Pillars of the Group’s Activities

The three pillars of our environmental action plan are: 1) “Reduction of impacts on environment,” 2) “Management of environmental
risks,” and 3) “Promotion of environmental businesses.” We have set environmental objectives for each environmental activity and follow
the procedures of Plan, Do, Check, and Act (PDCA) for such environmental activities.

Environmental Management System (EMS) Based on 1ISO14001 Certification

The environmental management certification of ISO14001 has been obtained by SMFG and its major companies (SMBC, Sumitomo
Mitsui Finance and Leasing (“SMFL,”) SMBC Nikko Securities, SMBC Friend Securities, Sumitomo Mitsui Card and JRI). In 1998, SMBC
was the first bank in Japan to obtain this certification. The Group has developed the structure to promote EMS which is organized and
managed mainly by the Corporate Planning Department and senior environmental officers.

Signing of the “Principles for Financial Actions Environmental Action Plan and PDCA Procedures
(the principles for financial actions for the 21st
Century) for Achieving the Sustainable Society” _

L , . . . ) The Group Environmental
“Principles for Financial Action towards a Sustainable Society,” Policy
which were adopted in October 2011, are signed by SMBC,
SMBC Nikko Securities, SMBC Friend Securities, Minato Bank,

Kansai Urban Banking Corporation (“KUBC”) and Japan Net Implementation of
Bank. environmental initiatives

1'

PLAN
The principles have been set forth for the purposes of mak- -
. X . X X X . Reduce environmental
ing the environmental financing widely-known and improving the implications
quality of environmental financing. SMBC has participated since
2012 as a steering member for the Steering Committee which is
made up of 193 financial institutions (as of March 31, 2015).
Based on these principles, the Group continues to expand Promote envronmentel
its environmental financing activities in Japan.

Manage environmental risks
CHECK

ACT
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Reducing Environmental Impact

@ Initiatives for Energy Consumption of Facilities

SMFG sets environmental objectives for reducing energy con-

sumption such as electricity for each fiscal year, and it assert-

ively strives to implement energy-saving measures to reach the
targeted goal.

- SMBC, SMBC Nikko Securities, SMBC Friend Securities, and
SMBC Consumer Finance shall install energy-saving equip-
ment such as LED lighting for the relocation or renovation of a
branch, taking into consideration the environment awareness.

-For the SMBC East Tower
which will be completed in
the summer of 2015, we
have taken into consideration
the environmental aware-
ness on the following issues:

1) utilization and preservation

of nature; 2) implementation

of highly efficient systems;

3) reduction of adverse

environmental effects; and

4) creation of a sustainable

building. We are expected to  SMBC East Tower in Tokyo
incorporate diverse energy-

saving technologies to reduce approximately 35% of CO2
emission®. (*Compared to average office buildings).

- As the Osaka Head Office building was built over 80 years
ago, the two-year renovation of the building was completed
in May 2015. For the renovation, we have installed high-
performing exterior wall frames, LED lightings and solar
panels while retaining the original charm of the facilities, by

substantially
improving the
environmental
performance
in addition to
appropriately
adapting to
modern work
styles.
Osaka Head Office
In July 2012, SMBC and JRI, as part of their own energy-
saving initiatives, implemented the solar power generation
equipment in the SMFG’s main computer center for providing
energy during peak business hours.
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Managing Environmental Risks
@ Environmental and social risks in loan (credit) activities
SMBC believes it is important to take into account the envi-
ronmental risks for conducting credit assessment. Factoring
environmental risks in the credit assessment (environmental
credit risks) is stipulated in SMBC’s Credit Policy, which sets
forth the universal and basic philosophies, guidelines and rules
for credit operations taking into consideration the management
principle and the rules of conduct. For example, to deal with the
risks of soil and asbestos contamination in real estate pledged
as collateral, SMBC requires contamination risk assessment
for such real estate collateral meeting certain criteria. If con-
tamination risks are found to be high, the assessed value of the
potential risks will be deducted from its value. Furthermore, our
Credit Policy clearly stipulates that credit which is used for the
production of cluster bombs and mass-destructive weapons is
prohibited.
@® Managing environmental and social risks in large-scale

development projects
Large-scale development projects may have significant impacts
on society and the environment; therefore, the international civil
society requires financial institutions to fully consider social and
environmental impacts of the projects when providing financial
support.

SMBC has adopted the
Equator Principles, a set of
principles for determining,
assessing and managing envi-
ronmental and social risks in
project financing and has established the Environment Analysis
Department (EAD) to assess the environmental and social risks
of large-scale development projects in accordance with the
principles. In June 2013, for the Equator Principles, the scope
was expanded and the assessment criteria were strengthened.
SMBC also revised its internal procedures in accordance
with the revised Equator Principles to improve its system for
assessing environmental and social risks. Furthermore, SMBC
continues to improve its environmental and social risk assess-
ment systems which received a third-party guarantee made by
Ernst & Young Sustainability Co., Ltd. in 2014 with respect to
application status of the Equator Principles.
@ Lawful disposal of properties at the expiration of leases
Sumitomo Mitsui Finance and Leasing is completely in compli-
ance with environment-related laws and regulations to prevent
contamination of the environment due to illegal disposals of
industrial waste materials triggered by the expiration of leases.
In addition, multi-phased assessment mainly in terms of compli-
ance, local research and interviews are conducted annually in
order to prudently select the most appropriate company that
handles transportation and disposing of waste materials at the
time of the expiration of a lease.



Environmental Businesses

@ Environmental contributions through core businesses

The Group considers environmental businesses as a means
to preserve and improve the global environment through its
core business operations. As an example: SMBC Environmental
Assessment Loan/Private Placement Bond is provided for cli-
ents for promoting their environmental management. Further,
the Growth Industry Cluster Department work is not limited to
the maintenance or improvement of the global environment
but also includes the economic development of each coun-
try through providing support for environment infrastructure
improvement projects in emerging countries mainly in Asia and
renewable energy projects.

In addition, the Kansai Urban Banking Corporation jointly
participated with an affiliated organization of Osaka Prefecture in
the exhibit for “Biwako Kankyo (Environmental) Business Messe
2014,” focusing on environmental issues to introduce technolo-
gies and services owned by companies in Osaka Prefecture to
companies in Shiga Prefecture.

@ Initiatives for environmental businesses by group companies
Please refer to the chart shown below for details of the mea-
sures taken for environmental businesses.

Initiatives for Environmental Businesses by Group Companies

Company Program / Product Description
SMFG SAFE, corporate environmental Started in 1996, this magazine contains interviews with top management of environmentally advanced companies, analyses of business and
magazine regulatory trends, and other beneficial information for corporate environmental activities. Presently, more than 100 issues of the magazine have
been published. It can be viewed online at SMFG’s website (in Japanese).

SMFG Environmental Business Forum | SMFG organized a three-day event at Eco-Products, one of Japan’s largest environmental exhibitions. More than 15 of our clients’ companies
set up booths with “Environment,” “Water, Resources, New Energies” as themes, and each client presented or demonstrated respective
environmental initiatives.

SMBC*' /| SMBC Environmental Assessment Loan/ | Terms and conditions for these loans and bonds are set forth according to the assessment conducted on the company’s environmental mea-
JRI*2 Private Placement Bond sures, pursuant to the environmental assessment standards originally created by SMBC and JRI, and SMBC determines terms and conditions
for loans or private placement bonds according to the results of such assessment.

SMBC Environmental Assessment Loan/ | SMBC revised and improved evaluation methods for existing “SMBC Environment Friendliness Assessment Loans and Private Placement

Private Placement Bond Eco Value-up | Bonds” especially made for medium-sized and small-to-medium-sized companies which have more assessment needs for the degree of
environment friendliness. As for the fund raising, SMBC conducts quantitative assessment according to the assessment criteria created by
SMBC and follows with the qualitative assessment based on interviews conducted by environment friendliness assessment agency, and the
final and comprehensive assessment results will be provided to clients in the form of “Environmental Management Analysis Report.”

SMBC Sustainable Building Assessment | Terms and conditions for those loans and bonds are set forth according to the assessment conducted on the buildings owned or to be con-

Loan/Private Placement Bond structed by companies, pursuant to the assessment criteria created by SMBC and Woonerf Inc. (formerly known as CSR Design & Landscape
Co., Ltd.), for environment friendliness for “energy” and “water,” etc., seismic adequacy required to maintain the sustainability, measures taken
for “risk management” such as BCP; and “business manager’s policies and practices” promoting such assessment criteria.

SMBC Sustainability Assessment Loan/ | Terms and conditions for those loans and bonds are set forth by SMBC, according to the assessment conducted on the measures taken by

Private Placement Bond clients for the Environment, Society and Governance (“ESG”) and appropriateness of information disclosure, pursuant to the assessment criteria
created by SMBC and JRI.

SMBC Environmental Assessment Terms and conditions for those loans are set forth according to the assessment conducted on the environmental measures taken by companies

Loans/Private Placement Bonds in Malaysia and Thailand utilizing the plan as set forth in the “SMBC Environmental Assessment Loans/Private Placement Bonds” since 2008.

(Malaysia and Thailand) The assessment report is also provided to further enhance the company’s eco-management related activities.

SMBC SMBC-ECO Loan This loan product offers reductions of interest rates up to 0.25% for SMEs certified with environmental management systems by more than 20

organizations, including NPOs and local governments.

Ministry of the Environment and
Ministry of Economy, Trade and Industry
subsidized-interest financing program

Under this program, companies may conditionally receive loans from financial institutions, with interest subsidized by the government, to
finance capital investment which reduces CO2 emissions. SMBC supports companies taking environmental initiatives as one of the financial
institutions authorized to provide loans under this program.

Emissions trading related business
(advisory services)

In the field of energy conservation, in which Japanese corporations especially excel, SMBC provides support and financial advisory services
for “Joint Crediting Mechanism,” for the purpose of contributing to the reduction of greenhouse gasses due to technology exportation to
underdeveloped countries. In Brazil, SMBC provides advisory services for a newly established environmentally innovative fund which was set up
principally by the Brazilian Development Bank.

Strengthening alliances with interna-
tional and financial institutions

In March 2012, SMBC executed a Memorandum of Understanding with Development Bank of Mongolia for financial cooperation for environ-
ment and infrastructure projects that reduce greenhouse gas emissions. SMBC continues to develop a solid global network by MOUs similarly
executed with local major corporations and financial institutions in Mexico and other countries for promoting financing for renewable energy
projects and carbon credits trading businesses.

Environmental campaign program for
JGBs for individuals

We have contributed to global environmental protection by: (1) trading the amount equivalent to 100kg of carbon credits; or (2) forestation in
the area equivalent to Tm? per each individual who purchased JGBS.

DWS New Resource Technology Fund

This fund invests mainly in shares of companies around the world with growth potential that conduct businesses associated with three most
discussed issues of (1) local infrastructure; (2) food; and (3) clean energy, in order to accommodate the fluctuating and/or increasing global
demand.

Promotion of Housing Loans for
Environment-Friendly Residences

SMBC offers preferential interest rates to borrowers either for the purchase or construction of a residence entirely powered by electricity or
ecologically-friendly residence.
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Initiatives for Environmental Businesses by Group Companies

Company Program / Product Description

SMBC/ | SMBC Nikko World Bank Bond Fund SMBC and SMBC Nikko Securities Inc. offer the Nikko World Bank Bond Fund which is the first fund in the world to invest in green bonds*

Nikko*3 issued by the World Bank (data provided by Nikko Asset Management Co., Ltd.).

A portion of earnings from the fund is donated to the Japan Committee for UNICEF and the Japanese Red Cross Society to be used to resolve
any social conflicts around the world.

*This fund invests in green bond which is one of the bonds issued by the World Bank. The funds procured by the issue of these bonds will be utilized solely for loans
provided for global warming prevention projects in emerging countries.

SMFL*4 Consultation Business for the Amended | It strengthens its advisory services by appropriately accommodating the Amended Energy Saving Act for proposing comprehensive energy-

Energy Saving Act saving measures by utilizing leases.

Purchase and Sale of Second-Hand Real property with expired leases or machinery and equipment purchased from clients are being sold to other clients. SMFL strives to become

Machinery and Equipment a leasing company that is environment-friendly implementing measures for recycling and reuse by purchasing and selling the second-hand
machinery.

Support Program conducted by the It promotes the implementation of leasing low-carbon emission equipment which meets the criteria set forth by the Ministry of the Environment,

Ministry of the Environment by utilizing the subsidies provided by the Ministry for such leases.

Nikko Nikko Eco Fund This is the SRI fund, which was first offered in Japan in 1999, takes into account the environmental perspectives and invests in shares of
potential growth companies which either excel in appropriately responding to environment-related issues or conducting businesses associated
with environment.

Nikko DWS New Resources Fund This fund invests mainly in shares of companies around the world with growth potential which conduct businesses associated with the three
most discussed issues of (1) water; (2) agriculture; and (3) alternate energy, in order to accommodate the fluctuating and/or increasing global
demand.

UBS Climate Change Fund This fund invests in shares of countries around the world which have innovative technology with respect to preventive measures for global
warming and which are anticipated to have substantial growth in the future.

Nikko World Trust-Nikko Green New This fund invests in shares of companies located in countries where high growth is anticipated through their environmental preservation

Deal Fund activities, focusing on the “Green New Deal” policy for economic recovery based on measures required for global environment.

Nikko /| Promotion of electronic statement Promoting electronic statement services (online account statements) for clients.

Friend*> | service

Friend Environmental Sustainability Bonds SMBC Friend Securities sells “Environmental Sustainability Bonds” issued by the European Bank for Reconstruction and Development (EBRD).
The funds raised by such bonds are used to support natural energy development, forestry regeneration and other environmental projects
selected by EBRD based on its evaluation standards.

Promotion of Marketing Activities iPads are being distributed to the entire marketing team enabling them to obtain information necessary from the data stored to support the

utilizing iPad reduction of paper usage and CO2 emissions.

SMCC*6/ | Promotion of online account activity SMCC and Cedyna are promoting the use of online account statements (notice for the final account statement is sent by e-mail and details to

Cedyna | statement be confirmed on its website) for conserving paper and helping to reduce CO2 emissions.

Cedyna | Environment conservation activities Cedyna issues socially contributing credit cards for the environment such as “Chikyuni Yasashii Card” and “Cedyna Card AXU,” and the part of

offered by socially contributing credit payments for such cards are donated to environmental preservation organizations.

cards

SMBCCF*7 | Promotion of online account statement | It strives to reduce the consumption of paper resources and CO2 emissions, in addition to increasing convenience for clients by electronically
converting documents. The ratio of contracts made on the internet out of new applications submitted has increased yearly.

JRI Promotion of CSR and environmental JRI supports companies in their CSR and environmental management by assisting them with the development of CSR management strategies

management and conducting carbon-credit research and investigation.

Environmental advisory business It engages in numerous environmental projects mainly in the energy and smart community fields. It strives to contribute to the resolution of
global-warming issues and development of environment-friendly businesses by the creation of new businesses.

Proposals for energy-related policies The Great East Japan Earthquake led to the substantial review of the Japan’s energy policy. JRI makes recommendations and proposals for
energy systems of next-generation and energy strategies for Japan.

Minato*® | “Minato ECO Loans” for Corporations Minato Bank offers loans with preferential interest rates to corporate clients who have been certified with either of the “Kobe Environmental

certified with Environment Management System (“KEMS”),” “Eco-Action 21" or “ISO14001.”

Authentication

For individual clients: Minato Bank offers environment-friendly loans with discounted interest rates especially made for clients who plan to purchase or install

“Minato ECO Housing Loan” new-energy or energy-saving equipment (solar power generation systems, ECOWILL, EcoCute, solar thermal systems, ENE-FARM, etc.) or

“Minato ECO Product Purchase Loan” | clients who plan to purchase or construct residences installed with such equipment or residences which have been rated at least with 4
“hydrangea flowers” for their overall rating assessed by the criteria of CASEBEE Kobe (Kobe city’s “Comprehensive Assessment System for Built
Environment Efficiency”).

Minato ECO Private Placement Bond Minato Bank provides preferential treatment for issuing fees of private placement bonds, which meet the issuance criteria set forth by our bank
for bank-guaranteed private placement bonds, offered by corporations certified with either of the “KEMS,” “Eco-Action 21" or “ISO14001.”

KUBC* | Eco-time deposit This fixed-term deposit makes donations to organizations in Osaka Prefecture, Osaka City and Shiga Prefecture engaged in environmental
protection activities, with the amount equivalent to a certain percentage of deposits received from clients.

Housing loans for smart homes It is the loan to offer the same terms and conditions for such as loan term and interest rate for loans to purchase residences preinstalled with
solar power generation systems or for installation costs of such systems.

Environmental Assessment Loan/Private | Terms and conditions, and interest rates for those loans and bonds are set forth according to the assessment conducted on the measures taken

Placement Bond by clients for environment-friendliness. The financing method may be selected from either loan or private placement bond.

Kansai Urban Environment Support A predetermined, preferential interest rate for the loan is given to clients who met certain requirements for environment (receipt of certification

Loan for IS014001 or Eco Action 21, etc.).

*1 Sumitomo Mitsui Banking Corporation *2 The Japan Research Institute, Limited *3 SMBC Nikko Securities Inc. *4 Sumitomo Mitsui Finance and Leasing Company, Limited
*5 SMBC Friend Securities Co., Ltd. *6 Sumitomo Mitsui Card Company, Limited *7 SMBC Consumer Finance Co., Ltd. *8 The MINATO BANK, LTD. *9 Kansai Urban Banking Corporation
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Social Contribution Activities

SMFG and its Group companies recognize that it is important to consider the public nature of the financial institution and contrib-
ute to the development of society through business operations. Further, the Group will undertake its social contribution activities
as a corporation in order to encourage each employee to participate in social contribution activities.

Local and Overseas Communities
@ SMBC Volunteer Fund
SMBC has a system for volunteering executives and employees to
have from ¥100 up to ¥1,000 deducted from their monthly salaries
to donate to volunteer organizations. More than 11,000 employees
participate in this program, as of March 2015. The organizations
are selected based on thorough investigations and discussions by
the panel of experts and employees. In fiscal 2014, donations were
made to 31 organizations which engage in resolving social issues in
Japan and overseas.
<Japan>
Organizations which provide support for awareness-raising
activities for the prevention of child abuse, childcare sup-
port activities, food assistance program for people living in
poverty, and support people with disabilities to become self-
sustained, and other activities.

<Overseas>
Organizations which provide support for re-forestation activi-
ties in Indonesia and Malaysia, health support programs for
schools in East Timor, and agricultural villages in Zambia to
become self-sustained, and other activities.

Further, 943 employees equaling to more than 80% of
employees of the Group company of Sakura KCS have vol-
unteered (as of May 1, 2015) for welfare and environmental
contribution activities.

@ Volunteering Programs for Executives and Employees
SMBC conducted volunteer activities participated in by execu-
tives and employees in collaboration with organizations that
engage in resolving social

issues, primarily recipients of

volunteer funds. In fiscal 2014,

the number of participants

increased to include respective

group companies’ employees

and their family members,

and the cumulative number of

participants was 441 people.

Supporting the Recovery after the Great East
Japan Earthquake

@ Support Fund for Great East Japan Earthquake

SMBC established the system solely utilized for the “Great East
Japan Earthquake Support Fund” for making donations to the
disaster affected areas by deducting ¥400 from employee’s
monthly salaries. In fiscal 2014, we made donations collected
from our employees and the matching donations made by the
bank to NPO, with which executives and employees cooperated
for volunteer activities in the disaster-affected areas.

@ Volunteer Activities for the Areas affected by the Great
East Japan Earthquake

Since May 2011, SMBC has

been regularly conducting

volunteer activities par-

ticipated by executives and

employees to support disas-

ter affected areas mainly

in Ishinomaki, Watari-cho,

and Higashi-Matsushima

in Miyagi Prefecture. Over 700 in total of employees and their

family members participated in the activities. SMBC Friend

Securities has been conducting the “recovery support volunteer

program” since July 2013. It continues to conduct activities

while further cultivating exchanges with the people living in the

disaster-affected area of Ishinomaki.

@ Support for the Affected Areas — Donation of Musical
Instruments

Sumitomo Mitsui Card donated 15 musical instruments, which

were used for internal club activities, to the jazz orchestra of

“Swing Dolphins” organized with of elementary and junior high

school students who have been performing in Kesennuma of

Miyagi Prefecture.

@ Volunteer for Interaction with Disaster-Affected People
The social meetings to interact with the people evacuated to
Tokyo from disaster-affected areas have been regularly held,
participated by YUI volunteer members of SMBC.

@ Support for the Affected Areas — Donation of Books
Sumitomo Mitsui Card donated 1,342 books to Shanti International
Volunteer Group, which operates its mobile libraries in three prefec-
tures, lwate, Miyagi, and Fukushima, which were affected by the
earthquake.

@ In-House Sales Events for Products made in Fukushima
Cedyna held in-house sales event for products made in
Fukushima Prefecture for the purpose of supporting producers
and business operators in Fukushima which was affected by
the Great East Japan Earthquake.

For two days, approximately 800 employees supported
the recovery of the affected areas by purchasing locally made
confectionery, sake, and other items.
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Social Welfare Activities
@ Collection and Donation of Mistakenly-Written Postage-
Prepaid Postcards and Recycling of Other Used Items

SMFG collects mistakenly-written postage-prepaid postcards
from employees of the Group companies, exchanges them for
new postage stamps, and donates the stamps to volunteer
organizations to help them cover their postage costs. In addi-
tion, Sumitomo Mitsui Finance and Leasing (“SMFL”), SMBC
Nikko Securities, SMBC Friend Securities, Cedyna, and SMBC
Consumer Finance collect plastic bottle caps. SMBC Nikko
Securities, SMBC Friend Securities, Sumitomo Mitsui Card,
Cedyna, JRI and SMBC Consumer Finance collect used
postage stamps from employees, donating them to volunteer
organizations. SMBC and SMBC Friend Securities also donate
products given by the companies to their shareholders.

@ Group Blood Donation Program

SMBC, SMFL, Sumitomo Mitsui Card, SMBC Consumer
Finance, SMBC Nikko Securities and Cedyna encourage
employees to donate their blood at the workplace. The total
of 1,634 employees from seven companies participated in the
program in fiscal 2014.

@ Installation of Charitable Vending Machines. Sale of
Products made by Social Welfare Organizations

The offices of SMBC, SMFL, SMBC Nikko Securities, SMBC
Friend Securities, and Sumitomo Mitsui Card are installed
with vending machines which make contributions to welfare
organizations every time a drink is purchased from them. The
head office and the centers of SMBC Consumer Finance
are installed with vending machines which contribute to the
Japan Hearing Dogs for Deaf People. The bank also sells
products made by organizations which assist and support the
physically-challenged.

@ Opening of Emergency Accounts and Accepting
Donations for Major Disasters

SMBC has set up an account (with no transfer charge) through
which clients may make donations in the event of major
disasters in Japan and overseas. Concurrently, it encourages
employees of SMBC and the Group to make donations. In
fiscal 2014, we assisted in setting up accounts for accepting
donations for damages caused by the Yunnan earthquake in
China and damages caused by typhoons, and heavy rain in
Japan and overseas, and the Ebola epidemic. We are continu-
ing to accept donations for the Great East Japan Earthquake.
Furthermore, as it has been 20 years since the Hanshin-Awaji
Earthquake, Minato Bank donated emergency supplies to
Hyogo Prefecture and Kobe City to be used for earthquakes
and other disasters (“emergency cooking benches,” etc.). As for
other supports, in October 2014, at the official game of “INAC
Kobe Leonessa” where Minato Bank was a named sponsor,
players and bank employees collected donations for Tanba City
which was damaged by the severe rain storm.

@ SMFG Pro Bono Project

SMFG is also engaged in pro bono activities as the SMFG Pro
Bono Project for which volunteers offer their business and pro-
fessional expertise and skills for the public. In fiscal 2014, three
Pro Bono Teams made up of SMFG volunteer employees gave
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advice to strengthen the business infrastructure of NPOs, such
as organization of necessary administrative procedures for han-
dling donations, and preparation of databases. They cooper-
ated with NPOs in Tokyo which engage in providing support for
“child-raising” and “fertility treatment,” and they also cooperated
with NPO in Osaka engaging in “support for child-raising.”

@ Activities of YUI, SMBC’s Volunteer Organization
SMBC also provides support through the volunteer activities of
YUI, an in-house volunteer organization for SMBC employees.
YUI regularly performs volunteer activities in the community,
including social events at schools for the hearing impaired,
beach cleaning, and singing performances for senior citizens.

@ Contributing to Local Communities

SMBC has been promoting and performing volunteer activities
in the communities located by its branches and other offices in
Japan. These activities include branch tours, clean-ups of the
areas in the vicinity of SMBC branches, and participation in local
events. Similarly, SMBC Nikko Securities is proactively involved
in local clean-ups and volunteer activities, as well as providing
financial and economic education at all domestic branches.
SMBC Consumer Finance operates the Customer Service Plaza
which serves as a place for local communication. It provides
education and information for local people and students with
respect to financial matters, and financial and economic educa-
tional activities.

@ Donation Activities of Foreign Currency Coins

SMBC, as a corporate member of the UNICEF foreign coins
donation executive committee, cooperates with the donation
activities of UNICEF. All monies donated will be sent to UNICEF
after coins are sorted out by respective currency.

@ Eco-Gloves

Minato Bank recycled a part of former uniforms into “ecological
gloves” after renewing its uniforms in April 2014. In June 2014,
it donated some of such gloves to Hyogo Prefecture Gardening
and Public Parks Association and the Kobe City Environmental
Office to be used for local environmental preservation activities,
and remaining gloves were stored at bank branches to be used
for disaster recovery purposes.

@ Donation Support through Products and Services

SMBC offers clients an ordinary deposit account of which
the accrued interest (after tax) is donated to the UNICEF
Donation Account, and it also matches the donation (equivalent
to the client’s donated amount). Sumitomo Mitsui Card col-
lected donations from cardholders through the World Gifts
Point Service of VJA group companies to provide to UNICEF,
UNESCO, the World Wildlife Fund Japan and the World Food
Program. Sumitomo Mitsui Card made some donations to
UNICEF as well. It also accepts credit card donations, and it
issues socially-contributing type credit cards and donates the
part of the amount spent by clients using such credit cards.
Cedyna contributes to the Japan National Council of Protective
Care Homes for Children and other organizations by issuing
social contribution credit cards such as the ATOM Card, which
supports “Realizing children’s dreams.” It also collects dona-
tions from cardholders using “points” accumulated from their
purchases, and also accepts online donations. Kansai Urban



Banking Corporation has contributed more than the cumulative
total of ¥50 million since fiscal 2003, by annually contributing
to environment conservation organizations according to the
balance for environment-related deposits.

@ Participation in the “TABLE FOR TWO” Program
SMBC participates in the program which provides dona-
tions to the non-profit organization of the “TABLE FOR TWO
International” to fund school meals in developing countries, for
every low-calorie meal purchased for lunch at the company
cafeterias. All SMBC branches participate in this program. The
program is also offered at the offices of SMFL and Sumitomo
Mitsui Card.

@ Social Contribution Activities of In-House Foundations
SMBC Foundation for International Cooperation provides
scholarship every year to 7-8 students coming from Asia to
attend graduate schools in Japan for the purpose of develop-
ing human resources which may contribute to economic
development of developing regions and international exchange
activities. Further, the foundation also subsidies research insti-
tutes and researchers that undertake projects contributing to
economic development of developing countries. SMBC Global
Foundation, based in the United States, has provided scholar-
ships to more than 6,000 university students in Asian countries
since its establishment in 1994. In the United States, it supports
educational trips to Japan organized by a high school located in
Harlem, New York City, and the participation in school beautifi-
cation programs by volunteers from SMBC. The foundation also
provides matching gifts for SMBC employees.

Environmental Activities

@ Participation in Environmental Preservation Initiatives
SMFG organized “SMFG Clean-Up Day,” on which approxi-
mately 1,100 employees and their family members volunteered
to clean up four locations of Tamagawa in Tokyo, the Yodogawa
in Osaka, Suma Beach in Hyogo and Fujimae-Higata near
Nagoya. In addition, Kansai Urban Banking Corporation partici-
pated in the clean-up activities along the shore of Lake Biwa in
Shiga Prefecture, and JRI held the “Osaka Marathon Clean-Up”
event concurrently with the Osaka Marathon. Since fall of
2010, SMBC Nikko Securities designated a “Green Week” as
the week for enhancement of environmental preservation and
social contribution. In fiscal 2014, the cumulative total of 5,265
employees and their family members participated in the clean-
up activities and the collection of plastic bottle caps. Similarly,
Cedyna SMFL, and SMBC Consumer Finance continuously
conduct clean-up activities in the vicinity of their offices.

@ SMBC Environmental Program NPO C-C-C Furano Field
SMBC also provides support to the environmental project
in Furano in Hokkaido implemented by screenwriter Soh
Kuramoto. SMBC is providing support for forestation in the
closed-down golf course in Furano. It also supports environ-
mental education programs under which children explore nature
by using their five senses.

@ Support for the “EARTH PHOTO CONTEST”

SMFL supports an environmental photography contest for com-
municating the importance of resolving environmental problems
and encouraging people to take action. The company presents

the Sumitomo Mitsui Finance and Leasing Prize for outstanding
photographic entries.

@ Support for Junior Eco Clubs’ All-Japan Festival
SMBC supported the 2015 Junior Eco Club’s All-Japan Festival,
organized by Japan Environment Association, by providing an
information booth at the event.

@ Environmental Education
Kansai Urban Banking Corporation organizes the “Lake Biwa
Learning Experience in
Summer” for elemen-

tary school children at

the Lake Biwa in Shiga
Prefecture for educat-

ing children on the
environmental aware-

ness through such
experience.

Measures for Addressing Decreasing Birth Rate
and Aging Population
@ Implementation of Universal Design and Universal
Service at Branches
The following initiatives were undertaken by our Group to assist
clients at branches.
e |nstallation of ATMs for the visually-impaired*'
e |nstallation of writing boards, communication boards, “ear”
marks, and cane holders
e |nstallation of hearing aids
e |nstallation of Automated External Defibrillators (AEDs)*
e |nstallation of writing tables made for sofas (seated writing
tables are installed at certain branches of Minato Bank)
e Establishment of priority seating for senior citizens and
mobility-impaired people (Minato Bank, Kansai Urban

Banking Corporation)

*! Installed at all ATMs located inside and outside domestic branches.

*2 AEDs are also installed at SMBC Nikko Securities and SMBC Friend
Securities.

As for other initiatives, Minato Bank is installed with Color
Universal Design (CUD) reception number display devices and
Braille blocks.

@ Business Development for Accommodating a Society

with Extremely Large Number of Senior Citizens
SMBC has clarified guidelines for collateral management and
other matters to support building of rental housing for senior
citizens, demand for which is expected to increase hereafter. In
May 2013, we began to offer loans (loans affiliated with nursing
care facilities) especially made for real estate properties of pay
nursing homes or serviced elderly homes.

Further, the Group began implementing its initiatives in a
full-scale since fiscal 2014 in order to strengthen its support
for the elderly, by mainly developing specialized staffs to assist
people with cognitive impairment. As of March 31, 2015, there
are approximately 5,600 specialized staffs to assist people with
cognitive impairment and approximately 1,800 care service
assistants assigned mostly at its branches.

We plan to design the kind of branches for senior citizens
to be able to have safe and meaningful lives according to the
needs of the society.

SMFG 2015 | 6]



Contributing to Educational, Cultural, and
Artistic Activities

@ SMBC Charity Concert — A Toy Box of Favorite Works
Since fiscal 2006, SMBC has been inviting our clients for free
of charge to the annually held musical concerts for charity per-
formed by volunteer employees. The donations are collected
from the audiences of concerts and also from the sales of
employees’ handcrafted products. In fiscal 2015, the 10th year
for the program, donations were sent to children affected by the
Great East Japan Earthquake and to children in Cambodia and
Vietnam.

@ Musical Concerts Held in the Reception Lobbies of
Branches

At the SMBC Tokyo Head Office, Osaka Head Office, KUBC’s

Head Office and Biwako Main Office, lobby concerts are held

for the general public for free of charge.

@ Support for Cultural and Artistic Ventures
SMBC and SMBC Nikko Securities support promotion of the
music culture by sponsoring classical music concerts.

SMBC Friend Securities supports cultural and artistic
activities by sponsoring special art exhibitions at the Yamatane
Museum of Art as well as sponsoring the Osaka and Nagoya
philharmonic orchestras.

Sumitomo Mitsui Card supports promotion of Kabuki and
other traditional performing arts and development of human
resources through donating stage curtains to the National
Theatre and the National Engei Hall and sponsoring children’s
Kabuki performances.

In August 2014, Minato Bank invited 30 families of children
and their parents to the Kobe City Museum for the workshop
especially made for elementary and junior high school students,
titled “Minato Bank 15th Year Anniversary Event — Let’s Make a
Glass Art.”

SMBC, Minato Bank, and Kansai Urban Banking Corporation

are supporting the development of emotional enrichment
through sponsoring performances of the “Heart Theater (orga-
nized by Shiki Theatre Company and the Butai Geijutsu Center
Foundation).” (“Heart Theater” is a project which delivers the
emotional enrichment to children who are invited from throughout
Japan for free of charge).

@ Financial and Economic Education

The respective branches of SMBC accept, whenever pos-
sible, students of elementary school up to high school visiting
the branch, in addition to organizing a vocational workshop
for elementary school students called “Natsuyasumi Kodomo
Ginko Tankentai.” Furthermore, the bank supports diverse finan-
cial and economic educational activities, including publishing a
book for elementary school students titled “What Does a Bank
Do?,” co-sponsoring KidZania (a vocational experience theme
park for children), and supporting Shinagawa Financial Park
(economic training programs for junior high school students).

SMBC Nikko Securities held the “Families’ Exciting
Experience Day” event during summer holidays, in which 1,685
elementary school students and their families participated in
fiscal 2014.

SMBC Consumer Finance organized an event of card
games for elementary school students to teach the origin and
the functions of money and offered lectures on economy and
finance for students and adults at its “Customer Service Plaza”
offices. A total of 2,893 of such events was held and partici-
pated in by 156,615 people in fiscal 2014.

Kansai Urban Banking Corporation organizes a tour of the
bank for elementary school students, and also offers a work
experience program for junior high school students.

In addition, SMBC, SMFL, SMBC Nikko Securities,
Sumitomo Mitsui Card, JRI, Minato Bank and Kansai Urban
Banking Corporation sent instructors to teach classes at
universities.

Contributions Made to Local Communities by Overseas Offices

Overseas offices of the Group support projects which assist with resolving poverty issue in developing countries, supporting education
and medical services, and supporting women for advancement or achieving equal treatment through contributions made to non-profit
and non-governmental organizations, including the SMBC’s Volunteer Fund, in addition to initiatives tailored to specific issues and

cultures of individual countries and regions.

* SMBC (China) established a scholarship program for students of Zhejiang University, Sun Yat-sen University, Soochow University, East China Normal University, Shanghai
International Studies University and Tianjin Foreign Studies University.

* SMBC (China) donated to the Shanghai Branch of the RED CROSS Society of China for damages caused by the earthquake in Yunnan Province of Shanghai.

* SMBC'’s Hong Kong Branch gave donations to support an orchestra made up of young Asian musicians.

* SMBC'’s Seoul Branch gave donations to the “National Japanese Drama Competition for Students” to provide opportunities for Korean students to learn Japanese and further
understand Japanese cultures.

* SMBC's Hanoi Branch provided work experience opportunities to students of international schools.

¢ SMBC’s Sydney Branch participated in volunteer and donation activities associated with children, intractable diseases, refugees and earthquake disasters, provided by its CSR committee.

* Manufacturers Bank employees participated in events which raise awareness for the prevention of heart disease and made donations to event-sponsoring groups.

* Banco Sumitomo Mitsui Brasileiro contributed the sponsorship funds for the improvement of the interior facilities of the Museu Histdrico da Imigragédo Japonesa no Brasil.

* Employees of Sumitomo Mitsui Banking Corporation Europe (SMBCE) conducted volunteer activities in their spare time. SMBCE contributed to charitable organizations through
an in-house fund, and also used a matching-gift program under which it donated a certain amount for every donation made by its employees.

* SMBCE provided opportunities for students to gain work experience and business skills and also provided opportunities for underprivileged young people to participate in the
student work experience program.

* SMBCE provided opportunities for Japanese students to develop a better understanding of the bank’s roles in society, by holding a class for future career development (introduc-
tion of banking businesses) at the Japanese school in London.

* SMBC's Taipei Branch donated funds through the Kaohsiung Japanese Association to support the victims of the Kaohsiung gas explosions.

* SMBC's New Delhi Branch cooperated with CSR partners to support education programs in suburban areas.
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Human Resources

SMFG and its Group companies strive to create the kind of
work environment in which every employee feels proud and is
able to develop his or her full potential and capabilities. In the
following pages, we describe some of the activities initiated by
SMBC and other Group companies, including Sumitomo Mitsui
Finance and Leasing (“SMFL”), SMBC Nikko Securities, SMBC
Friend Securities, Sumitomo Mitsui Card, Cedyna, SMBC
Consumer Finance, the Japan Research Institute (“JRI”), The
Minato Bank, and Kansai Urban Banking Corporation.

Five Goals of SMBC’s Human Resources
Development

1. To develop professional and specialized employees who can
provide our clients with highly valued products and services.

2. To maintain and strengthen our sound business manage-
ment enabling SMBC to globally compete in the market.

3. To cultivate the kind of corporate culture which encourages
values of forward-looking, creative attitudes and mutual
cooperation.

4. To be conscious of the social responsibilities of the Group,
and cultivate the kind of corporate culture which contributes
to the sound development of society.

5. To encourage employees to respect their individuality based
on an understanding of diversity, and personal fulfillment.

Training Employees with Specialized
Professional Skills

@ Education and Training System

SMBC considers a month-long training seminar for newly-hired
employees and any other human resources development as
essential. The education programs for younger staff proceed to
improve the educational system to be more practical by putting
emphasis on the integration of OJT and group training seminars,
educating basics of deposit and exchange operations on the
job, and developing the system to support such training semi-
nars and the instructor system.

SMFL strives to develop professional human resources
which can provide sophisticated services. In addition to its
training programs for younger employees, SMFL improves its
training programs according to the level of positions ranging
from general manager to upcoming leader of next generations;
and it supports the career advancement of women by conduct-
ing training seminars for the development of women leaders so
as to proactively promote women. SMBC Nikko Securities, as a
comprehensive securities and investment banking firm, is further
strengthening its educational programs to develop employees
with expert knowledge and to improve their professional skills
by providing its newly-hired employees with OJT personally
assisted by instructors, follow-up seminars and other programs
such as the “new employee instructor program.” SMBC Friend
Securities is proactively working on the development of highly-
specialized younger employees through internally certified
corporate skill courses, training seminars and OJT at work as

well as improving coaching and human resources develop-
ment capabilities and management capabilities of managers
and supervisors in order to become the kind of securities firm
which would be most appreciated by clients. For development
of human resources with integrity, sophisticated knowledge and
expertise, Sumitomo Mitsui Card proactively supports training
seminars according to the level of positions, career develop-
ment training seminars and for becoming licensed Chiefs of
Money Lending Operations. It is also enhancing its develop-
ment of professional human resources for credit card business
by conducting workshops for improving card business and
products knowledge. Cedyna strives to “take the initiative to
develop the highly motivated professional human resources who
produce results accordingly”; to strengthen business execution
capabilities and provide the type of education by level, depart-
ment and subject for increasing earnings; and to work on the
organizational human resources development (development of
0OJD system). SMBC Consumer Finance is implementing the
competency-development training programs based on its per-
sonnel system for training human resources to have high market
values and responsibilities. Furthermore, we assist employees in
growing and advancing by promoting education which teaches
those subject matters required to be in full compliance with
the Money Lending Business Act and other legislation. SMBC
Consumer Finance has been supporting the development of
employees. JRI recognizes that the source for the added values
of its solutions and proposals is human resources; therefore, it
works on the well-planned development of human resources by
establishing the Human Resources Development Department
and Human Resources Planning Department under the Systems
Development Unit and Research and Consulting Unit, respec-
tively. The Minato Bank develops the kind of training system
which can increase the value of every employee of all levels
ranging from the first year of employment to the management
level. It improves the training seminars especially designed for
development of younger employees, and it also conducts train-
ing seminars and seminars for promoting active participation
by women. Further, it internally recruits candidates for the pur-
pose of providing opportunities for highly-motivated and willing
employees to apply for the position they desire. Kansai Urban
Banking works on well-planned human resources develop-
ment by establishing “Kansai Urban Business School” to teach
basic education and enhance personal development especially
designed for staff in their first six years of employment with the
bank in order to pursue

Employees’ Training Seminar at SMBC
Nikko Securities
Training Seminar at Kansai Urban Banking
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its management policy of “development of energetic group of
employees.” As part of initiatives for striving to become the
“bank which places importance on, co-exists and co-prospers
with local areas,” it promotes certification tests on information
related to respective local areas. We are further improving the
training system in the respective Group companies.

@ SMFG Joint Training Program

As Team SMFG, eight major group companies (SMBC, SMFL,
SMBC Nikko Securities, SMBC Friend Securities, Sumitomo
Mitsui Card, Cedyna, SMBC Consumer Finance, and JRI) jointly
conducted training seminars and sports events for newly-
hired employees of those group companies to enable them to
understand the SMFG’s vision and management policy and to
increase the sense of identity as “Team SMFG.”

Creating a Corporate Culture which Derives
Strength from Diversity
@ Diversity of Human Resources
The Group is committed to providing a workplace with diversity in
gender, nationality, and other areas. SMBC in April 2008, SMBC
Nikko Securities in July 2013, and The Minato Bank in October
2013, respectively established the “Diversity and Inclusion
Department” within the Human Resources Department in order
to develop corporate culture having strength in diversity including
the promotion of manifold roles and responsibilities for women.
SMBC has established the “Diversity and Inclusion
Committee” headed by the bank President in order to enhance
initiatives for the entire bank. It is currently reviewing the initiatives
enabling women to actively participate in the workplace and their
work-style by inviting outside expert professionals to participate in
the committee. SMBC hopes 20% of its managerial positions to
be held by women by the end of fiscal 2020.

@ Personnel System

In order to motivate employees to take more challenges in per-
forming difficult tasks for promotion, SMBC has introduced a new
workplace hierarchy system in which job rankings are more finely
subdivided. This system will enable talented individuals to be
quickly promoted to mid-management levels. In order to enhance
a sense of unity as “Team SMBC” and to achieve a proactive and
energetic bank, our employees’ performances are evaluated not
simply in terms of one fiscal year’s achievements but also on their
overall contributions to the company.

@ Developing Employees for Global Operations
SMBC has newly estab-
lished the “Global Human
Resources Department”
in the Human Resources
Department and “Global
Diversity Training Group”

at the Training Institute, “SMBC’s Global Bankers Program”
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respectively, for improving the human resources management
framework from the bank’s overall perspective and for secur-
ing and developing excellent human resources in Japan and
overseas. In order to enhance development of global human
resources, SMFL and SMBC Nikko Securities improved the
overseas trainee system mainly for younger employees, in addi-
tion to sending employees to attend language schools.

@ Employing Persons with Disabilities

SMBC has established a special company called SMBC Green
Service Co., Ltd. which provides employment opportunities for
the physically-challenged. In December 2008, the company
began the operations of its Kobe Branch, followed by its
Unagidani Office in Osaka, February 2009, and Chiba Office,
March 2013. They created jobs not only for the physically chal-
lenged but also for the mentally challenged. As of March 2015,
physically- and mentally-challenged employees accounted for
2.07% of our total number of employees, above the legally man-
dated level of 2.0%.

@ Providing Support for a Good Work-Life Balance
The Group is improving its “Employees Support Program” to
support balancing of both work and childcare. We are preparing
a guidebook which describes the system enabling employees to
take advantage of the system according to their life stage.
W Preparation of “Work-Life Balance Guidebook”
SMBC, SMFL, SMBC Friend Securities, Sumitomo Mitsui
Card, JRI
W Preparation of the “Guide to the Support System for
Balancing Both Work and Childcare”
The Minato Bank and Kansai Urban Banking Corporation

Group companies have already implemented programs for
parental leave, nursing care leave, shorter working hours and
other programs providing better benefits than those mandated
by law. Further, these programs improve the support system for
balancing both work and childcare by implementing the child-
care allowance system and rehiring former employees system.
Additionally, these companies organize the “Visit the Workplace
Day” event for their children to visit the workplace of parents
for children to gain an understanding of the workplace. They
also encourage their employees to take summer vacation and
reduce their working hours.
B Organization of the “Visit the Workplace Day” event for chil-
dren to visit their parents’ workplace
SMBC, Sumitomo Mitsui Finance and Leasing, SMBC Friend
Securities, Sumitomo Mitsui Card, SMBC Consumer Finance,
JRI, Kansai Urban Banking
B Encouraging employees to take summer vacation and reduce
working hours
Sumitomo Mitsui Finance and Leasing, Cedyna, and JRI
B “Go Home Early with Family Day” event
SMBC, SMBC Nikko Securities, and Sumitomo Mitsui Card



B Implementation of the week designated for employees to
leave the office on time (during summer and winter seasons)
SMBC, SMBC Nikko Securities, and Sumitomo Mitsui Card

B Implementation of Summer Time Program
The Minato Bank

We also provide venues for working mothers and fathers to be
able to exchange and share information on childcare.
B “Working Dads’ and Moms’ Meeting”
SMBC
B “Mom & Dad Luncheon”
JRI

We also support facilitating the smooth return to work for those

who have taken time off from work for childcare.

B Implementation of online support programs for employees
who have taken time off for childcare
SMBC Nikko Securities

B Providing the online access to information shared among
employees who have taken time off from work for childcare,
who have returned to work and the Human Resources
Department
Sumitomo Mitsui Card

B Regular training seminars conducted for employees on leave
for childcare
SMBC, Sumitomo Mitsui Card, SMBC Consumer Finance,
Minato Bank, Kansai Urban Banking

B Seminars for those planning to take maternity leave
SMBC, SMBC Nikko Securities, SMBC Consumer Finance,
Kansai Urban Banking

H Establishment of an office for supporting childcare leave
Sumitomo Mitsui Finance and Leasing

Group companies have been certified with “Kurumin” which is
given to those companies which support their employees’ ability
to manage both work and childcare, pursuant to the Act for
Measures to Support the Development of the Next Generation,
as a result of these initiatives being implemented.
B “Kurumin certification” pursuant to the Act for Measures to
Support the Development of the Next Generation
SMBC, SMBC Nikko Securities, Sumitomo Mitsui Card,
Cedyna, SMBC Consumer Finance, JRI, The Minato Bank,
Kansai Urban Banking

Children’s Visitation Day

SMBC Consumer Finance supports seminars for
return to work

Enhancing Awareness for Human Rights

SMBC has implemented in its corporate principles of action the
statements that “we will respect the individual human dignity of
our clients and employees” and “we will not allow any discrimi-
nation.” The Human Rights Committee is principally in charge
of implementing initiatives to raise awareness for human rights
for all employees. Specifically, we are holding training seminars
for persons in charge of human rights promotion of respective
departments by inviting outside professional experts as instruc-
tors and also holding group training seminars for general man-
agers, employees of newly appointed to management positions
and newly-hired employees.

Further, each department of SMBC conducts human rights
awareness seminars and gives employees a test on human
rights awareness, and during the human rights promotion week,
we invite employees to come up with human rights promotion
statement. Kansai Urban Banking implements initiatives to raise
awareness for human rights by conducting human rights aware-
ness seminars and inviting employees to come up with human
rights promotion statement on regional group basis. Our Group
participates in the “United Nations Global Compact” to indicate
its endorsement for 10 principles with respect to human rights,
labor, environment and anti-corruption.

@SMBC, awarded with the “Selected 100 Diversity
Management Corporations”; SMFG, selected for
“Nadeshiko Brands for fiscal 2014”

In March 2015, SMBC was awarded with the “Selected

100 Diversity Management Corporations” by the Ministry of

Economy, Trade and Industry. The “Selected 100 Diversity

Management Corporations” award is given to approxi-

mately 100 companies which successfully increased their

corporate value with diversity management consecutively
for three years since fiscal 2012. SMBC was evaluated
for promoting diversity as an important “management
infrastructure” and establishing the “Diversity and Inclusion

Committee” headed by the President.

Further, SMFG was selected jointly by the Ministry
of Economy, Trade and Industry and the Tokyo Stock
Exchange as the “Nadeshiko Brands for fiscal 2014.”
Those companies, which proactively utilize women, includ-
ing the improvement of work environment enabling women
to continue to work, are selected for each industry, out of
companies listed in the first section of the Tokyo Stock
Exchange. Our Group has been selected for the second
time following the fiscal year 2012.
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Employees

¢ SMBC ¢ SMBC Nikko Securities
March 31 2013 2014 2015 March 31 2013 2014 2015
Number of employees* 24,212 23,926 25,963 Number of employees* 7,619 7,764 8,188
Male 13,014 12,493 13,087 Male 4,839 4,939 5,166
[ Percentage of total 53.75% 52.22% 50.41% [ Percentage of total 63.51% 63.61% 63.09%
Female 11,198 11,433 12,876 Female 2,780 2,825 3,022
| Percentage of total 46.25% 47.78% 49.59% | Percentage of total 36.49% 36.39% 36.91%
Average age 37yrsOmos. | 37yrs1mos. | 37yrs6mos. Average age 39yrs4mos. | 39yrs9mos. | 39 yrs 7 mos.
Male 40 yrs 3 mos. 40 yrs 3 mos. 41 yrs 1 mos. Male 40 yrs 5 mos. 40 yrs 9 mos. 40 yrs 8 mos.
Female 33 yrs 3 mos. 33yrs 8 mos. | 33yrs 11 mos. Female 37 yrs 4 mos. | 37 yrs 11 mos. | 37 yrs 10 mos.
Average years of service 14 yrs O mos. 14 yrs O mos. 13 yrs 3 mos. Average years of service 12 yrs 4 mos. 12 yrs 9 mos. 12 yrs 9 mos.
Male 16 yrs 8 mos. 16 yrs 7 mos. 16 yrs O mos. Male 12 yrs 7 mos. | 12 yrs 11 mos. 13 yrs O mos.
Female 10 yrs 11 mos. 11 yrs 2 mos. 10 yrs 7 mos. Female 11 yrs 11 mos. 12 yrs 6 mos. 12 yrs 5 mos.
anagoral ostions 447 480 567 ranagoral ostions 65 & 114
Ratio of empl with Ratio of empl with
disabiltes (% o tota)™ 2.08% 2.10% 2.07% disabilties (% o total" 1.98% 2.00% 1.04%

* The number of full-time employees, including employees seconded to other
companies and organizations. The following list of employees is deducted from
the total number of employees: executive officers, employees on short-term
contracts, part-time employees, employees of temporary employment agencies,
and national staff at overseas branches.

* The number of full-time employees. The following list of employees is deducted
from the total number of employees: executive officers, part-time employees,
employees of temporary employment agencies, and national staff at overseas

branches.

** As of March 1 of respective years

** As of March 1 of respective years
April 1 2013 | 2014 | 2015
April 1 2013 | 2014 | 2015 Number of new hires™* 2093| 516| 617
Number of new hires 661| 652| 787 Number of newly employed female graduates 111 224| 285
Number of newly employed female graduates™* 245| 231| 256 Ratio of newly employed females to total new employees | 37.9% | 43.4% | 46.2%
Ratio of newly employed females to total new employees | 37.1% | 35.4% | 32.5% ** Professional employees (Classes I-ll, FA, and specialists
** Including Sogoshoku staff and Sogoshoku (retail course) employees. Excluding
Business Career employees. Fiscal 2012 | 2013 | 2014
- Number of employees taking parental leave 262 287 | 289
e : 202 || 2018 || 20 <Men taking such leave> <0>| <8>| <0>
Number of employees taking parental leave 920 [1,127 |1,513
<Men taking such leave> <b65>| <30>| <85>
Number of career hires 17 26 88
© Sumitomo Mitsui Finance and Leasing # SMBC Friend Securities
March 31 2013 2014 2015 March 31 2013 2014 2015
Number of employees* 1,620 1,606 1,618 Number of employees* 1,814 1,855 1,862
Male 1,017 1,019 1,034 Male 1,309 1,316 1,321
\ Percentage of total 62.78% 63.45% 63.91% \ Percentage of total 72.16% 70.94% 70.95%
Female 603 587 584 Female 505 539 541
\ Percentage of total 37.22% 36.55% 36.09% \ Percentage of total 27.84% 29.06% 29.05%
Average age 38 yrs 11 mos. 39 yrs 8 mos. 40 yrs 5 mos. Average age 38yrs 11 mos. | 38yrs 11 mos. | 37 yrs 10 mos.
Male 41 yrs 5 mos. | 41 yrs 11 mos. 42 yrs 5 mos. Male 40 yrs 11 mos. 41 yrs 1 mos. | 39 yrs 10 mos.
Female 34 yrs 9 mos. | 35yrs 10 mos. | 36 yrs 10 mos. Female 33 yrs 9 mos. 33 yrs 8 mos. | 32 yrs 11 mos.
Average years of service 14 yrs O mos. 14 yrs 9 mos. 15 yrs 2 mos. Average years of service 15 yrs 3 mos. 15yrs 3 mos. | 14 yrs 11 mos.
Male 16 yrs 3 mos. 16 yrs 9 mos. 17 yrs O mos. Male 17 yrs 1 mos. 17 yrs 1 mos. | 15yrs 11 mos.
Female 10 yrs 2 mos. 11yrs2mos. | 11 yrs 11 mos. Female 10 yrs 8 mos. 10 yrs 6 mos. 9 yrs 8 mos.
Ratio of employees with 2.05% 2.14% 2000 * The number of full-time employees, including employees seconded to other

disabilities (% of total)™

* The number of full-time employees, including employees seconded to other
companies and organizations. The following list of employees is deducted from
the total number of employees: employees seconded from other companies

companies and organizations. The following list of employees is deducted from
the total number of employees: executive officers, employees on short-term
contracts, part-time employees, employees of temporary employment agencies,
and national staff at overseas branches.

and organizations, executive officers, employees on short-term contracts, part- April 1 2013 | 2014 | 2015
time employees, employees of temporary employment agencies, and full-time Number of new hires 159 245 180
employees of affiliates (including overseas subsidiaries). Number of newly employed female graduates™ 74 95 71
™ As of March 1 of respective years Ratio of newly employed females to total new employees | 46.5% | 38.8% | 39.4%
April 1 2013 | 2014 | 2015 ** Both non-area specified and area specified staff
Number of new hires 20 24 41 E— 002 | 20E | 20
Number of newly employed female graduates 4 6 11 -
Ratio of newly employed females to total new employees | 20.0% | 25.0% | 26.8% Number O,f employees taking parental leave 25 2 28
<Men taking such leave> <0>| <0>| <0>
Fiscal 2012 | 2013 | 2014
Number of employees taking parental leave 40 51 58
<Men taking such leave> <0>| <0>| <0>
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4 Sumitomo Mitsui Card

4 SMBC Consumer Finance

March 31 2013 2014 2015 March 31 2013 2014 2015

Number of employees* 2,353 2,367 2,402 Number of employees* 2,121 2,531 2,582
Male 1,157 1,176 1,190 Male 1,299 1,426 1,445
[ Percentage of total 49.17% 49.68% 49.54% [ Percentage of total 61.24% 56.34% 55.96%
Female 1,196 1,191 1,212 Female 822 1,105 1,137
\ Percentage of total 50.83% 50.32% 50.46% \ Percentage of total 38.76% 43.66% 44.04%

Average age 37 yrs 7 mos. 38 yrs 1 mos. 39 yrs 1 mos. Average age 37 yrs 9 mos. 38 yrs 2 mos. 38 yrs 5 mos.
Male 40 yrs 6 mos. | 40 yrs 11 mos. 41 yrs 9 mos. Male 39 yrs 5 mos. | 39 yrs 11 mos. 40 yrs 3 mos.
Female 34 yrs 8 mos. 35 yrs 4 mos. 36 yrs 5 mos. Female 35 yrs 1 mos. 36 yrs 2 mos. 36 yrs 5 mos.

Average years of service 12 yrs 2 mos. 12 yrs 8 mos. 13 yrs 4 mos. Average years of service 12 yrs 11 mos. 11 yrs 4 mos. 11 yrs 7 mos.
Male 13 yrs 1 mos. 13 yrs 7 mos. 14 yrs O mos. Male 15 yrs 2 mos. 14 yrs 1 mos. 14 yrs 6 mos.
Female 11 yrs 4 mos. | 11 yrs 10 mos. 12 yrs 7 mos. Female 9 yrs 5 mos. 7 yrs 8 mos. 7 yrs 11 mos.

Number of women in . 24 o6 26 Number of women in . 39 49
managerial positions managerial positions

Ratio of empl with Ratio of empl with
Gisabltes (% of tola]* 224% 2.30% 2.24% sl (% o tola) 212% 1.86% 209%

* The number of full-time employees, including employees seconded to other
companies and organizations. The following list of employees is deducted from
the total number of employees: executive officers, employees on short-term
contracts, part-time employees, employees of temporary employment agencies,

and national staff at overseas branches.

** Total of senior staff and group managers (including credit officers)

*** Computed based on single month of March

*

The number of full-time employees on a non-consolidated basis, including

employees seconded to other companies and organizations. The following list
of employees is deducted from the total number of employees: employees
seconded from other companies, national staff at overseas branches, executive
officers, part-time employees, and employees of temporary employment agen-

cies.

** As of March 1 of respective years

April 1 2013 | 2014 | 2015 April 1 2018 | 2014 | 2015
Number of new hires 55 59 72 Number of new hires 28 40 49
Number of newly employed female graduates 29 32 39 Number of newly employed female graduates 14 26 30
Ratio of newly employed females to total new employees | 52.7% | 54.2% | 54.2% Ratio of newly employed females to total new employees | 50.0% | 65.0% | 61.2%
Fiscal 2012 | 2013 | 2014 Fiscal 2012 | 2013 | 2014
Number of employees taking parental leave 63 65 71 Number of employees taking parental leave™** 88 68 66
<Men taking such leave> <5>|  <9>| <13> <Men taking such leave> <1>|  <1>| <1>
Number of career hires 18 16 24 Number of career hires 14 5 3
*** Including employees who retired during the fiscal year
& Cedyna @ Japan Research Institute
March 31 2013 2014 2015 March 31 2013 2014 2015
Number of employees* 3,095 3,192 3,213 Number of employees* 2,265 2,247 2,288
Male 1,948 1,067 1,962 Male 1,705 1,705 1,722
[ Percentage of total 62.94% 61.62% 61.06% [ Percentage of total 75.28% 75.88% 75.26%
Female 1,147 1,225 1,251 Female 560 542 566
| Percentage of total 37.06% 38.38% 38.94% [ Percentage of total 24.72% 24.12% 24.74%
Average age 40 yrs 5 mos. 41 yrs 2 mos. 41 yrs 7 mos. Average age 39 yrs 9 mos. 40 yrs 3 mos. 40 yrs 6 mos.
Male 42 yrs 8 mos. 43 yrs 4 mos. 43 yrs 9 mos. Male 40 yrs 6 mos. 41 yrs O mos. 41 yrs 2 mos.
Female 36 yrs 6 mos. 37 yrs 6 mos. 38 yrs O mos. Female 37 yrs 3 mos. 38 yrs 1 mos. 38 yrs 7 mos.
Average years of service 16 yrs 4 mos. 17 yrs 4 mos. 17 yrs 8 mos. Average years of service 10 yrs 8 mos. 11 yrs 3 mos. 11 yrs 5 mos.
Male 18 yrs 1 mos. 19 yrs 4 mos. 19 yrs 9 mos. Male 11 yrs 1 mos. 11yrs 7mos. | 11yrs 10 mos.
Female 13 yrs 4 mos. 14 yrs 1 mos. 14 yrs 4 mos. Female 9 yrs 6 mos. 10 yrs O mos. 10 yrs 4 mos.
Number of women in 20 o9 38 * The number of full-time employees, including employees seconded to other
managerial positions companies and organizations. The following list of employees is deducted from
Ratio of employees with 1.81% 1.81% 2.06% the total number of employees: executive officers, employees on short-term
disabilities (% of total)™ i ' ' contracts, part-time employees, employees of temporary employment agencies,

term contracts and part-time employees.
** As of March 1 of respective years

* Excluding employees seconded from other companies, employees on short-

April 1 2013 | 2014 | 2015
Number of new hires 20 69 87
Number of newly employed female graduates 3 45 54
Ratio of newly employed females to total new employees | 15.0% | 65.2% | 62.1%
Fiscal 2012 | 2013 | 2014
Number of employees taking parental leave™** 71 100 94
<Men taking such leave> <0>|  <4>|  <1>
Number of career hires — 27 24

**Including employees on short-term childcare leave

and national staff at overseas branches.

April 1

2013 | 2014 | 2015

Number of new hires

48 68 86

Number of newly employed female graduates**

15 17 23

Ratio of newly employed females to total new employees

31.3% | 25.0% | 26.7%

**Including only Sogoshoku employees. [ppanshoku employees are excluded.

<Men taking such leave>

Fiscal 2012 | 2013 | 2014
Number of employees taking parental leave 50 35 49
<4> <7>| <12>
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4 THE MINATO BANK

March 31 2013 2014 2015
Number of employees* 1,921 1,928 1,949
Male 1,220 1,215 1,211
\ Percentage of total 63.51% 63.02% 62.13%
Female 701 713 738
\ Percentage of total 36.49% 36.98% 37.87%
Average age 41 yrs 3mos. | 40yrs 11 mos. | 40 yrs 11 mos.
Male 44 yrs 8 mos. 44 yrs 1 mos. | 43yrs 11 mos.
Female 35 yrs 5 mos. 35 yrs 7 mos. 36 yrs O mos.
Average years of service 17 yrs 4 mos. 16 yrs 7 mos. 16 yrs 7 mos.
Male 20 yrs 7 mos. 19 yrs 8 mos. 19 yrs 8 mos.
Female 11 yrs 8 mos. 11 yrs 3 mos. 11 yrs 5 mos.

* The number of full-time employees including employees seconded to other
companies or organizations. The following list of employee is deducted from
the total number of employees: executive officers, employees on short-term

contracts, and part-time employees.

April 1 2013 | 2014 | 2015
Number of new hires 82 88 111
Number of newly employed female graduates 37 4 64

Ratio of newly employed females to total new employees | 45.1% | 46.6% | 57.7%
Fiscal 2012 | 2013 | 2014
Number of employees taking parental leave™ 21 31 38
<Men taking such leave> <1>|  <0>| <0>

** The number of those employees whose leave began during the fiscal year

4 Kansai Urban Banking

March 31 20183 2014 2015
Number of employees* 2,661 2,567 2,513
Male 1,788 1,701 1,628
| Percentage of total 67.19% 66.26% 64.78%
Female 873 866 885
[ Percentage of total 32.81% 33.74% 35.22%
Average age 40 yrs 3 mos. 40 yrs 2 mos. 40 yrs O mos.
Male 43 yrs 5 mos. 43 yrs 3 mos. | 42 yrs 11 mos.
Female 33 yrs 6 mos. 34 yrs 3 mos. 34 yrs 8 mos.
Average years of service 17 yrsOmos. | 16yrs 11 mos. 16 yrs 8 mos.
Male 19 yrs 8 mos. 19 yrs 5 mos. 19 yrs 2 mos.
Female 11 yrs 3 mos. 11 yrs 9 mos. 12 yrs 2 mos.
Number of women in
managerial positions™ 124 138 150
Rgltéggﬁlggwsp(l%f %ﬁgg? 1.78% 1.68% 1.85%

* The number of full-time employees, including employees seconded to other
companies and organizations. The following list of employee is deducted from
the total number of employees: executive officers, employees on short-term
contracts, part-time employees, and employees of temporary employment

agencies.

** As of March 31; however, it is applicable only to those employees with deputy
positions or any other positions higher than deputy position

** As of March 1 of respective years

<Men taking such leave>

April 1 2013 | 2014 | 2015
Number of new hires 96 118 169
Number of newly employed female graduates 55 70 105
Ratio of newly employed females to total new employees | 57.3% | 59.3% | 62.1%
Fiscal 2012 | 20138 | 2014
Number of employees taking parental leave 54 91 99
<1> <0> <1>

e The combined employment ratio for persons with disabilities for the above 10

companies was 2.05% as of March 2015.
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Main Work-Life Balance Support System (Employee Support Program)

Parental leave

Leave for taking care of
sick children

Shorter working hours

Restrictions on
overtime

Exemption from
late-night work

Other principal systems

SMBC

18 months or maximum of
2 years in case of inability
1o place in daycare center

Until March 31 in the 6th
grade (10 days per annum
per child; 20 days for two or
more children)

Employees can choose
shorter working hours for
each day or fewer days
worked per week, both
applicable until March 31 in
the 6th grade

Until March 31 in the
6th grade

Until March 31 in the
6th grade

 Short-term childcare leave

* Work relocations

e Childcare subsidies

| eave for nursing care

 Shorter working hours allowed for
nursing care

 System for rehiring former employees

Sumitomo Mitsui
Finance and Leasing

1 year or maximum of 18
months in case of inability
to place in daycare center

Until the entry into elemen-
tary school (5 days per
annum per child; 10 days
for two or more children)
*May be extended as
needed

Employees can reduce
daily working hours to a
minimum of 5 hours 30
minutes until March 31 in
the 6th grade

Until the entry into
elementary school

Until the entry into
elementary school

* Work relocations
 System for rehiring former employees

Until 3 years of age

Until the entry into elemen-
tary school (5 days per
annum per child; 10 days
for two or more children)

Employees may reduce daily
working hours in increments
of 30 minutes up to 2.5
hours until March 31 in the

Until March 31 in the
6th grade

Until March 31 in the
6th grade

 Short-term childcare leave

* Discounted rates for contracted daycare
service

© Nursing care leave

SMBC Nikko 6th grade * Special days off for nursing care
Securities  Shorter working hours for nursing care
 Short-term leave for nursing care
 Staggered working hours (working in
shifts)
© Rehiring former employees
18 months or maximum of | Until March 31 in the 3rd | Until March 31 in the 3rd | Until March 31 in the | Until March 31 in the | e Leave for nursing care
. 2 years in case of inability | grade (5 days per annum | grade 3rd grade 3rd grade  Shorter working hours allowed for
SMBC Friend to place in daycare center | per child; 10 days for two or | Employees can reduce daily nursing care
Securities more children) working hours to between 6  System for rehiring former employees

hours and 6 hours 50 minutes
until March 31 of the 3rd grade

Sumitomo Mitsui

18 months or maximum of
2 years in case of inability
to place in daycare center

Until March 31 in the 6th
grade (5 days per annum
per child; 10 days for two or
more children)

Employees can choose
shorter working hours for
each day or fewer days
worked per week, both

Until March 31 in the
3rd grade

Until March 31 in the
3rd grade

© Work relocations

o Childcare subsidies

* Nursing care leave, days off for nurs-
ing care

Card applicable until March 31 in  Shorter working hours for nursing care
the 3rd grade  Rehiring former employees
 Special leave (for spouse’s childbirth)
Until 3 years of age Until March 31 in the 3rd | Until March 31 in the 3rd | Until the entry into | Until the entry into | e Matemity leave and work
grade (5 days per annum | grade (Employees can | elementary school elementary school  Short-term childcare leave
per child; no upper limit) choose to work 5, 6, or 7 * | eave for nursing care
Cedyna hours a day).  Shorter working hours allowed for
nursing care
 System for rehiring former employees
* Maternity leave (for men)
1 year or maximum of 18 | Until the entry into elemen- | Until March 31 in the | Until the entry into | Until the entry into | e A grace period for job rotation
months in case of inability | tary school (5 days per | 3rd grade Employees | elementary school elementary school | eave for nursing care
to place in daycare center annum per child; 10 days | can reduce daily working  Shorter working hours allowed for
for two or more children) hours to a minimum of 6 nursing care
hours (and a maximum  Paid leave by the hour
SMBC Consumer of 8 hours), by taking off o Half-day paid leave
Finance 30-minute blocks * | eave before and after maternity

e Childcare leave (2 days)

* Company-visiting day (2 days a year)

 Rehiring of former employees who quit
for childcare or care-giving reasons

* Husband’s maternity leave (3 days)

Japan Research

18 months or maximum of
2 years in case of inability
to place in daycare center

Until March 31 in the 6th
grade (5 days per annum
per child; no upper limit)

Employees can choose to
work 4, 5, 6 or 7 hours per
day until March 31 in the
3rd grade (this system can

Until the entry into
elementary school

For employees who
are pregnant or have
given birth  within
previous 12 months

o Childcare subsidies

© Nursing care leave

* Shorter working hours (for nursing
care, etc.)

Institute be combined with flextime).  Time off and shorter working hours
 Days off for nursing care
 Special leave (for spouse’s childbirth)
 Paid leave for initial 15 days of childcare
Until 3 years of age Until March 31 in the 6th | Employees may select either | Until March 31 in the | Until March 31 in the | e Matemity leave (for assisting spouse)

grade (5 days per annum | of shorter working hours | 6th grade 6th grade * Nursing care leave

per child; 10 days for two or | for each day of the week  Shorter working hours for nursing care

more children) (employees may select to e Childcare allowance

THE MINATO BANK work for either 6, 6.5 or 7  Rehiring former employees

hours per day), or working
4 days per week; both cases
are applicable until March
31 in the 6th grade

* Support for early return to work after
childcare leave

Kansai Urban
Banking

18 months or maximum of
2 years in case of inability
to place in daycare center

Until the entry into elemen-
tary school (5 days per
annum per child; 10 days
for two or more children)

Employees may select either
of shorter working hours
for each day of the week
(employees may select to
work for 6 or 7 hours per
day), or fewer working days
per week; both cases are
applicable until the entry into
elementary school

Until the entry into
elementary school

Until the entry into
elementary school

 Paid leave for initial 5 days of childcare
* Rehiring former employees

* Nursing care leave

 Shorter working hours for nursing care
 Provision of home helpers
 Counseling service on childcare
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SMFG

Consolidated Balance Sheets

Sumitomo Mitsui Financial Group, Inc. and Subsidiaries

Millions of yen

Millions of
U.S. dollars

March 31 2014 2015 2015
Assets:
Cash and due from banks.........ccccceeeeeeecvveeeeeceeenes 8 ¥ 32,991,113 *8 ¥ 39,748,979 $ 330,828
Call loans and bills bought ..........cccoeeiiieiienniieen. *8 1,248,235 *8 1,326,965 11,044
Receivables under resale agreements ................... 522,860 746,431 6,212
Receivables under securities borrowing
transactions........coooevvveeiieeeeeeeeeeee 3,780,260 6,477,063 53,908
Monetary claims bought... 8 3,552,658 *8 4,286,592 35,677
Trading @sSets ... 8 6,957,419 *8 7,483,681 62,286
Money held in trust.........coceeieiiiiieeeee 23,120 7,087 59
SECUNMEIES...uveeeeeie et *1,*2,*8, *15 27,152,781 1, *2,*8, *15 29,633,667 246,639
Loans and bills discounted .........ccccoeeeevieeiennnnnne *3,%4,75,76, 7, *3,*4,75,76, 7,
*8, *9 68,227,688 *8, *9 73,068,240 608,142
Foreign exchanges..........cocceeveeiienieeniie e *7 1,790,406 “7 1,907,667 15,877
Lease receivables and investment assets.............. 8 1,827,251 8 1,909,143 15,890
Other assets ....ceeeviieeeiie e *8 4,181,512 *8 6,156,091 51,237
Tangible fixed assets *8,*10, *11, *12 2,346,788  *8,*10, *11, *12 2,770,853 23,062
Assets for rent .........cooeeecvieeeeee e 1,436,703 1,790,787 14,905
BUIldINGS....ceeeieiieiieeee e 302,220 313,381 2,608
(1= g T IS 445,043 469,167 3,905
Lease assets ...ooiiriiiiiie e 8,529 8,368 70
Construction in progress........ccooveveereerieenneens 55,920 76,413 636
Other tangible fixed assets ... 98,369 112,735 938
Intangible fixed assets.........ccocoeeeiiieiinieecieeees 819,895 819,560 6,821
SOFIWAIE ..o 328,251 359,216 2,990
GOOAWIll .. 377,145 351,966 2,929
Lease asSets ..oivviriiiiieeie e 80 307 3
Other intangible fixed assets.........cccevveerieennenne 114,418 108,070 899
Net defined benefit asset .......cceeveveciiviieeeiiciciiiees 119,932 376,255 3,132
Deferred tax assets 173,180 127,841 1,064
Customers’ liabilities for acceptances and
GUAIANTEES.....eiiiieeiie ettt 6,566,818 7,267,713 60,489
Reserve for possible loan losses (747,536) (671,248) (5,587)
Total @SSELS..cciii i ¥161,534,387 ¥183,442,585 $1,526,780
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Consolidated Balance Sheets SMFG

(Continued)
Millions of
Millions of yen U.S. dollars

March 31 2014 2015 2015
Liabilities and net assets:
Liabilities:
DEPOSIES eeeeeiieiieerie et *8 ¥ 94,331,925 8 ¥101,047,918 $ 841,015
Negotiable certificates of deposit ...........cceeevenene 13,713,539 13,825,898 115,072
Call money and bills sOId .........cccveriieieiiiieeeiieene 8 4,112,428 *8 5,873,123 48,882
Payables under repurchase agreements ............... 8 1,710,101 8 991,860 8,255
Payables under securities lending

tranSactions ......ccceeieiiiiiiiee e *8 5,330,974 *8 7,833,219 65,195
Commercial PAPEN .......cueeeeieeeeeieeceeeeeeee e eeee e 2,374,051 3,351,459 27,894
Trading liabilities .......ccceeiiieiiieeieeee e 8 4,779,969 *8 5,664,688 47,147
Borrowed MoNeY .........ccooceeiieeiiieiieeiie e *8, *13 7,020,841 *8, *13 9,778,095 81,382
Foreign exchanges ......oooocviieeiiiiiiiieeeee s 451,658 1,110,822 9,245
Short-term bonds .......cceeeveeeecciieieeeee e 1,145,200 1,370,800 11,409
Bonds .....cccoeviiiiiennn. “14 5,090,894 “14 6,222,918 51,793
Due to trust account 699,329 718,133 5,977
Other liabilities ......ccceeeeevieeiieeeeecceeeee e *8 4,712,069 *8 6,728,951 56,005
Reserve for employee bonuses........c.ccccoceerveennenne 69,419 73,359 611
Reserve for executive bonuses.........ccccceeeevueeeennes 4,921 3,344 28
Net defined benefit liability .........cccoeniiiiiiiiiinies 45,385 38,096 317
Reserve for executive retirement benefits.............. 2,004 2,128 18
Reserve for point service program.......... 20,355 19,050 159
Reserve for reimbursement of deposits 14,858 20,870 174
Reserve for losses on interest repayment.............. 190,182 166,793 1,388
Reserve under the special laws.........ccccceeeviueeeenns 771 1,124 9
Deferred tax liabilities ........ccoceeeeeeeeiiireeeeeeeeciiees 103,390 601,393 5,005
Deferred tax liabilities for land revaluation

EXCESS wuvrrrrieierasiierreeeeeesastrr e e e e e s s anrrree e e s e nnnneees *10 38,276 *10 34,550 288
Acceptances and guarantees .........ccceceeerineeennnns 8 6,566,818 8 7,267,713 60,489
Total liabilities ....c.eereeeeeeieeee e 152,529,368 172,746,314 1,437,755
Net assets :
Capital StOCK ....eveeceeeeeceee e 2,337,895 2,337,895 19,458
Capital SUrPIUS ...ccveeeeeeeeeeee e 758,349 757,329 6,303
Retained earnings ........cooooeeeeiiienniieeeeee s 3,480,085 4,098,425 34,111
Treasury StoCK .......ccocvviciiiiiiiicc e, (175,115) (175,261) (1,459)
Total stockholders’ equity .......ccceeeveeeieeeeiciieeenns 6,041,215 7,018,389 58,414
Net unrealized gains (losses) on other

SECUIMLIES 1uvieeeiiiee et e 949,508 1,791,049 14,907
Net deferred gains (losses) on hedges................... (60,946) (30,180) (251)
Land revaluation EXCESS......ccccevereereiuveeeeeereariineees *10 35,749 “10 39,014 325
Foreign currency translation adjustments 27,239 156,309 1,301
Accumulated remeasurements of defined

benefit plans ... (73,579) 47,667 397
Total accumulated other comprehensive

INCOMIE .t 877,971 2,003,859 16,678
Stock acquisition rights .........cccccoiiiiniiiinne, 1,791 2,284 19
Minority INtErests.......ccuev i 1,724,041 1,671,738 13,914
Total Net @SSEtS ...cccveeieecieeiieceeee e 9,005,019 10,696,271 89,024
Total liabilities and net assets........cccccvvveeeriicccineens ¥161,534,387 ¥183,442,585 $1,526,780
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SMFG

Consolidated Statements of Income

Sumitomo Mitsui Financial Group, Inc. and Subsidiaries

Millions of yen

Millions of
U.S. dollars

Year ended March 31 2014 2015 2015
OrdiNary INCOME ......ciiiiiiietee ettt ¥4,641,880 ¥4,851,202 $40,376
INtEIESt INCOME....ii et e e 1,805,015 1,891,932 15,746
Interest on loans and diSCOUNtS ..........ceeevieeeiieeecciee s 1,249,216 1,312,629 10,925
Interest and dividends ONn SECUNLIES .......c.ceeeiieiiriiieiiieeeeeeees 343,905 336,345 2,799
Interest on call loans and bills bought ..........ccccoiiiiiiiiiiniiiiees 18,351 19,599 163
Interest on receivables under resale agreements ..........cccccceeenee 7,749 9,640 80
Interest on receivables under securities borrowing transactions.. 7,293 7,826 65
Interest on deposits with banks ..o 38,162 43,147 359
Interest on lease transactions ..........ccceveeeeiiiiee e 60,545 62,097 517
Other interest income 79,790 100,645 838
B LU 0 (== RN 2,472 2,890 24
Fees and COMMISSIONS .....cccccuuieiciiee e e et e e 1,112,429 1,126,285 9,374
Trading INCOMIE ... ittt enee e 211,881 252,976 2,106
Other operating INCOME ......cooiuiiiiiiee e 1,203,500 1,359,109 11,312
Lease-related iNCOME.......cccuueeiiieee e 149,916 189,261 1,575
648,130 692,151 5,761
405,453 477,695 3,976
306,579 218,008 1,814
Gains on reversal of reserve for possible loan losses................... 136,212 61,158 509
Recoveries of written-off claims.........c.coeeviviieeieieciieeee e 9,657 15,979 133
ONET ettt ettt e ee e ne e *1 160,709 | 140,870 1,172
OrdiNary EXPENSES ...ceeeiurieeeriiieeaieeeeaseeesaseeesaseeeessseesesseesassseesssseeesssseees 3,209,548 3,530,046 29,380
INtErESt EXPENSES ...uveieeieee e et e e e e e et e e e e e e e e enneeaan 320,846 386,753 3,219
Interest on deposits .....cceeeeveeeiiiiiiiieeee. 105,111 126,371 1,052
Interest on negotiable certificates of deposit..........cccccevviiirennnen. 39,035 43,904 365
Interest on call money and bills SOId...........c.ceevviviiiiieieen s 3,503 4,201 35
Interest on payables under repurchase agreements...........cccocueeee 4,106 4,921 a1
Interest on payables under securities lending transactions.......... 3,494 5,036 42
Interest on commercial PAPEr ..........cccrcveriiiiiieie e 6,606 8,047 67
Interest on borrowed MONEY ..........eeeviiiiiiiiiiiiee s 34,804 34,814 290
Interest on short-term bonds .. 1,240 1,393 12
Interest 0N DONAS ....cecuiiieciee e e 91,182 110,461 919
Other interest EXPENSES .....ccocueiiiiiiiieiiee e 31,761 47,602 396
Fees and commissions payments..........ccoceerieeiieeniiensieeiee e 127,840 129,609 1,079
TradiNg IOSSES ...cciureeiiiiee e — 57,856 482
Other operating EXPENSES.......coiuiiriuiiiieeiee et 988,380 1,078,570 8,977
Lease-related EXPENSES .....cuueeiiuiiiiiiie et 68,747 89,310 743
Installment-related expenses.. 608,349 650,913 5,418
ONET et 311,283 338,346 2,816
General and administrative eXpenses......ccccccveeecveeeeeiceeeeeieeesseeee e *2 1,569,945 *2 1,659,341 13,811
OthEr EXPENSES ....eeiiiiiieiieie ettt e e s ne e e e nnnees *3 202,536 *3 217,914 1,814
Ordinary Profit .....eeeeeee e 1,432,332 1,321,156 10,996

7 A | SMFG 2015




Consolidated Statements of Income SMFG

(Continued)
Millions of
Millions of yen U.S. dollars

Year ended March 31 2014 2015 2015
EXtraordinary gains........cooeoeieeiieeiiie et ¥ 5,228 ¥ 538 $ 4

Gains on disposal of fixed aSSEtS ......ccvveeeevciiiecie e 2,632 538 4

Gains on negative goOAWIll ..........cocueiiiiriiiiiie e 1,031 - -

Other extraordinary gains.........ccceicueiiieeiiieiie e *4 1,564 - -
EXtraordinary I0SSES .....cciuueiiiiiieiiiiee et 14,866 12,316 103

Losses on disposal of fixed assets .......cccccueeervieeerciee e 11,227 6,853 57

Losses on impairment of fixed assets.......cccccceeeeeiciiiieeei e *5 3,348 *5 5,109 43

Provision for reserve for eventual future operating losses from

financial instruments transactions...........ccccvvieee e 289 353 3

Income before income taxes and minority interests ..........ccooceerieiieeis 1,422,694 1,309,377 10,898
INCOME TAXES-CUIMENT ...t 290,186 325,341 2,708
INCOME taxeS-AEfErTed .......ccovcuiiiiiiiie e 168,618 116,020 966
INCOME AXES ..ttt e et e e e e e e e e e e e b e e e e e e e ennsrseeeeeenn 458,805 441,362 3,673
Income before minority interests.... . 963,889 868,015 7,224
Minority interests in Nt INCOME ........ooiiiiiiii s 128,532 114,405 952
NEEINCOIME ...ttt ettt ettt ettt e teasetete e senseneneaseaeas ¥ 835,357 ¥ 753,610 $ 6,272
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SMFG

Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income

Sumitomo Mitsui Financial Group, Inc. and Subsidiaries

Millions of
Millions of yen U.S. dollars
Year ended March 31 2014 2015 2015

Income before minority INtErestS........ccueviiiiireiiiieeeee s ¥ 963,889 ¥ 868,015 $ 7,224
Other comprehensive iNCOME .......cocueeeiiiie e *{ 339,405 1 1,195,494 9,950
Net unrealized gains (losses) on other securities .........cccoeceeieeiieenes 201,566 864,496 7,195
Net deferred gains (losses) on hedges.........ccceeviiiiiiiiiiiniinieeniees (27,473) 29,458 245
Land revaluation EXCESS......cuuiiiiriieeiiiiee e et e e seee e e 18 3,604 30
Foreign currency translation adjustments...........cccoooeiieeriennienieenns 170,062 175,840 1,464
Remeasurements of defined benefit plans..........ccccovveeveiiiciciieeeeeen. — 122,552 1,020
Share of other comprehensive income of affiliates..............c.cccoce. (4,768) (458) (4)
Total coOmpPrenensive INCOME..........uiiiiiiiieiiee e 1,303,295 2,063,510 17,174
Comprehensive income attributable to shareholders of the parent... 1,125,735 1,879,838 15,646
Comprehensive income attributable to minority interests ................. 177,559 183,672 1,529
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SMFG

Consolidated Statements of Changes in Net Assets

Sumitomo Mitsui Financial Group, Inc. and Subsidiaries

Millions of yen
Stockholders’ equity

Capital Capital Retained Treasury
Year ended March 31, 2014 stock surplus earnings stock Total
Balance at the beginning of the fiscal year ..................... ¥2,337,895 ¥758,630 ¥2,811,474 ¥(227,373) ¥5,680,627
Adjustment due to changes in accounting policies as a
result of revisions to accounting standards................... (168) (168)
Changes in the fiscal year
Cash dividends.........ccceeiriiiinieeeee e (169,973) (169,973)
NEt INCOME ..o 835,357 835,357
Purchase of treasury Stock.........cccerverieeiiienieeniieens (500) (500)
Disposal of treasury StoCK..........coveerverieiniieniienieens (281) 52,759 52,477
Increase due to increase in subsidiaries ... 6 6
Increase due to decrease in subsidiaries..... 4 4
Decrease due to increase in subsidiaries..... (5) (5)
Decrease due to decrease in subsidiaries ................. (7) (7)
Reversal of land revaluation excess........cccccceeeveeeeeen. 3,398 3,398
Net changes in items other than stockholders’
equity in the fiscal year........
Net changes in the fiscal year — (281) 668,779 52,258 720,755
Balance at the end of the fiscal year..........cccceeiieeennnn. ¥2,337,895 ¥758,349 ¥3,480,085 ¥(175,115) ¥6,401,215
Millions of yen
Accumulated other comprehensive income
Net unrealized Foreign Accumulated
gains (losses) Net deferred Land currency remeasurements
on other gains (losses) revaluation translation of defined benefit
Year ended March 31, 2014 securities on hedges excess adjustments plans Total
Balance at the beginning of the fiscal year ..................... ¥755,753 ¥(32,863) ¥39,129 ¥ (97,448) ¥ - ¥664,570
Adjustment due to changes in accounting policies as a
result of revisions to accounting standards...................
Changes in the fiscal year
Cash dividends.........ccceeeeeieeiiiiee e
NEt INCOME ...
Purchase of treasury stocK..........cccceeiiiiiiiiiiniiiicnnns
Disposal of treasury StOCK.........cccceveriieeeiiieeeiieeeens
Increase due to increase in subsidiaries ..........c.........
Increase due to decrease in subsidiaries.....
Decrease due to increase in subsidiaries.....
Decrease due to decrease in subsidiaries ...
Reversal of land revaluation excess..........cccvvveeeerennne
Net changes in items other than stockholders’
equity in the fiscal year........ccccoeiiiiieiiiieeeees 198,754 (28,082) (3,380) 124,687 (73,579) 213,400
Net changes in the fiscal year .........ccccevveiiiiiiiniicieee 193,754 (28,082) (3,380) 124,687 (73,579) 213,400
Balance at the end of the fiscal year..........ccceevcveeeennnnnn. ¥949,508 ¥(60,946) ¥35,749 ¥ 27,239 ¥(73,579)  ¥877,971

Millions of yen

Stock
acquisition Minority Total
Year ended March 31, 2014 rights interests net assets
Balance at the beginning of the fiscal year ..................... ¥1,260 ¥2,096,760 ¥8,443,218
Adjustment due to changes in accounting policies as a
result of revisions to accounting standards................... 802 634
Changes in the fiscal year
Cash dividends.......ccccceeeeiieeiriee e (169,973)
Netincome.......ccccoeeeeiiineenne 835,357
Purchase of treasury stock.... (500)
Disposal of treasury StOCK.........cccceerrieeieiiieeeiieeeenes 52,477
Increase due to increase in subsidiaries ............cc...... 6
Increase due to decrease in subsidiaries................... 4
Decrease due to increase in subsidiaries................... 5)
Decrease due to decrease in subsidiaries ... (7)
Reversal of land revaluation excess............. 3,398
Net changes in items other than stockholders’
equity in the fiscal year........cccooiiiiiiiiiiiieeeeee 531 (873,521) (159,589)
Net changes in the fiscal year .............. 531 (373,521) 561,166
Balance at the end of the fiscal year..........ccccoeeveerineenne ¥1,791 ¥1,724,041 ¥9,005,019
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Millions of yen
Stockholders’ equity

Capital Capital Retained Treasury
Year ended March 31, 2015 stock surplus earnings stock Total
Balance at the beginning of the fiscal year ..................... ¥2,337,895 ¥758,349 ¥3,480,085 ¥(175,115) ¥6,401,215
Cumulative effects of changes in accounting policies ... 35,459 35,459
Restated balance ............ccccceoiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiis 2,337,895 758,349 3,615,544 (175,115) 6,436,674
Changes in the fiscal year
Cash dividends (170,908) (170,908)
Net income.... 753,610 753,610
Purchase of treasury stock... (161) (161)
Disposal of treasury stock 2 15 17

Changes in shareholders’ interest due to transaction
with minority interests ... (1,021) (1,021)

Increase due to increase in subsidiaries .. 38 38
Increase due to decrease in subsidiaries.... 5 5
Decrease due to increase in subsidiaries.........c......... (165) (165)
Decrease due to decrease in subsidiaries ................. (20) (20)
Reversal of land revaluation excess...........ceeevvnueens 321 321
Net changes in items other than stockholders’
equity in the fiscal year
Net changes in the fiscal year — (1,019) 582,880 (146) 581,715
Balance at the end of the fiscal year...........cccccccieiieeenn. ¥2,337,895 ¥757,329 ¥4,098,425 ¥(175,261) ¥7,018,389

Millions of yen

Accumulated other comprehensive income

Net unrealized Foreign Accumulated
gains (losses) Net deferred Land currency remeasurements
on other gains (losses) revaluation translation of defined

Year ended March 31, 2015 securities on hedges excess adjustments benefit plans Total
Balance at the beginning of the fiscal year ..................... ¥ 949,508 ¥(60,946) ¥35,749 ¥ 27,239 ¥ (73,579) ¥ 877,971

Cumulative effects of changes in accounting policies ...
Restated balance ... 949,508 (60,946) 35,749 27,239 (73,579) 877,971
Changes in the fiscal year

Cash dividends

Net income.......ccccvvuieeneees

Purchase of treasury stock

Disposal of treasury StoCK........ccouuuiiiiiiiiiiniiiiiiecnies

Changes in shareholders’ interest due to transaction

with minority interests ...........

Increase due to increase in subsidiaries ..

Increase due to decrease in subsidiaries.........cc........

Decrease due to increase in subsidiaries...................

Decrease due to decrease in subsidiaries .................

Reversal of land revaluation excess......c....cccoeeeeuuuunnns

Net changes in items other than stockholders’

equity in the fiscal year.........ccoooveimiiiiiiieiiiic e, 841,541 30,766 3,265 129,070 121,246 1,125,888

Net changes in the fiscal year ..........cccooiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiieeennn. 841,541 30,766 3,265 129,070 121,246 1,125,888
Balance at the end of the fiscal year...........ccccccceeiiieee. ¥1,791,049 ¥(30,180) ¥39,014 ¥156,309 ¥ 47,667 ¥2,003,859

Millions of yen

Stock
acquisition Minority Total

Year ended March 31, 2015 rights interests net assets
Balance at the beginning of the fiscal year ..................... ¥1,791 ¥1,724,041 ¥ 9,005,019

Cumulative effects of changes in accounting policies ... 431) 35,027
Restated balance ..o 1,791 1,723,610 9,040,047
Changes in the fiscal year

Cash dividends........cccuuiiiiiiiiiiiceeiceeeeeeee e (170,908)

Net income 753,610

Purchase of treasury stock... (161)

Disposal of treasury stock.......... 17

Changes in shareholders’ interest due to transaction

with minority interests ... (1,021)

Increase due to increase in subsidiaries ..........cc........ 38

Increase due to decrease in subsidiaries.........cc........ 5

Decrease due to increase in subsidiaries................... (165)

Decrease due to decrease in subsidiaries .. (20)

Reversal of land revaluation excess......c....ccooeeevuuunnnns 321

Net changes in items other than stockholders’

equity in the fiscal year.........ccoooveeiiiiiiieiiii e, 492 (51,872) 1,074,509

Net changes in the fiscal year .........cccceiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiieeennn. 492 (51,872) 1,656,224
Balance at the end of the fiscal year..........cccccvvvvvviiinnnnes ¥2,284 ¥1,671,738 ¥10,696,271
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Millions of U.S. dollars
Stockholders’ equity

Capital Capital Retained Treasury
Year ended March 31, 2015 stock surplus earnings stock Total
Balance at the beginning of the fiscal year ..................... $19,458 $6,312 $28,965 $(1,457) $53,277
Cumulative effects of changes in accounting policies ... 295 295
Restated balance ... 19,458 6,312 29,260 (1,457) 53,572
Changes in the fiscal year
(@711 o W (1Yo 1Y o Lo [P (1,422) (1,422)
Net income 6,272 6,272
Purchase of treasury stock 1) 1)
Disposal of treasury stock..............ccc 0 0 0
Changes in shareholders’ interest due to transaction
with minority interests (8) (8)
Increase due to increase in subsidiaries ... 0 0
Increase due to decrease in subsidiaries.. 0 (0]
Decrease due to increase in subsidiaries.. 1) 1)
Decrease due to decrease in subsidiaries (0) (0)
Reversal of land revaluation excess 3 3
Net changes in items other than stockholders’
equity in the fiscal year...........ccccevveiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiinnes
Net changes in the fiscal year ..........ccoooeieiiieiiiiiiiiiieeeennnn — (8) 4,851 1) 4,842
Balance at the end of the fiscal year...........ccccceveeeeeenns $19,458 $6,303 $34,111 $(1,459) $58,414
Millions of U.S. dollars
Accumulated other comprehensive income
Net unrealized Foreign Accumulated
gains (losses) Net deferred Land currency remeasurements
on other gains (losses) revaluation translation of defined
Year ended March 31, 2015 securities on hedges excess adjustments benefit plans Total
Balance at the beginning of the fiscal year ..................... $ 7,903 $(507) $298 $ 227 $ (612) $ 7,307
Cumulative effects of changes in accounting policies ...
Restated balance ... 7,903 (507) 298 227 (612) 7,307
Changes in the fiscal year
Cash dividends
Net income......
Purchase of treasury stock..
Disposal of treasury stock
Changes in shareholders’ interest due to transaction
with minority interests ...
Increase due to increase in subsidiaries
Increase due to decrease in subsidiaries
Decrease due to increase in subsidiaries
Decrease due to decrease in subsidiaries ...
Reversal of land revaluation excess...........ccoceevuuunns
Net changes in items other than stockholders’
equity in the fiscal year 7,004 256 27 1,074 1,009 9,371
Net changes in the fiscal year .......... 7,004 256 27 1,074 1,009 9,371
Balance at the end of the fiscal year $14,907 $(251) $325 $1,301 $ 397 $16,678

Millions of U.S. dollars

Stock
acquisition Minority Total
Year ended March 31, 2015 rights interests net assets
Balance at the beginning of the fiscal year ..................... $15 $14,349 $74,948
Cumulative effects of changes in accounting policies ... (4) 292
Restated balancCe ........couoveeeieiieieeeeeeeeea 15 14,345 75,240

Changes in the fiscal year
Cash dividends (1,422)
Net income.......c.ccceuue.e. 6,272
Purchase of treasury stock.. 1)
Disposal of treasury stock... 0
Changes in shareholders’ interest due to transactio
with minority interests ........cccoooiiiiiiiiiiiieee 8)

Increase due to increase in subsidiaries 0
Increase due to decrease in subsidiaries 0
Decrease due to increase in subsidiaries 1)
Decrease due to decrease in subsidiaries ... (0)

Reversal of land revaluation excess...........ccoceevununnns 3
Net changes in items other than stockholders’

equity in the fiscal year 4 (432) 8,943
Net changes in the fiscal year 4 (432) 13,785
Balance at the end of the fiscal year..........ccccceeeeeeeecunnnns $19 $13,914 $89,024
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Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows

Sumitomo Mitsui Financial Group, Inc. and Subsidiaries

Millions of
Millions of yen U.S. dollars
Year ended March 31 2014 2015 2015
Cash flows from operating activities:
Income before income taxes and minority interests ........ccccceeeeneen. ¥ 1,422,694 ¥ 1,309,377 $10,898
[0 =T (=Yo7 P-4 T o ISR 201,421 222,195 1,849
Losses on impairment of fixed assets.......ccccceeeiecciiieiee e, 3,348 5,109 43
Amortization of GOOAWIll........eeiiiiiieiiie e 29,033 26,521 221
Gains on negative goodWill ..........c.ceiiiiiiiiiiiiiie e (1,031) - -
Gains on step aCqUISITIONS ......cccueiiiiiriieniieee e (1,564) - -
Equity in (gains) losses of affiliates.........cccocivriiiiiiiiiiiieeeceeees (10,241) 10,600 88
Net change in reserve for possible loan l0Sses..........ccccerviiieiniecenns (191,436) (81,146) (675)
Net change in reserve for employee bonuUSEes.........ccccoeceeeiiieeeeceeenn. 8,833 2,722 23
Net change in reserve for executive bonUSES ..........cceveerieriiirieeennns 848 (1,576) (13)
Net change in net defined benefit asset and liability ...........cccceeeueeee. (9,477) (47,765) (398)
Net change in reserve for executive retirement benefits................... (423) 130 1
Net change in reserve for point service program..........cccceeeeeeerenenn. 1,036 (1,305) (11)
Net change in reserve for reimbursement of deposits............ccccceeueee 3,662 6,012 50
Net change in reserve for losses on interest repayment.................... (55,241) (23,388) (195)
INterest INCOME......ouviiiiee e (1,805,015) (1,891,932) (15,746)
Interest expenses......ccceeeeuveenn 320,846 386,753 3,219
Net (gains) losses on securities.... (90,773) (115,802) (964)
Net (gains) losses from money held in trust.... (69) (0) (0)
Net exchange (gains) l0Sses ..........ccccervveenene (436,009) (717,621) (5,973)
Net (gains) losses from disposal of fixed assets 8,595 6,315 53
Net change in trading assets ............ccccvvernnee. 962,762 (423,811) (3,527)
Net change in trading liabilities ................. (1,496,425) 797,462 6,637
Net change in loans and bills discounted .... (8,514,311) (4,500,362) (37,456)
Net change in deposits ........cccoeviieeeiiieeeicieeee 4,804,365 6,639,769 55,262
Net change in negotiable certificates of deposit...........ccceveieeeriieenn. 1,938,016 71,330 594
Net change in borrowed money (excluding subordinated
DOMOWINGS) .ttt 1,841,210 2,656,388 22,109
Net change in deposits with banks..........cccccoiieiiiiiiiiereeees (106,782) 117,475 978
Net change in call loans and bills bought and others........................ (158,611) (857,503) (7,137)
Net change in receivables under securities borrowing transactions.. (103,076) (2,696,803) (22,445)
Net change in call money and bills sold and others ............cccceeueee. 728,086 922,181 7,675
Net change in commercial Paper ...........ceeiieiieeiie i 325,572 924,066 7,691
Net change in payables under securities lending transactions.......... 897,138 2,502,245 20,826
Net change in foreign exchanges (aSSets) ........ccoveereerreeeieeieenieeennns 521,251 (105,639) (879)
Net change in foreign exchanges (liabilities) ........ccocerrieiieenieniennnns 75,411 624,705 5,199
Net change in lease receivables and investment assets.................... (113,452) (59,744) (497)
Net change in short-term bonds (liabilities) ........c.cccoiiiiiiiiiiieeiee. 18,900 225,600 1,878
Issuance and redemption of bonds (excluding subordinated bonds).... 648,969 1,038,047 8,640
Net change in due to trust account...........cccoeiiieiiieiniec e 53,680 18,803 156
Interest received..........coeeeeeeeeeennl 1,840,198 1,903,720 15,845
Interest paid ... (324,535) (375,300) (3,124)
Other, net..... 466,620 87,971 732
Subtotal.... 8,704,024 8,605,805 71,626
Income taxes paid......cccocveerrieeriiieee e (400,272) (365,578) (3,043)
Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities ........c.ccccecevievriieennns 8,303,752 8,240,226 68,583
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Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows

(Continued)
Millions of
Millions of yen U.S. dollars
Year ended March 31 2014 2015 2015
Cash flows from investing activities:
Purchases of SECUNMLIES .......cccueeeiciiee e ¥(19,929,619) ¥(36,624,383) $(304,822)
Proceeds from sale of securities.........cccccoeeeeieeeeiiieeieiieeeeeeeeeee, 26,799,071 27,845,192 231,754
Proceeds from redemption of Securities ......c..ccccereveeiiiiieiniieeccieenn. 8,130,520 7,854,257 65,370
Purchases of money held in trust..........ccoooiiiiiiiiiiseceees (1,010) ) 0)
Proceeds from sale of money held in trust ..........cccoceiiiiiiniiciienns 367 3,523 29
Purchases of tangible fixed @ssets .........ccccovrieiiiniiiiiiccccees (465,147) (578,968) (4,819)
Proceeds from sale of tangible fixed assets ..........cccceveerieiiieiiennnns 160,832 188,309 1,567
Purchases of intangible fixed assets........cccccrieiiiiiiniieneeecees (127,664) (145,090) (1,208)
Proceeds from sale of intangible fixed assets ...........cccccceeiieeriinenn. 5 28 0
Purchases of stocks of subsidiaries..........ccccerviriaiiiiiniiieeeeee e (825) - -
Purchases of stocks of subsidiaries resulting in change in scope of
CONSONAATION ... (46,678) (58) 0)
Proceeds from sale of stocks of subsidiaries resulting in change in
[Slefe] o 1o} eTe g o] [T =1 o] o S 672 - -
Net cash provided by (used in) investing activities .........ccccceeveereerieenns 14,520,523 (1,457,188) (12,128)
Cash flows from financing activities:
Proceeds from issuance of subordinated borrowings ............cc.ccee.... — 40,011 333
Repayment of subordinated borrowings...........cccoerveeiiieiciiniieniennns (32,000) (5,000) (42)
Proceeds from issuance of subordinated bonds and bonds with
stock acquIsition Fghts ..........oooiiiiii e 2,111 326,350 2,716
Repayment of subordinated bonds and bonds with stock
ACQUISIION MGNES ... e (849,910) (288,158) (2,398)
Dividends Paid.........cooieeiiiriiiiiee et (169,983) (170,917) (1,423)
Proceeds from contributions paid by minority stockholders ............. 1 - -
Repayments to minority Stockholders .........ccccoeviiiiiiiienciiniiciees (452,868) (124,500) (1,036)
Dividends paid to minority stockholders...........ccccorviiiiiniiiiiiiiiees (96,492) (79,752) (664)
Purchases of treasury StOCK..........coeoiiiriiiiiinieeee e (500) (161) (1)
Proceeds from disposal of treasury StoCK........cccceevvveeeiceeesieeeeeenenn. 60,666 17 0
Purchases of treasury stock of subsidiaries ..........c.ccceveerieiiieriennnns (10) - -
Proceeds from sale of treasury stock of subsidiaries .............ccccueee. 172 - -
Purchase of shares of subsidiaries not resulting in change in scope
o] i eTe] g <o [T =11 o] o SR - (1,951) (16)
Proceeds from sale of shares of subsidiaries not resulting in change
in scope of consolidation ............coecieieiiie i — 1,473 12
Net cash provided by (used in) financing activities.............ccceeu... (1,038,814) (302,589) (2,518)
Effect of exchange rate changes on cash and cash equivalents... 5,583 177,706 1,479
Net change in cash and cash equivalents............cccocceerieeernen. 21,791,044 6,658,153 55,415
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the fiscal year............... 5,202,119 26,993,164 224,662
Decrease in cash and cash equivalents resulting from exclusion of
subsidiaries from consolidation...........ccccceeeeriieeeciee e — (52,637) (438)
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the fiscal year... 1 ¥26,993,164 *1 ¥ 33,598,680 $ 279,639
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SMFG

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

Sumitomo Mitsui Financial Group, Inc. and Subsidiaries

(Basis of Presentation)

Sumitomo Mitsui Financial Group, Inc. (‘“SMFG”) was established on December 2, 2002 as a holding company for the SMFG group through a
statutory share transfer (kabushiki iten) of all of the outstanding equity securities of Sumitomo Mitsui Banking Corporation (“SMBC”) in
exchange for SMFG’s newly issued securities. SMFG is a joint stock corporation with limited liability (Kabushiki Kaisha) incorporated under the
Companies Act of Japan. Upon formation of SMFG and completion of the statutory share transfer, SMBC became a direct wholly owned
subsidiary of SMFG.

SMEFG has prepared the accompanying consolidated financial statements in accordance with the provisions set forth in the Japanese
Financial Instruments and Exchange Act and its related accounting regulations, and in conformity with accounting principles generally
accepted in Japan (“Japanese GAAP”), which are different in certain respects as to application and disclosure requirements from International
Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRS”).

The accounts of overseas subsidiaries and affiliated companies, are in principle, integrated with those of SMFG's accounting policies for
purposes of consolidation unless they apply different accounting principles and standards as required under U.S. GAAP or IFRS, in which case
a certain limited number of items are adjusted based on their materiality.

These consolidated financial statements are translated from the consolidated financial statements contained in the annual securities report
filed under the Financial Instrument and Exchange Act of Japan (“FIEA based financial statements”) except for the addition of the non-
consolidated financial statements and US dollar figures.

Amounts less than 1 million yen have been rounded down. As a result, the totals in Japanese yen shown in the financial statements do not
necessarily agree with the sum of the individual amounts.

The translation of the Japanese yen amounts into U.S. dollars is included solely for the convenience of readers outside Japan, using the
prevailing exchange rate at March 31, 2015 which was ¥120.15 to US$1. These translations should not be construed as representations that the
Japanese yen amounts have been, could have been, or could in the future be, converted into U.S. dollars at that rate.

The consolidated financial statements released in previous fiscal years were restructured from the FIEA based financial statements by

making several adjustments and reclassifications that are no longer made in these consolidated financial statements.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements SMFG

As of and for the years ended March 31, 2014 and 2015

(Notes to significant accounting policies for preparing consolidated financial statements)
1. Scope of consolidation
(1) Consolidated subsidiaries
The number of consolidated subsidiaries at March 31, 2015 is 317.
Principal companies: Sumitomo Mitsui Banking Corporation (“SMBC”)
Sumitomo Mitsui Finance and Leasing Company, Limited (“SMFL”)
SMBC Nikko Securities Inc. (“SMBC Nikko”)
SMBC Friend Securities Co., Ltd. (“SMBC Friend”)
Sumitomo Mitsui Card Company, Limited (“SMCC”)
Cedyna Financial Corporation (“Cedyna”)
SMBC Consumer Finance Co., Ltd. (“SMBCCE”)
The Japan Research Institute, Limited
THE MINATO BANK, LTD. (“MINATO”)
Kansai Urban Banking Corporation (‘“KUBC”)
Sumitomo Mitsui Banking Corporation Europe Limited
Sumitomo Mitsui Banking Corporation (China) Limited
SMBC Guarantee Co., Ltd.
SMBC Capital Markets, Inc.

36 companies were newly included in the scope of consolidation as a result of the establishment and for other reasons.

The Japan Net Bank, Limited was excluded from the scope of consolidation because it became an equity method affiliate due to a
decrease in the ratio of voting rights. Other 42 companies were also excluded from the scope of consolidation due to liquidation and for
other reasons.

(2) Unconsolidated subsidiaries
Principal company: SBCS Co., Ltd.

195 unconsolidated subsidiaries are operators of silent partnerships for lease transactions and their assets and profits/losses do not
belong to them substantially. Therefore, they have been excluded from the scope of consolidation pursuant to Article 5, Paragraph 1
Item 2 of Ordinance on Terminology, Forms and Preparation Methods of Consolidated Financial Statements.

Other unconsolidated subsidiaries are also excluded from the scope of consolidation because their total amounts in terms of total
assets, ordinary income, net income and retained earnings are immaterial, as such, they do not hinder a rational judgment of SMFG’s

financial position and results of operations when excluded from the scope of consolidation.

2. Application of the equity method
(1) Unconsolidated subsidiaries accounted for by the equity method
The number of unconsolidated subsidiaries accounted for by the equity method at March 31, 2015 is 5.
Principal company: SBCS Co., Ltd.
(2) Affiliates accounted for by the equity method 45 companies
Principal companies: PT Bank Tabungan Pensiunan Nasional Tbk
Sumitomo Mitsui Auto Service Company, Limited
Daiwa SB Investments Ltd.

The Japan Net Bank, Limited newly became an equity method affiliate due to a decrease in the ratio of voting rights. 3 companies
including The Bank of East Asia, Limited also became equity method affiliates due to the acquisition of stocks and for other reasons.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

(3) Unconsolidated subsidiaries that are not accounted for by the equity method
195 subsidiaries are operators of silent partnerships for lease transactions and their assets and profits/losses do not belong to them
substantially. Therefore, they have not been accounted for by the equity method pursuant to Article 10 Paragraph 1 Item 2 of Ordinance
on Terminology, Forms and Preparation Methods of Consolidated Financial Statements.

(4) Affiliates that are not accounted for by the equity method

Principal company: Daiwa SB Investments (USA) Ltd.
Affiliates that are not accounted for by the equity method are also excluded from the scope of equity method because their total
amounts in terms of net income and retained earnings are immaterial, and as such, they do not hinder a rational judgment of SMFG’s

financial position and results of operations when excluded from the scope of equity method.

3. The balance sheet dates of consolidated subsidiaries

(1) The balance sheet dates of the consolidated subsidiaries at March 31, 2015 are as follows:
April 30 1
May 31 oo 1
June 30. . 6
October 31 ....ccccoiiiiiiiiinne 3
November 30.......cccoevvinunnnne 2
December 31..coviiiiiieiinne 136
January 31 oo 16
February 28........ccoceeviiiiiine 3
March 31 . 149
(2) The subsidiaries with balance sheets dated April 30, May 31, June 30 and November 30 are consolidated using the financial statements

as of March 31. The subsidiaries with balance sheets dated October 31 are consolidated using the financial statements as of January 31.
Certain subsidiaries with balance sheets dated December 31 and January 31 are consolidated using the financial statements as of March
31. Other subsidiaries are consolidated using the financial statements as of their respective balance sheet dates.

Appropriate adjustments were made to material transactions during the periods between their respective balance sheet dates and the
consolidated closing date.

4. Accounting policies

(1) Standards for recognition and measurement of trading assets/liabilities and trading income/losses

Transactions for trading purposes (seeking gains arising from short-term changes in interest rates, currency exchange rates, or market
prices of securities and other market related indices or from variation among markets) are included in “Trading assets” or “Trading
liabilities” on the consolidated balance sheets on a trade date basis. Profits and losses on trading-purpose transactions are recognized on a
trade date basis, and recorded as “Trading income” and “Trading losses.”

Securities and monetary claims purchased for trading purposes are stated at the fiscal year-end market value, and financial derivatives
such as swaps, futures and options are stated at amounts that would be settled if the transactions were terminated at the consolidated
balance sheet date.

“Trading income” and “Trading losses” include interest received or paid during the fiscal year. The year-on-year valuation differences
of securities and monetary claims are also recorded in the above-mentioned accounts. As for the derivatives, assuming that the

settlement will be made in cash, the year-on-year valuation differences are also recorded in the above-mentioned accounts.

(2) Standards for recognition and measurement of securities

1) Debt securities that consolidated subsidiaries have the positive intent and ability to hold to maturity are classified as held-to-

maturity securities and are carried at amortized cost (based on straight-line method) using the moving-average method. Investments
in unconsolidated subsidiaries and affiliates that are not accounted for by the equity method are carried at cost using the moving-
average method. Securities other than trading purpose securities, held-to-maturity securities and investments in unconsolidated
subsidiaries and affiliates are classified as “Other securities” (available-for-sale securities). Stocks (including foreign stocks) in other
securities are carried at their average market prices during the final month of the fiscal year, and bonds and others are carried at their
fiscal year-end market prices (cost of securities sold is calculated using primarily the moving-average method). Other securities which
are extremely difficult to determine fair value are carried at cost using the moving-average method.

Net unrealized gains (losses) on other securities, net of income taxes, are included in “Net assets,” after deducting the amount
that is reflected in the fiscal year’s earnings by applying fair value hedge accounting.

2)  Securities included in money held in trust are carried in the same method as in (1) and (2) 1) above.
(3) Standards for recognition and measurement of derivative transactions

Derivative transactions, excluding those classified as trading derivatives, are carried at fair value.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements SMFG

Depreciation
1) Tangible fixed assets (excluding assets for rent and lease assets)
Buildings owned by SMFG and SMBC are depreciated using the straight-line method. Others are depreciated using the declining-
balance method. The estimated useful lives of major items are as follows:
Buildings: 7 to 50 years
Others: 2 to 20 years
Other consolidated subsidiaries depreciate their tangible fixed assets primarily using the straight-line method over the estimated
useful lives of the respective assets.
2) Intangible fixed assets
Intangible fixed assets are depreciated using the straight-line method. Capitalized software for internal use owned by SMFG and its
consolidated domestic subsidiaries is depreciated over its estimated useful life (basically 5 years).
3)  Assets for rent
Assets for rent are depreciated using the straight-line method, assuming that lease terms are, in principle, their depreciation period
and the salvage is the estimated disposal value when the lease period expires.
4)  Lease assets
Lease assets with respect to non-transfer ownership finance leases, which are recorded in “Tangible fixed assets,” are depreciated using
the straight-line method, assuming that lease terms are their expected lifetime and salvage values are zero.
Reserve for possible loan losses
The reserve for possible loan losses of major consolidated subsidiaries is provided as detailed below in accordance with the internal
standards for write-offs and provisions.

For claims on borrowers that have entered into bankruptcy, special liquidation proceedings or similar legal proceedings (“bankrupt
borrowers”) or borrowers that are not legally or formally insolvent but are regarded as substantially in the same situation (“effectively
bankrupt borrowers”), a reserve is provided based on the amount of claims, after the write-off stated below, net of the expected amount
of recoveries from collateral and guarantees. For claims on borrowers that are not currently bankrupt but are perceived to have a high
risk of falling into bankruptcy (“potentially bankrupt borrowers”), a reserve is provided in the amount deemed necessary based on an
overall solvency assessment of the claims, net of the expected amount of recoveries from collateral and guarantees.

Discounted Cash Flows (“DCF”) method is used for claims on borrowers whose cash flows from collection of principals and interest
can be rationally estimated and SMBC applies it to claims on large potentially bankrupt borrowers and claims on large borrowers
requiring close monitoring that have been classified as “Past due loans (3 months or more)” or “Restructured loans,” whose total loans
from SMBC exceed a certain amount. SMBC establishes a reserve for possible loan losses using the DCF method for such claims in the
amount of the difference between the present value of principal and interest (calculated using the rationally estimated cash flows
discounted at the initial contractual interest rate) and the book value.

For other claims, a reserve is provided based on the historical loan-loss ratio. For claims originated in specific overseas countries, an
additional reserve is provided in the amount deemed necessary based on the assessment of political and economic conditions.

Branches and credit supervision departments assess all claims in accordance with the internal rules for self-assessment of assets, and
the Credit Review Department, independent from these operating sections, audits their assessment.

The reserve for possible loan losses of SMFG and other consolidated subsidiaries for general claims is provided in the amount deemed
necessary based on the historical loan-loss ratios, and for doubtful claims in the amount deemed uncollectible based on assessment of
each claim.

For collateralized or guaranteed claims on bankrupt borrowers and effectively bankrupt borrowers, the amount exceeding the
estimated value of collateral and guarantees is deemed to be uncollectible and written off against the total outstanding amount of the
claims. The amount of write-off as of ended March 31, 2014 and 2015 were ¥511,043 million and ¥363,585 million.

Reserve for employee bonuses

The reserve for employee bonuses is provided for payment of bonuses to employees, in the amount of estimated bonuses, which are
attributable to the fiscal year.

Reserve for executive bonuses

The reserve for executive bonuses is provided for payment of bonuses to directors, corporate auditors and other executive officers, in the
amount of estimated bonuses, which are attributable to the fiscal year.

Reserve for executive retirement benefits

The reserve for executive retirement benefits is provided for payment of retirement benefits to directors, corporate auditors and other
executive officers, in the amount deemed accrued at the fiscal year-end based on the internal regulations.

Reserve for point service program

The reserve for point service program is provided for the potential future redemption of points awarded to customers under the “SMBC
Point Pack,” credit card points programs, and other customer points award programs. The amount is calculated by converting the

outstanding points into a monetary amount, and rationally estimating and recognizing the amount that will be redeemed in the future.
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(10) Reserve for reimbursement of deposits
The reserve for reimbursement of deposits which were derecognized from liabilities under certain conditions is provided for the possible
losses on the future claims of withdrawal based on historical reimbursements.
(11) Reserve for losses on interest repayment
The reserve for losses on interest repayment is provided for the possible losses on future claims of repayment of interest based on
historical interest repayment experience.
(12) Reserve under the special laws
The reserve under the special laws is a reserve for contingent liabilities and provided for compensation for losses from securities related
transactions or derivative transactions, pursuant to Article 46-5 of the Financial Instruments and Exchange Act.
(13) Employee retirement benefits
In calculating the projected benefit obligation, the benefit formula basis is used to attribute the expected benefit attributable to the
respective fiscal year.
Unrecognized prior service cost is amortized on a straight-line basis, primarily over 9 years within the employees’ average remaining
service period at incurrence.
Unrecognized net actuarial gain (loss) is amortized on a straight-line basis, primarily over 9 years within the employees’ average
remaining service period, commencing from the next fiscal year of incurrence.
(14) Translation of foreign currency assets and liabilities
Assets and liabilities of SMFG and SMBC denominated in foreign currencies and accounts of SMBC overseas branches are translated into
Japanese yen mainly at the exchange rate prevailing at the consolidated balance sheet date, with the exception of stocks of subsidiaries
and affiliates translated at rates prevailing at the time of acquisition.
Other consolidated subsidiaries’ assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated into Japanese yen at the
exchange rate prevailing at their respective balance sheet dates.
(15) Lease transactions
1)  Recognition of income on finance leases
Interest income is allocated to each period.
2)  Recognition of income on operating leases
Primarily, lease-related income is recognized on a straight-line basis over the full term of the lease, based on the contractual amount
of lease fees per month.
3) Recognition of income and expenses on installment sales
Primarily, installment-sales-related income and expenses are recognized on a due-date basis over the full period of the installment
sales.
(16) Hedge accounting
1) Hedging against interest rate changes
As for the hedge accounting method applied to hedging transactions for interest rate risk arising from financial assets and liabilities,
SMBC applies deferred hedge accounting.

SMBC applies deferred hedge accounting stipulated in “Treatment for Accounting and Auditing of Application of Accounting
Standard for Financial Instruments in Banking Industry” (JICPA Industry Audit Committee Report No. 24) to portfolio hedges on
groups of large-volume, small-value monetary claims and debts.

As for the portfolio hedges to offset market fluctuation, SMBC assesses the effectiveness of such hedges by classifying the hedged
items (such as deposits and loans) and the hedging instruments (such as interest rate swaps) by their maturity. As for the portfolio
hedges to fix cash flows, SMBC assesses the effectiveness of such hedges by verifying the correlation between the hedged items and
the hedging instruments.

As for the individual hedges, SMBC also assesses the effectiveness of such individual hedges.

2) Hedging against currency fluctuations
SMBC applies deferred hedge accounting stipulated in “Treatment of Accounting and Auditing Concerning Accounting for Foreign
Currency Transactions in Banking Industry” (JICPA Industry Audit Committee Report No. 25) to currency swap and foreign
exchange swap transactions executed for the purpose of lending or borrowing funds in different currencies.

Pursuant to JICPA Industry Audit Committee Report No. 25, SMBC assesses the effectiveness of currency swap and foreign
exchange swap transactions executed for the purpose of offsetting the risk of changes in currency exchange rates by verifying that
there are foreign-currency monetary claims and debts corresponding to the foreign-currency positions.

In order to hedge risk arising from volatility of exchange rates for stocks of subsidiaries and affiliates and other securities
(excluding bonds) denominated in foreign currencies, SMBC applies deferred hedge accounting or fair value hedge accounting, on
the conditions that the hedged securities are designated in advance and that sufficient on-balance (actual) or off-balance (forward)
liability exposure exists to cover the cost of the hedged securities denominated in the same foreign currencies.

3) Hedging against share price fluctuations
SMBC applies fair value hedge accounting to individual hedges offsetting the price fluctuation of the shares that are classified under
other securities, and accordingly evaluates the effectiveness of such individual hedges.

86 |sMFG 2015



Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements SMFG

4) Transactions between consolidated subsidiaries
As for derivative transactions between consolidated subsidiaries or internal transactions between trading accounts and other accounts
(or among internal sections), SMBC manages the interest rate swaps and currency swaps that are designated as hedging instruments
in accordance with the non-arbitrary and strict criteria for external transactions stipulated in JICPA Industry Audit Committee
Report No. 24 and No. 25. Therefore, SMBC accounts for the gains or losses that arise from interest rate swaps and currency swaps
in its earnings or defers them, rather than eliminating them.
Certain consolidated subsidiaries apply the deferred hedge accounting, the fair value hedge accounting or the special treatment
for interest rate swaps.
(17) Amortization of goodwill
Goodwill is amortized using the straight-line method over a period in which its benefit is expected to be realized, not to exceed 20
years. Immaterial goodwill is charged or credited when incurred.
(18) Scope of “Cash and cash equivalents” on consolidated statements of cash flows
For the purposes of presenting the consolidated statements of cash flows, “Cash and cash equivalents” are cash on hand, non-interest
earning deposits with banks and deposits with the Bank of Japan.
(19) Consumption taxes
National and local consumption taxes of SMFG and its consolidated domestic subsidiaries are accounted for using the tax-excluded
method.

(Changes in accounting policies due to application of new or revised accounting standards)

1. Accounting Standard for Retirement Benefits and related guidance

SMFG has adopted Paragraph 35 of “Accounting Standard for Retirement Benefits” (ASB]J Statement No. 26 issued on May 17, 2012,
“Accounting Standard”) and Paragraph 67 of “Guidance on Accounting Standard for Retirement Benefits” (ASBJ Guidance No. 25 issued on
March 26, 2015, “Guidance”) from the beginning of the fiscal year ended March 31, 2015. Accordingly, SMFG has reviewed its calculation
methods for the projected benefit obligation and service cost, and changed the method for attributing the expected benefit to periods of service
from a straight-line basis to a benefit formula basis.

The Accounting Standard and Guidance are applied in accordance with the transitional treatment stipulated in Paragraph 37 of the
Accounting Standard. The effect, arising from the change in calculation method for the projected benefit obligation and service cost, is reflected
in retained earnings as of the beginning of the fiscal year ended March 31, 2015.

As a result, net defined benefit asset increased by ¥49,052 million, net defined benefit liability decreased by ¥3,646 million and retained
earnings increased by ¥35,459 million as of the beginning of the fiscal year ended March 31, 2015. The effect of these changes on profit and
loss for the fiscal year ended March 31, 2015 is considered to be immaterial.

The effect of this change on net assets per share is disclosed in “(Per Share Data).”

2. Revision of Accounting Standard for Business Combinations and related rules
“Accounting Standard for Business Combinations” (ASB] Statement No. 21), “Accounting Standard for Consolidated Financial Statements”
(ASB]J Statement No. 22), “Accounting Standard for Business Divestitures” (ASBJ Statement No. 7) and other related standards and
implementation guidance were revised on September 13, 2013, and became effective from fiscal years beginning on or after April 1, 2014.
SMEFG has prospectively adopted these revised accounting standards and implementation guidance from the beginning of the fiscal year ended
March 31, 2015 (excluding the provisions defined in Paragraph 39 of Accounting Standard for Consolidated Financial Statements), in
accordance with the transitional treatment set forth in Paragraph 58-2 (4) of Accounting Standard for Business Combinations, Paragraph 44-5
(4) of Accounting Standard for Consolidated Financial Statements, and Paragraph 57-4 (4) of Accounting Standard for Business Divestitures.
In accordance with these revisions, SMFG'’s accounting policies have been changed as follows:
- the difference arising from a change in SMFG’s ownership interest in a subsidiary over which SMFG continues to have control is
recognized in capital surplus, and acquisition costs are expensed in the period incurred, and
- for a business combination occurring on or after April 1, 2014, an adjustment to the provisional amount arising from the finalization of
the tentative accounting treatment relating to the purchase price allocation is retrospectively recognized in the consolidated financial
statements for the accounting period in which the combination occurs.
The effect of these changes on profit and loss for the fiscal year ended March 31, 2015 is considered to be immaterial.

(Additional information)
Effect of a change in the corporate income tax rule
In accordance with the “Act for Partial Amendment of the Income Tax Act, etc.” (Act No. 9, 2015) and the “Act to Amend the Local Taxation
Act, etc.” (Act No. 2, 2015) promulgated on March 31, 2015, the corporate income tax rate will be lowered from fiscal years beginning on or
after April 1, 2015. Additionally, beginning from fiscal years starting on or after April 1, 2015, the use of tax loss carryforwards will be limited
to the equivalent of 65% of taxable income before deducting tax loss carryforwards, and beginning from fiscal years starting on or after April 1,
2017, the use of tax loss carryforwards will be limited to the equivalent of 50% of taxable income before deducting tax loss carryforwards.

As a result of these changes, net income decreased by ¥30,248 million and total accumulated other comprehensive income increased by
¥77,813 million.
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(Notes to consolidated balance sheets)

*1

*2

*3

*4

*5

Japanese stocks and investments in unconsolidated subsidiaries and affiliates
Japanese stocks and investments in unconsolidated subsidiaries and affiliates at March 31, 2014 and 2015 were as follows:

Millions of yen

March 31 2014 2015
JAPANESE STOCKS ...t ¥372,127 ¥583,382
TOIVESTIMENIES ..ottt ettt ettt et e et e st e e et e et e e st e e st e e enbeeensee e st e e enbeeenneeeneeas 249 336

Japanese stocks of jointly controlled entities were as follows:

Millions of yen

March 31 2014 2015

Japanese stocks of jointly controlled entities .........cooveiiiiririniiniiiiiiieccce ¥99,691 ¥100,102

Unsecured loaned securities for which borrowers have the right to sell or pledge
The amount of unsecured loaned securities for which borrowers have the right to sell or pledge at March 31, 2014 and 2015 were as follows:

March 31, 2014 Millions of yen  March 31, 2015 Millions of yen
Japanese government bonds in “Securities” ............... ¥28,995  Japanese government bonds and other securities in
CSCCULIEICS” 1. eeeeeeiee e e e e e ¥1,540

As for the unsecured borrowed securities, securities under resale agreements and securities borrowed with cash collateral with rights to sell or
pledge without restrictions, those securities pledged and those securities held without being disposed at March 31, 2014 and 2015 were as follows:

Millions of yen

March 31 2014 2015
Securities borrowed with cash COLlateral......coo.ueveeeeeeeeieee e ¥1,462,265 ¥3,181,553
Unsecured borrowed securities, securities under resale agreements..........coeevvieeniereennnnns 2,482,406 3,087,292

Bankrupt loans and non-accrual loans

Bankrupt loans and non-accrual loans at March 31, 2014 and 2015 were as follows:

Millions of yen
March 31 2014 2015
BanKIUPt LOAIS .. ..eveeiieiieie ettt ettt ettt eae s ¥ 39,601 ¥ 35,861
INON-ACCIUAL LOANS ...t 877,325 774,058

“Bankrupt loans” are loans, after write-off, to legally bankrupt borrowers as defined in Article 96-1-3 and 96-1-4 of “Order for
Enforcement of the Corporation Tax Act” (Cabinet Order No. 97 of 1965) and on which accrued interest income is not recognized as there
is substantial doubt about the ultimate collectability of either principal or interest because they are past due for a considerable period of
time or for other reasons.

“Non-accrual loans” are loans on which accrued interest income is not recognized, excluding “Bankrupt loans” and loans on which
interest payments are deferred in order to support the borrowers’ recovery from financial difficulties.

Past due loans (3 months or more)
Past due loans (3 months or more) at March 31, 2014 and 2015 were as follows:

Millions of yen

March 31 2014 2015

Past due loans (3 MmoNths 0 MOTE) .......c..iiiiiiiiiiieeie e ¥14,679 ¥13,714

“Past due loans (3 months or more)” are loans on which the principal or interest payment is past due for 3 months or more, excluding

“Bankrupt loans” and “Non-accrual loans.”

Restructured loans
Restructured loans at March 31, 2014 and 2015 were as follows:

Millions of yen

March 31 2014 2015

ReESErUCTUIEd LOANS ....oeiiiiiiiii ittt e et e e eeaee s ¥389,089 ¥278,622

“Restructured loans” are loans on which terms and conditions have been amended in favor of the borrowers (e.¢. reduction of the

original interest rate, deferral of interest payments, extension of principal repayments or debt forgiveness) in order to support the

» e

borrowers’ recovery from financial difficulties, excluding “Bankrupt loans,” “Non-accrual loans” and “Past due loans (3 months or more).”
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*6 Risk-monitored loans

*7

*8

The total amount of bankrupt loans, non-accrual loans, past due loans (3 months or more) and restructured loans at March 31 , 2014 and
2015 were as follows:

Millions of yen
March 31 2014 2015
¥1,320,695 ¥1,102,256

Risk-monitored L0ANS ..........ccooiiiiiiiiiiiii i
The amounts of loans presented in Notes *3 to *6 above are the amounts before deduction of reserve for possible loan losses.

Bills discounted

Bills discounted are included in “Loans and bills discounted” and “Foreign exchanges” accounts depending on the type of the bills. Bills
discounted are accounted for as financial transactions in accordance with the “Treatment for Accounting and Auditing of Application of
Accounting Standard for Financial Instruments in Banking Industry” (JICPA Industry Audit Committee Report No. 24). SMBC and its
banking subsidiaries have rights to sell or pledge bank acceptance bought, commercial bills discounted, documentary bills and foreign
exchanges bought without restrictions, etc. The total face value at March 31, 2014 and 2015 were as follows:

Millions of yen
March 31 2014 2015
Bills diSCOUNTE ......oiiiiiiiiii e ¥1,019,215 ¥950,790

Assets pledged as collateral
Assets pledged as collateral at March 31, 2014 and 2015 consisted of the following:

March 31, 2014
Assets pledged as collateral:

March 31, 2015
Assets pledged as collateral:

Millions of yen Millions of yen

March 31, 2014

Cash and due from banks.............ccooooiiiiiiiiiins ¥ 98,101

Call loans and bills bought ........ccoooviiiiiiiiiis 347,681
Monetary claims bought..........cccoooeviiiiniini. 76,437
Trading ASSETS ...eveuiiviieieieiieeeieie e 2,245,525
Securities.........oevreevreennns 7,431,341
Loans and bills discounted..............ccoovvvieiiiennn.n. 2,278,931
Lease receivables and investment assets................. 4,036
Tangible fixed aSS€ts .......ccveveriiieieieieieiee, 10,411
Other assets (installment account receivable,

EEC.) teteeee ettt 276

Liabilities corresponding to assets pledged as collateral:

DEPOSIES ..o 29,933
Call money and bills sold..........cccooccoininiiicnne 745,000
Payables under repurchase agreements........ 1,664,002
Payables under securities lending transactions ..... 5,317,793
Trading liabilities..........ccccoooiiiiiiiiini, 350,379
Borrowed MONEY .....ceevvenieiieiieiieiieieieieie e 3,561,623
Other 1iabilities ......ccoveiiieiiiiiiiieeeceeeeeee 35,014
Acceptances and guarantees..............ccoceeeurenne. 187,730

Cash and due from banks.............ccccooooviiiii. ¥ 61,093
Call loans and bills bought .........ccccooviiiiinnn 478,457
Monetary claims bought...........c.ccocoiiiinn 75,556
Trading aSSES......ccvvevurieiiiieiiieniiieeiee e 1,712,885
Securities 10,445,190
Loans and bills discounted 2,803,237
Lease receivables and investment assets................ 3,163
Tangible fixed assets ........ccccververierianierieeeiens 9,969
Other assets (installment account receivable,

ELC.) 1 eeeeeeeeeee e e e e e e e e e et e e e e e e aeaaaaaa 172

Liabilities corresponding to assets pledged as collateral:

DEPOSILS e 33,800
Call money and bills sold...........c.cocooiiininnn 1,095,000
Payables under repurchase agreements 406,212
Payables under securities lending transactions ..... 4,121,603
Trading liabilities..........ccoocoiiiiiiiiniii 480,464
Borrowed mMoOney ........oevvveviieniieiieieee e 6,099,726
Other liabilities...........oooiiiiiiiiiiieeeee e 35,952
Acceptances and UATANTEES ..........cccoeevieeuriniennnns 207,009

In addition to the assets presented above, the following assets were pledged as collateral for cash settlements, and substitution for

Millions of yen ~ March 31, 2015

margins of futures transactions and certain other purposes at March 31, 2014 and 2015:

Millions of yen

Cash and due from banks... .. ¥ 11,658
Trading @SSELS .....veeruieeeiieeiiieeiee ettt et 21,939
SECULTTIES 1.ttt e e e e e e e e e ettt eeeeeeeeeeeesnananes 8,018,590

Cash and due from banks... ¥ 13,580
Trading aSSETS ...cc.vveririeririeiiieeiie ettt 2,271
SECULTTIES .vvviieeiiiieeeeiiieeeeeeiee e e e et e e et e e eneeeeeeeneens 6,067,851
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*9

Other assets include collateral money deposited for financial instruments, surety deposits, margin of futures markets and other margins.

The amounts for such assets were as follows:

March 31, 2014 Millions of yen ~ March 31, 2015 Millions of yen
Collateral money deposited for financial instruments.... ~ ¥152,163  Collateral money deposited for financial instruments ~ ¥410,317
Surety deposits .....ccuieeuiiiiiiiiiiieic e 121,613 Surety depoSits .o.ecueeuieuieuierieieieiieeieeieeieeieeeeeeieees 119,525
Margins of futures markets ........ccoocvevvevienieneeinnne, 22,677 Margins of futures markets .........ccoocvevvevveriiieenenn, 63,433
Other Marging .......ccocvevvviiiiiiiiiniiiiieci e, 1,362 Other Margins ........ccccoueieueviiinciieieiecieceeeceeas 27,819

Commitment line contracts on overdrafts and loans
Commitment line contracts on overdrafts and loans are agreements to lend to customers, up to a prescribed amount, as long as there is no

violation of any condition established in the contracts. The amounts of unused commitments at March 31, 2014 and 2015 were as follows:

Millions of yen

March 31 2014 2015
The amounts of UNUSed COMMITMENTS ..........c.eiiiiieeireeeeeeeeieee e e eeeeeeee e e eaee e ¥49,167,754 ¥53,473,427
The amounts of unused commitments whose original contract terms are within 1 year or

unconditionally cancelable at any time..........cccoooviiiiiiiiiiie e 38,010,372 40,386,315

Since many of these commitments are expected to expire without being drawn upon, the total amount of unused commitments does
not necessarily represent actual future cash flow requirements. Many of these commitments include clauses under which SMBC and other
consolidated subsidiaries can reject an application from customers or reduce the contract amounts in the event that economic conditions
change, SMBC and other consolidated subsidiaries need to secure claims, or other events occur. In addition, SMBC and other consolidated
subsidiaries may request the customers to pledge collateral such as premises and securities at the time of the contracts, and take necessary
measures such as monitoring customers’ financial positions, revising contracts when such need arises and securing claims after the contracts

are made.

*10 Land revaluation excess

*1

—

SMBC and another consolidated subsidiary revaluated their own land for business activities in accordance with the “Act on Revaluation of
Land” (the “Act”) (Act No. 34, effective March 31, 1998) and “Act for Partial Revision of Act on Revaluation of Land” (Act No. 19,
effective March 31, 2001). The income taxes corresponding to the net unrealized gains are reported in “Liabilities” as “Deferred tax
liabilities for land revaluation excess,” and the net unrealized gains, net of deferred taxes, are reported as “Land revaluation excess” in “Net
assets.”

A certain affiliate also revaluated its own land for business activities in accordance with the Act. The net unrealized gains, net of

deferred taxes, are reported as “Land revaluation excess” in “Net assets.”

Date of the revaluation
SMBC: March 31, 1998 and March 31, 2002
Another consolidated subsidiary and an affiliate: March 31, 1999 and March 31, 2002

Method of revaluation (stipulated in Article 3-3 of the Act)
SMBC: Fair values were determined by applying appropriate adjustments for land shape and timing of appraisal to the values
stipulated in Articles 2-3, 2-4 or 2-5 of “Order for Enforcement of Act on Revaluation of Land” (Cabinet Order No. 119 of March 31,
1998).
Another consolidated subsidiary and an affiliate: Fair values were determined based on the values stipulated in Articles 2-3 and 2-5 of
“Order for Enforcement of Act on Revaluation of Land” (Cabinet Order No. 119 of March 31, 1998).

Accumulated depreciation on tangible fixed assets
Accumulated depreciation on tangible fixed assets at March 31, 2014 and 2015 are as follows:
Millions of yen
March 31 2014 2015
Accumulated depPreCiation ..............iiiiiiiiiiiiiti ettt ¥884,257 ¥944,545
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*12 Deferred gain on tangible fixed assets deductible for tax purposes
Deferred gain on tangible fixed assets deductible for tax purposes at March 31, 2014 and 2015 were as follows:

Millions of yen

March 31 2014 2015
Deferred gain on tangible fixed assets deductible for tax purposes.........ccoccoveveervirencnenene ¥62,791 ¥62,704
[The consolidated fiscal year concerned].........cccoovviriiiiiiniiiniiniiieiiccecceece 14,4711 {145}

*13 Subordinated borrowings
The balance of subordinated borrowings with the special clause specifying that the repayment order of the borrowing subordinates to other
borrowings included in “Borrowed money” at March 31, 2014 and 2015 were as follows:

Millions of yen
March 31 2014 2015
Subordinated DOLFOWINGS .....cc.eiuiiiiiiiiiiiitit e ¥282,449 ¥317,461

*14 Subordinated bonds
The balance of subordinated bonds included in “Bonds” at March 31, 2014 and 2015 were as follows:

Millions of yen
March 31 2014 2015
Subordinated DONAS ..........cuiiiiiiiiiiiii e ¥1,701,431 ¥1,777,502

*15 Guaranteed amount to privately-placed bonds
The amounts guaranteed by SMBC and its banking subsidiaries to privately-placed bonds (stipulated by Article 2-3 of the Financial
Instruments and Exchange Act) in “Securities” at March 31, 2014 and 2015 were as follows:

Millions of yen
March 31 2014 2015
Guaranteed amount to privately-placed bonds ..........ccoooiiiiiiiiiiiiiii i ¥1,885,300 ¥2,030,463
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(Notes to consolidated statements of income)

*1

*2

*3

*4

Other income
“Other” in “Other income” for the fiscal years ended March 31, 2014 and 2015 included the following:

Year ended March 31, 2014 Millions of yen ~ Year ended March 31, 2015 Millions of yen
Gains on sales of StOCKS...........cooviuiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiieeeee, ¥108,183 Gains on sales of StOCKS..........coovviiiiiiiiiiiiiiiieeeen ¥ 83,503
Equity in gains of affiliates ..........cccooevereninincncnne 10,241

General and administrative expenses
“General and administrative expenses” for the fiscal years ended March 31, 2014 and 2015 included the following:

Year ended March 31, 2014 Millions of yen  Year ended March 31, 2015 Millions of yen
Salaries and related expenses ...........ccoceevvuieiiiieninenns ¥573,418 Salaries and related expenses ..........ccoccveevuiiriiieninenns ¥610,998
Research and development costs 159  Research and development costs 171
Other expenses
“Other expenses” for the fiscal years ended March 31, 2014 and 2015 included the following:
Year ended March 31, 2014 Millions of yen ~ Year ended March 31, 2015 Millions of yen
Write-off of 10ans............ccoveviiiiiiiiiiieiiceeeee, ¥84,933  Write-off of 10ans........c..ccoevviiiiiiiiiiiieiieeee e, ¥76,997
Provision for reserve for losses on interest Provision for reserve for losses on interest

LEPAYIMENT .vveveeieieieeteeteateeneeteeseenteee e see e sieeeeene 50,200 FEPAYITICIT .ttt 64,836

Other extraordinary gains
“Other extraordinary gains” for the fiscal years ended March 31, 2014 represented gains on step acquisitions of ¥1,564 million
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The differences between the recoverable amounts and the book value of the following asset is recognized as “Losses on impairment of fixed
assets,” and included in “Extraordinary losses” for the fiscal year ended March 31, 2014 and 2015.

Year ended March 31, 2014

Area

Purpose of use

Type

Impairment loss

Millions of yen

Tokyo metropolitan area

Year ended March 31, 2015

Corporate assets (3 items)
Idle assets (38 items)
Other (1 item)

Idle assets(37 items)
Corporate asset (1 item)
Idle assets (10 items)
Other (1 item)

Area

Purpose of use

Land and buildings, etc.

Land and buildings, etc.
Land and buildings, etc.

Type

¥ 146
1,836
23

965

37

232
107

Impairment loss

Millions of yen

Tokyo metropolitan area

Kinki area .......c...ccoon.

Branches (3 items)

Idle assets (36 items)
Other (1 item)

Branches (4 items)
Corporate assets (2 items)
Idle assets (29 items)
Corporate asset (1 item)
Idle assets (11 items)

Land and buildings, etc.

Land and buildings, etc.

Land and buildings, etc.

¥ 77
3,019
0

137

12
1,802
0

59

At SMBC, a branch, which continuously manages and determines its income and expenses, is the smallest unit of asset group for

recognition and measurement of impairment loss of fixed assets. Assets such as corporate headquarters facilities, training facilities, data and

system centers, and health and recreational facilities which do not produce cash flows that can be attributed to individual assets are treated

as corporate assets. As for idle assets, impairment loss is measured individually. At SMFG and other consolidated subsidiaries, a branch or

other group is the smallest asset grouping unit as well.

SMBC and other consolidated subsidiaries reduced the carrying amounts of long-lived assets of which investments are not expected to

be fully recovered to their recoverable amounts, and recognized the losses as “Losses on impairment of fixed assets,” which is included in

“Extraordinary losses.” SMBC reduced the carrying amounts of idle assets, and other consolidated subsidiaries reduced the carrying

amounts of their branches and idle assets.

The recoverable amount is calculated using net realizable value which is basically determined by subtracting the expected disposal cost

from the appraisal value based on the Real Estate Appraisal Standard.
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(Notes to consolidated statements of comprehensive income)

*1 Reclassification adjustment and tax effect of other comprehensive income

Millions of yen

Year ended March 31 2014 2015
Net unrealized gains (losses) on other securities:
Amount arising during the fiscal year...........ocociiiiiiiiiiiiii ¥ 518,567 ¥1,403,111
Reclassification adjuStmMENnts .......oviiieeiiiieiieeie ettt e s eeens (223,029) (215,162)
Before adjustments to tax effect ........oiiivuiiiiiiiiiiii 295,537 1,187,948
Tax effect.......ccovveeviiiciiiciieeen. (93,971) (323,451)
Net unrealized gains (10sses) 0n Other SECUTITIES .....eovvivviiiiiriiiieiieeiee st 201,566 864,496
Net deferred gains (losses) on hedges:
Amount arising during the fiscal year...........cccocoiiiiiiiiiiiii (59,541) 26,574
Reclassification adjuStmMENnts .......oviiiieieiie ettt 17,840 23,028
Adjustment on the cost of the @SSETS ........ovviiiiiiiiiiiiiii e (1,332) 0
Before adjustments to tax effect .......coiuiiiiiiieiiie e (43,032) 49,603
TTAX FEOCT e e 15,559 (20,144)
Net deferred gains (1osses) 0n hedges ........oovviiiiiirininiiiiiiiieccceea (27,473) 29,458
Land revaluation excess:
Amount arising during the fiscal year — —
Reclassification adjuStmMENnts .......ouiiieiiiiieiieeee ettt — —
Before adjustments to tax effect ... ....ooiivuiiiiiiiiiii i — —
TTAX EEFECT ..ot 18 3,604
Land revaluation EXCESS.......ueieiiiureeeeeeieeeeeeeeeee e e e e e e et e e e e e e e 18 3,604
Foreign currency translation adjustments:
Amount arising during the fiscal year...........ccociiiiiiiiiiiiiii 170,926 178,283
Reclassification adjuStmENntS .. ......cveieieriiiiiiieee ettt ettt (863) (2,443)
Before adjustments to tax effect ... ..ooiiiiiiiiiiiiiec e 170,062 175,840
TTAX EFFECT ..ottt et — —
Foreign currency translation adjustments 170,062 175,840
Remeasurements of defined benefit plans:
Amount arising during the fiscal year.........coccoooiiiiiiiiiiii — 163,011
Reclassification adjuStmMEnts .......oveiieiiiiieiie ettt — 22,633
Before adjustments to tax effect ......ooviviiiiiiiiiiii e — 185,645
TTAX EFFCCT oo e e e — (63,093)
Remeasurements of defined benefit plans ...........cccooviiiiiiiiiiiiiieic e — 122,552
Share of other comprehensive income of affiliates:
Amount arising during the fiscal Year.........ocooiiiiiiiiiiiiiic e (1,349) 952
Reclassification adjuStments ........o.eiiiiiiiiiiieeie ettt (3,418) (1,410)
Before adjustments to tax effect.... (4,768) (458)
TAX EFFECT oot — —
Share of other comprehensive income of affiliates ........coccoevieieieieicieccccee (4,768) (458)
Total other comprehensive INCOME..........coiivieriiriieiiiiieieecee e ¥ 339,405 ¥1,195,494
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(Notes to consolidated statements of changes in net assets)

Fiscal year ended March 31, 2014
1. Type and number of shares issued and treasury stock

Number of shares

At the beginning At the end
Year ended March 31, 2014 of the fiscal year Increase Decrease of the fiscal year Notes
Shares issued
Common StockK .....cveevvieivieiieiieieeiae 1,414,055,625 — — 1,414,055,625
Total....oooviiiiiiiiecieee 1,414,055,625 — — 1,414,055,625
Treasury stock
Common stock .....cooovvviiiiiciieen, 60,179,376 105,441 13,503,148 46,781,669 1,2
Total....oooviiiiiiiieiiiiece 60,179,376 105,441 13,503,148 46,781,669

Notes: 1. Increase of 105,441 shares in the number of treasury common stock was due to the purchases of fractional shares.

2. Decrease of 13,503,148 shares in the number of treasury common stock was due to reduction of 5,108 shares through the sales of fractional shares and exercise of stock
options, and reduction of 13,498,040 shares through the sale of SMFG shares held by SMBC and other subsidiaries.

2. Information on stock acquisition rights

Number of shares Millions of yen

Details of stock Type of At the beginning At the end of the At the end of the
Year ended March 31, 2014 acquisition rights shares  of the fiscal year Increase Decrease fiscal year fiscal year Notes
SMFG Stock acquisition

rights as stock

options — — — — — ¥1,634

Consolidated subsidiaries — — 157
Total....oooooiiiiieiiiiieeee, ¥1,791

3. Information on dividends
(1) Dividends paid in the fiscal year

Millions of yen, except per share amount

Cash
Cash dividends
Date of resolution Type of shares dividends per share Record date Effective date
Ordinary general meeting of shareholders
held on June 27, 2013 ...cccoovievieiiiiiincnn. Common stock ¥98,713 ¥70  March 31, 2013 June 27, 2013
Meeting of the board of Directors held on
November 12, 2013 .oooooiviiviieeiieeieee, Common stock 77,556 55 September 30,2013 December 3, 2013

Note:  Cash dividends per share of ¥70 resolved at the ordinary general meeting of shareholders held on June 27, 2013 includes of ¥10 of the commemorative dividend.

(2) Dividends to be paid in the next fiscal year

Millions of yen, except per share amount

Cash
Cash Source of  dividends
Date of resolution Type of shares dividends dividends per share Record date Effective date
Ordinary general meeting of shareholders Retained
held on June 27, 2014 ....ccoooeiiiiiiiiere Common stock ¥91,656  earnings ¥65 March 31,2014 June 27, 2014
Fiscal year ended March 31, 2015
1. Type and number of shares issued and treasury stock
Number of shares
At the beginning At the end
Year ended March 31, 2015 of the fiscal year Increase Decrease of the fiscal year Notes
Shares issued
Common stock 1,414,055,625 — — 1,414,055,625
Total...ooveiiiiniciieiee 1,414,055,625 — — 1,414,055,625
Treasury stock
Common Stock .....ccoovvririiiiiiiiieiieenne. 46,781,669 37,310 4,778 46,814,201 1,2
Total...oooiiiiiiii 46,781,669 37,310 4,778 46,814,201

Notes: 1. Increase of 37,310 shares in the number of treasury common stock was due to purchases of fractional shares.

2. Decrease of 4,778 shares in the number of treasury common stock was due to sales of fractional shares and exercise of stock options.
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2. Information on stock acquisition rights

Number of shares Millions of yen

Details of stock Type of At the beginning At the end of the At the end of the
Year ended March 31, 2015 acquisition rights shares  of the fiscal year Increase Decrease fiscal year fiscal year Notes
SMFG Stock acquisition

rights as stock

options — — — — — ¥2,085

Consolidated subsidiaries...... — — 198
Total......ooooveeieiiiiel ¥2 284

3. Information on dividends
(1) Dividends paid in the fiscal year

Millions of yen, except per share amount

Cash
Cash dividends
Date of resolution Type of shares dividends per share Record date Effective date
Ordinary general meeting of shareholders
held on June 27, 2014 ...ccooevviiniiiiieis Common stock ¥91,656 ¥65  March 31, 2014 June 27, 2014
Meeting of the board of Directors held on
November 13, 2014 .....cooooeiiiiiiiieiicee Common stock 84,604 60 September 30, 2014  December 3, 2014

(2) Dividends to be paid in the next fiscal year

Millions of yen, except per share amount

Cash
Cash Source of  dividends
Date of resolution Type of shares dividends dividends  per share Record date Effective date
Ordinary general meeting of shareholders Retained
held on June 26, 2015 ...oocoviiiiiiiiiieee Common stock ¥112,804  earnings ¥80 March 31,2015  June 26, 2015

(Notes to consolidated statements of cash flows)
*1 The relation between the amounts of accounts listed on the consolidated financial statements and “Cash and cash equivalents”

Millions of yen

Year ended March 31, 2015 2014 2015

Cash and due from Banks .........coooviiiiiiiiii e ¥32,991,113 ¥39,748,979
Interest earning deposits with banks (excluding the deposit with the bank of Japan) ........ (5,997,949) (6,150,298)
Cash and cash eqUIVALENTS ........oiiiiiiiiic e ¥26,993,164 ¥33,598,680
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(Notes to lease transactions)

1. Financing leases
(1) Lessee side
1) Lease assets
(a) Tangible fixed assets
Tangible fixed assets mainly consisted of branches and equipment.
(b) Intangible fixed assets
Intangible fixed assets are software.
2) Depreciation method of lease assets
Depreciation method of lease assets is reported in 4. Accounting policies (4) Depreciation.
(2) Lessor side
1) Breakdown of lease investment assets

Millions of yen
March 31 2014 2015

Lease receivables ¥1,174,517 ¥1,187,853
Residual ValUe ......ooooiiiiiiieeeeee e 102,853 107,078
UNEArNed INTELEST TNCOMIE ...t e e e e et e e e e e e e e e e e (169,452) (167,407)
TOCAL oo e ¥1,107,918 ¥1,127,525

2)  The scheduled collections of lease payments receivables related to lease receivables and investment assets are as follows:

Millions of yen

2014 2015
Lease payments receivable Lease payments receivable
Lease payments receivable related to investment Lease payments receivable related to investment

March 31 related to lease receivables assets related to lease receivables assets

Within 1 year......cocoovviiniiennnn. ¥266,118 ¥ 332,508 ¥295,756 ¥ 337,777
More than 1 year to 2 years.......... 191,627 264,101 205,864 258,682
More than 2 years to 3 years ........ 129,777 194,146 127,113 194,449
More than 3 years to 4 years ........ 66,044 134,726 82,174 138,694
More than 4 years to 5 years ........ 46,480 86,255 47,544 99,092
More than 5 years .. 123,437 162,778 135,539 159,157
Total.o.eeeiiiiiiie ¥823,487 ¥1,174,517 ¥893,993 ¥1,187,853

3) Non-transfer ownership finance leases, which commenced in fiscal years beginning before April 1, 2008, are valued at their
appropriate book value, net of accumulated depreciation, as of March 31, 2008, and recorded as the beginning balance of “Lease
receivables and investment assets.”

Moreover, interest on such non-transfer ownership finance leases during the remaining term of the leases is allocated over the lease
term using the straight-line method.

As a result of this accounting treatment, “Income before income taxes and minority interests” for the fiscal years ended March 31,
2014 and 2015 were ¥2,988 million and ¥2,347 million, respectively, more than it would have been if such transactions had been
treated in a similar way to sales of the underlying assets.

2. Operating leases
(1) Lessee side
Future minimum lease payments on operating leases which were not cancelable were as follows:

Millions of yen

March 31 2014 2015

DUe WIthinl 1 YL ..iotiitiiiiiiiei ettt ¥ 43 498 ¥ 44,637
DUE AFLEE 1 YEAT ..ttt 265,182 239,659
oY DU P P UUPPRRRIN ¥308,681 ¥284,296

(2) Lessor side
Future minimum lease payments on operating leases which were not cancelable were as follows:

Millions of yen

March 31 2014 2015

Due WIthin 1 JEaT....ooiiiiiiiii ettt ettt ¥140,569 ¥ 165,897
DUE AfEEE 1 YEAL 1.ttt et 790,238 1,027,007
TOCAL. .o e e e a e e e e e e e e ¥930,807 ¥1,192,904

Future lease payments receivable on operating leases which were not cancelable at March 31, 2014 and 2015 amounting to ¥0
million and ¥0 million, respectively, on the lessor side were pledged as collateral for borrowings.
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(Notes to financial instruments)

1. Status of financial instruments
(1) Policies on financial instruments
SMFG Group conducts banking and other financial services such as leasing, securities, consumer finance, and system development and
information processing. Its banking business includes deposit taking, lending, securities trading and investment, remittance and
transfer, foreign exchange, bond subscription agent, trust business, and over-the-counter sales of securities investment trusts and
insurance products.

These services entail holding of financial assets such as loans and bills discounted, bonds, and stocks. Meanwhile, SMFG Group raises
funds through deposit taking, borrowing, bond offering, etc. Furthermore, it undertakes derivative transactions to meet customers’
hedging needs, to control market risk associated with deposit taking and lending (“ALM purposes”), and to make profit on short-term
fluctuations in interest rates, foreign exchange rates, etc. (“trading purposes”). At SMBC, derivative transactions for ALM purposes are
undertaken by the Treasury Dept. and the International Treasury Dept. of the Treasury Unit, while derivative transactions for trading
purposes are undertaken by the Trading Dept. of the Treasury Unit.

(2) Details of financial instruments and associated risks
1) Financial assets

The main financial assets held by SMFG Group include loans to foreign and domestic companies and domestic individuals, and

securities such as bonds (government and corporate bonds) and stocks (foreign and domestic stocks), etc. Bonds such as government

bonds are held for both trading and ALM purposes, and certain bonds are held as held-to-maturity securities. Stocks are held mainly
for strategic purposes. These assets expose SMFG to credit risk, market risk and liquidity risk. Credit risk is the risk of loss arising
from nonperformance of obligations by the borrower or issuer due to factors such as deterioration in the borrower’s/issuer’s financial
conditions. Market risk is the risk stemming from fluctuations in interest rates, exchange rates, or share prices. Liquidity risk is the
risk arising from difficulty executing transactions in desired quantities at appropriate prices due to low market liquidity. These risks
are propetly monitored and managed based on “(3) Risk management framework for financial instruments” below.

2) Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities of SMFG Group include borrowed money and bonds, etc. in addition to deposits. Deposits mainly comprise

deposits of domestic and foreign companies and domestic individuals. Borrowed money and bonds include subordinated borrowings

and subordinated bonds. Also, financial liabilities, like financial assets, expose SMFG to not only market risk but also funding
liquidity risk: the risk of SMFG not being able to raise funds due to market turmoil, deterioration in its creditworthiness or other
factors. These risks are properly monitored and managed based on “(3) Risk management framework for financial instruments”
below.

3) Derivative transactions

Derivatives handled by SMEG Group include foreign exchange futures; futures, forwards, swaps and options related to interest rates,

currencies, equities, bonds and commodities; and credit and weather derivatives.

Major risks associated with derivatives include market risk, liquidity risk, and credit risk arising from nonperformance of
contractual obligations due to deterioration in the counterparty’s financial conditions. These risks are propetly monitored and
managed based on “(3) Risk management framework for financial instruments” below.

Hedge accounting is applied to derivative transactions executed for ALM purposes, as necessary. Hedging instruments, hedged
items, hedging policy and the method to assess the effectiveness of hedging are described in “(Notes to significant accounting
policies for preparing consolidated financial statements), 4. Accounting policies, (16) Hedge accounting.”

(3) Risk management framework for financial instruments
The fundamental matters on risk management for the entire SMFG Group are set forth in “Regulations on Risk Management.” SMFG’s
Management Committee establishes the basic risk management policy, based on the Regulations, which is then approved by the Board
of Directors. SMFG has a risk management system based on the basic policy. The Corporate Risk Management Dept., which, together
with the Corporate Planning Dept., controls risk management across SMFG Group by monitoring the development and implementation
of SMFG Group’s risk management system, and gives appropriate guidance as needed. Under this framework, SMFG comprehensively
and systematically manages risks.
1) Management of credit risk
SMEFG conducts integrated management of credit risk according to its operational characteristics, and the credit risk inherent in its
entire portfolio as well as the risk in individual credits are managed quantitatively and continuously.
(a) Credit risk management system

At SMBC, basic policies on credit risk management and other significant matters require the resolution of the Management

Committee and the approval of the Board of Directors.

The Credit & Investment Planning Dept. of the Risk Management Unit is responsible for the comprehensive management of
credit risk. This department establishes, revises or abolishes credit policies, the internal rating system, credit authority
regulations, credit application regulations, and manages non-performing loans and other aspects of credit portfolio management.
The department also controls SMBC’s total credit risk by quantifying credit risk (i.e. calculating risk capital and risk-weighted
assets) in cooperation with the Corporate Risk Management Dept. The department also monitors risk situations and regularly
reports to the Management Committee and the Board of Directors.

Moreover, the Credit Portfolio Management Dept. within the Credit & Investment Planning Dept. works to stabilize SMBC'’s
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overall credit portfolio through using credit derivatives and selling loan claims.

The Credit Departments of Wholesale Banking Unit, Retail Banking Unit and other business units play a central role in
credit screening and managing their units’ credit portfolios. In the Wholesale Banking Unit, the Credit Administration Dept. is
responsible for formulating and implementing measures to reduce SMBC’s exposures mainly to borrowers classified as potentially
bankrupt or lower. Each business unit establishes its credit limits based on the baseline amounts for each borrower grading
category. Borrowers or loans perceived to have high credit risk undergo intensive evaluation and administration by the unit’s
Credit Department. The Corporate Research Dept. analyzes industries as well as investigates individual borrowers’ business
situations to detect early signs of problems.

Moreover, the Credit Risk Management Committee, a consultative body straddling the business units, rounds out SMBC’s
oversight system for undertaking flexible and efficient control of credit risk and ensuring the overall soundness of the bank’s loan
operations.

In addition to these, the Internal Audit Unit, operating independently from the business units, audits asset quality, grading
accuracy, self-assessment, and appropriateness of the credit risk management system, and reports the results directly to the Board
of Directors and the Management Committee.

(b) Method of credit risk management
SMBC properly manages the credit risk inherent in individual loans and the entire portfolio by assessing and quantifying the
credit risk of each borrower/loan using the internal rating system. In addition to management of individual loans through credit
screening and monitoring, it manages the credit portfolio as described below in order to secure and improve the credit portfolio’s
soundness and medium-term profitability.
e Appropriate risk-taking within the scope of capital

To limit credit risks to a permissible level relative to capital, “credit risk capital limit” has been established for internal control

purposes. Based on this limit, guidelines are set for each business unit. Regular monitoring is conducted to ensure that these

guidelines are being followed.
e Controlling concentration of risk

Concentration of risk in specific borrowers/industries/countries could severely reduce a bank’s capital should it materialize.

SMBC therefore implements measures to prevent concentration of credit risk in specific industries, and control large exposures

to individual borrowers by setting maximum loan amounts and conducting thorough loan reviews. To manage country risk,

SMBC also has credit limit guidelines based on each country’s creditworthiness.

e Greater understanding of actual corporate conditions and balancing returns and risks

SMBC runs credit operations on the basic principle of thoroughly understanding actual corporate conditions and gaining

profit commensurate with the level of credit risk entailed, and makes every effort to improve profit at after-cost (credit cost,

capital cost and overhead) level.
e Reduction and prevention of non-performing loans

For non-performing loans and potential non-performing loans, SMBC carries out loan reviews to clarify credit policies and

action plans, enabling it to swiftly implement measures to prevent deterioration of borrowers’ business situations, support

business recoveries, collect on loans, and enhance loan security.

In regards to financial instruments such as investments in certain funds, securitized products and credit derivatives that
indirectly retain risks related to assets such as corporate bonds and loan claims (underlying assets), such instruments entail
market and liquidity risks in addition to credit risk, since such instruments are traded on the market. Credit risk management
for these instruments involving detailed analysis and evaluation of characteristics of underlying assets is performed while
market risk is comprehensively managed within the framework for managing market and liquidity risks. Moreover, guidelines
have been established based on the characteristics of each type of risk to appropriately manage risks of incurring losses.

In regards to credit risk of derivative transactions, the potential exposure based on the market price is regularly calculated
and property managed. When the counterparty is a financial institution with whom SMBC frequently conducts derivative
transactions, measures such as a close-out netting provision, which provide that offsetting credit exposures between the 2
parties will be combined into a single net payment from 1 party to the other in case of bankruptcy or other default event, are
implemented to reduce credit risk.

Management of market and liquidity risks
SMFG manages market and liquidity risks by setting allowable risk limits; ensuring the transparency of the risk management
process; and clearly separating front-office, middle-office, and back-office operations for a highly efficient system of mutual checks
and balances.
(a) Market and liquidity risk management systems
At SMBC, important matters such as basic policies for managing market and liquidity risks and risk management framework are
determined by the Management Committee and then approved by the Board of Directors.

The aforementioned Corporate Risk Management Dept., which is independent from the business units that directly handle
business transactions, manages market and liquidity risks in an integrated manner. The department also monitors market and
liquidity risk situations and regularly reports to the Management Committee and the Board of Directors.

Furthermore, SMBC'’s cross-departmental “ALM Committee” reports on the state of observance of market risk capital and

liquidity risk capital limits, and deliberates on administration of ALM policies. SMBC also has a system whereby front-office
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departments, middle-office departments and back-office departments check each other’s work in order to prevent clerical errors,

unauthorized transactions, etc.

In addition, SMBC'’s Internal Audit Unit, which is independent from other departments, periodically performs comprehensive

internal audits to verify that the risk management framework is properly functioning and reports the audit results to the

Management Committee, the Board of Directors and other concerned committees and departments.

(b) Market and liquidity risk management methodology

Market risk management

SMBC manages market risk by setting maximum loss and VaR (value at risk: maximum potential loss that may be incurred to
a specific financial instrument for a given probability) within the market risk capital limit, which is set taking into account
stockholders’ equity and other factors in accordance with the market transaction policies.

SMBC uses the historical simulation method (a method for estimating the maximum loss by running simulations of
changes in profit and loss on market fluctuations scenarios based on historical data) to measure VaR. Regarding banking
activities (activities for generating profit through management of interest rates, terms, and other aspects of assets such as loans
and bonds and liabilities such as deposits) and trading activities (activities for generating profit by taking advantage of short-
term fluctuations in market values and differences in value among markets), SMBC calculates the maximum loss that may
occur as a result of market fluctuations in 1 day with a probability of 1% based on 4 years of historical observation. With
regard to the holding of shares (such as listed shares) for the purpose of strategic investment, SMBC calculates the maximum
loss that may occur as a result of market fluctuations in 1 year with a probability of 1% based on 10 years of historical
observation.

Regarding risks associated with foreign exchange rates, interest rates, share price, option prices and other market risk
factors, SMBC manages such risks by setting a maximum limit on the indicator suited for each market risk factor such as BPV
(basis point value: denotes the change in value of a financial instrument resulting from a 0.01 percentage-point change in the
yield).

Quantitative information on market risks

As of March 31, 2015, total VaR of SMBC and its major consolidated subsidiaries was ¥39.0 billion for the banking activities,
¥14.5 billion for the trading activities, and ¥1,447.7 billion for the holding of shares (such as listed shares) for the purpose of
strategic investment.

However, it should be noted that these figures are statistical figures that change according to changes in assumptions and
calculation methods, and may not cover the risk of future market conditions fluctuating drastically compared to market
fluctuations of the past.

Liquidity risk management

At SMBC, funding liquidity risk is managed based on a framework consisting of setting funding gap limits, maintaining a
system of highly liquid supplementary funding sources, and establishing contingency plans. A funding gap is the amount of
funds needed in the future to cover duration mismatch between required investments and funding resources. SMBC tries to
avoid excessive reliance on short-term funds by managing funding gap limits and has established a contingency plan covering
emergency action plans such as reducing funding gap limits. In addition, to ensure smooth fulfillment of transactions in face
of market turmoil, SMBC holds assets such as U.S. treasuries that can be sold immediately and emergency committed lines as
supplemental liquidity.

Moreover, to manage the liquidity risk of marketable instruments, derivative transactions, etc., SMBC has trading limits
for each business office classified by currency, instrument, transaction period, etc. As for financial futures, etc., risks are

managed by restricting positions to within a certain percentage of open interest in the entire market.

(4) Supplementary explanations about matters concerning fair value of financial instruments

Fair values of financial instruments are based on their market prices and, in cases where market prices are not available, on reasonably

calculated prices. These prices have been calculated using certain assumptions, and may differ if calculated based on different

assumptions.
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2. Fair value of financial instruments

(1) Consolidated balance sheet amount, fair value and net unrealized gains (losses) of financial instruments as of March 31, 2014 and 2015

are as follows:

The amounts shown in the following tables do not include financial instruments whose fair values are extremely difficult to

determine, such as unlisted stocks classified as “Other securities” (see (3) below), and stocks of subsidiaries and affiliates.

Millions of yen

Consolidated balance

Net unrealized

March 31, 2014 sheet amount Fair value gains (losses)
1) Cash and due from banks *1 ............cocoooiiiiiiiiiii e ¥ 32,980,901 ¥ 32,988,091 ¥ 7,189
2) Call loans and bills bought *1.......cccoiiiinininiiiiiccece 1,247,326 1,248,436 1,110
3) Receivables under resale agreements ..........cc.cocueeviiieniennennenne. 522,860 528,406 5,545
4) Receivables under securities borrowing transactions ................. 3,780,260 3,780,887 627
5) Monetary claims bought *1 3,545,953 3,559,390 13,437
6) Trading assets

Securities classified as trading purpose............ccccceveieieneae. 3,467,223 3,467,223 —
7) Money held in trust........coiiiiiiiiiiiiiii e 23,120 23,120 —
8) Securities
Bonds classified as held-to-maturity.........ccocooceviiiiinieinen. 4,528,549 4,562,347 33,797
Other SECULITIES ..vveeiiviieeeeeeeeee e 21,656,818 21,656,818 —
9) Loans and bills discounted ............ccccoooviiviiiiiiiiiiiiiiiieeeceee 68,227,688
Reserve for possible loan losses *1.........ccocoiiiiniiniiniiiiinne (538,691)
67,688,996 69,440,340 1,751,343
10) Foreign exchanges 1 .........ccooiiiiiiiiiiiiien e 1,786,063 1,790,855 4,792
11) Lease receivables and investment assets *! 1,816,624 1,893,207 76,582
TOLAL ASSELS ...ttt ¥143,044,698 ¥144,939,126 ¥1,894,428
1) DEPOSILS ..ot ¥ 94,331,925 ¥ 94,334,169 ¥ 2,244
2) Negotiable certificates of deposit ........cocevveriiriiriiiiiiiiiiie 13,713,539 13,716,899 3,359
3) Call money and bills sOld.......cccoeviiiiiiiiiie 4,112,428 4,112,428 (0)
4) Payables under repurchase agreements..........ccccceevvevierriniennnnn. 1,710,101 1,710,101 —
5) Payables under securities lending transactions ..........c.cccoceevvenne. 5,330,974 5,330,974 —
6) COmMMELCIAl PAPEL ...veuviiiiiiiiitieiieeieieee et 2,374,051 2,374,049 (2)
7) Trading liabilities
Trading securities sold for short sales 1,865,242 1,865,242 —
8) BOrroWed MOMEY ...c.veuviiiiiiiiiiieiieiieiieieie ettt 7,020,841 7,050,354 29,513
9) FOreign eXChaneS ........cceevievieuierienieieieiesie et 451,658 451,658 —
10) Short-term bonds........cc..viiiiiiiiiiiiiie e 1,145,200 1,145,195 (4)
T1) BONAS ottt 5,090,894 5,240,321 149,426
12) DUE €0 trUSE ACCOUNT ... .eeveeieeeeeeeee e 699,329 699,329 —
Total Habilities ......ccvvioiiiiiiiieiie e ¥137,846,188 ¥138,030,724 ¥ 184,536
Derivative transactions *2
Hedge accounting not applied ..........cccoceoiiiiiiiiiiiiiiincnne ¥ 440,101 ¥ 440,101 ¥ —
Hedge accounting applied {477,513} {477,513} —
TOTAL oo ¥ {37,411} ¥ {37,411} ¥ —

*#1 The amounts do not include general reserve for possible loan losses and specific reserve for pos